
 

 Council Meeting Agenda – September 13, 2022              1 
 

 
 
 
 

        
 

CITY OF EVART 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

Tuesday September 13, 2022 @ 7:30PM 
 

The Regular Council Meeting will be held in the Community Room at the Depot located 
at 200 S. Main St. Evart, MI 49631  

  
Before each regular council meeting there will be a standing pre-council work session from 

7:00PM to 7:30PM. 
 

1. Call to Order: 8:00PM 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance  
 

3. Roll Call  
 

4. Citizens’ Comments – limited to 3-4 minutes per individual  
   

5. Approval of Agenda 
 

6. Consent Agenda 
The purpose of the Consent Agenda is to expedite business by grouping non-controversial items together to be 
dealt with by one Board motion without discussion. Any person, whether Board Member, staff or public may ask 
that item be removed from the Consent Agenda to be placed elsewhere on the regular agenda for discussion. All 
such requests will be granted.  
 
A. Regular Council Minutes – August 23, 2022 
B. Vendor’s List $222,876.43 

 
7. Unfinished Business  

C. Ferric Chloride Pump  
D. State Senator Curt Vanderwall- Sesquicentennial (Presentation) 

  
8. New Business 

E. Water Ordinance- Discussion Only 
F. Park Improvements 
G. Appointments to Boards & Commissions 

        
9. Department/Informational Reports (No Action Needed) 

 H.  Accounts Payable Report (8/23/2022 – 9/13/2022)  
  I.  Payroll Reports (8/23/2022 – 9/13/2022)  
 J.  Revenue and Expense Report – August 2022 

City Council 
Mayor: Chris Emerick 
Mayor Pro-Tem: Sandy Szeliga 
Council: Dan Elliott 
Sean Duffy 
Matt Hildebrand 
City Clerk: Kathy Fiebig 
City Manager: Pepper Lockhart 

City of Evart 
200 S. Main St.  
Evart, MI 49631 
(231) 734-2181 
 
 
 
 
 

www.evart.org 

http://www.evart.org/


 

 Council Meeting Agenda – September 13, 2022              2 
 

 
10.  City Attorney Report/Comment  

 
11.  City Clerk Report/Comment  
 
12.  City Manager Report/Comment   

 
13.  Finance Director Report/Comment 

 
14.  Department of Public Works Report/Comment 

 
15.  Police Department Report/Comment  

 
16.  City Assessor 

 
17.  Downtown Development Authority Report/Comment 

 
18.  Housing Commission 

 
19. Fire Department  

K. Fire Department Minutes – August 16, 2022 
 

20.  Citizens’ Comments – limited to 3-4 minutes per individual  
 

21.  Adjournment  
 
 
 
 
 
  



1 
 

City of Evart Council Minutes 08.23.2022 
 

CITY OF EVART 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

August 23, 2022@ 730PM 
Community Room at the Depot, 200 S. Main Street 

 
 

 
Mayor Chris Emerick called the meeting to order at 7:31pm, then led the assembly in the Pledge 
of Allegiance. 
 
Present (via roll call): Sean Duffy, Dan Elliott, Mayor Emerick, Matt Hildebrand, Sandra 
Szeliga 
 
Present (staff): City Manager Pepper Lockhart, Downtown Development Authority (DDA) 
Manager Todd Bruggema, Department of Public Works (DPW) Director Don Duncan, Chief of 
Police John Beam Jr., City Attorney James White, City Clerk Kathy Fiebig 
 
Guests: Jim Schwab, Roger Elkins 
 
Citizens’ Comments: Roger Elkins noted that he had requested that State Senator Curt 
Vanderwall provide a resolution honoring the Evart Sesquicentennial.  Circumstances have 
prevented this being done, but he hopes to have it for the next council meeting. He noted that 
he lost the primary election for District 5 County Commissioner to Jim Custer and remarked on 
the low turn out for the election.  He suggested doing public outreach to try to raise awareness 
of the general election in November. 
 
Approval of Agenda 
Motion by Mayor Emerick to approve the agenda with the following changes: replace Item D 
Sesquicentennial Resolution with CDL Licensing.  Support by Mr. Hildebrand.  Motion passed 
with all in favor. 
 
Approval of Consent Agenda 
A.  Regular Council Minutes – August 9, 2022 
B.  Vendor’s List $268,420.45 
Motion by Mr. Elliott to approve the consent agenda as presented.  Support by Mayor Emerick. 
Motion passed with all in favor. 
 
Unfinished Business 
C.  Ferric Chloride Pump 
The pump under consideration is too large for our facility.  Lead Wastewater Operator Patrick 
Muszynski will continue to research options.  No action taken. 
 
New Business 
D.  CDL License for DPW Laborer Ed Jarrett 
Ms. Lockhart noted that on July 5, 2022 council approved the cost of sending Ed Jarrett, new 
employee in Public Works, to get his CDL license, which is required to operate several pieces of 
city equipment.  At that time, tuition was $6,000 for the course.  That has now increased to 
$7,000 with a $200 deposit to hold the spot.  Mr. Duffy asked if Mr. Jarrett will sign a contract 
with the city stating that he will repay the tuition on a pro-rated scale over three years if he 
resigns from his position with the city.  Ms. Lockhart confirmed that this contract will be in place 
before he attends the course.  Motion by Mayor Emerick to approve the additional $1200 cost 



2 
 

City of Evart Council Minutes 08.23.2022 
 

as long as the contract for repayment is signed before class begins.  Support by Mr. Duffy.  
Motion passed with all in favor. 
E.  Resolution 2022-13 Street Administrator 
Motion by Mr. Hildebrand to approve Resolution 2022-13 appointing Don Duncan as Street 
Administrator.  Support by Mayor Emerick.  On a roll call vote, Ms. Szeliga, Mr. Duffy, Mr. Elliott, 
Mayor Emerick, and Mr. Hildebrand voted yes.  Motion passed.   
F.  Tentative Police Officers Labor Council (POLC) Union Contract 
Ms. Lockhart has been negotiating with the union representatives for several months, and the 
agreement is substantially complete.  She reminded council that the officers were given a 
substantial raise recently to bring our pay scale into the average range of surrounding 
communities. At that time, the union signed a letter of understanding waiving raises for several 
years.  She would like to reinstate annual raises in exchange for raising their health care match 
from 10% to 20% to match what all other city employees are paying.  Motion by Mr. Elliott to 
approve the police union contract subject to final approval on the line items under discussion. 
Support by Mayor Emerick.  Motion passed with all in favor. 
G.  Meeting Conflict with elections 
Ms. Fiebig noted that the recent change in schedule for council meetings puts the November 8 
meeting in conflict with the general election.  Motion by Mayor Emerick to move the November 8 
meeting to November 1.  Support by Mr. Hildebrand.  Motion passed with all in favor. 
 
Department/Informational Reports (No action needed) 
H. Accounts Payable Report (8/10/2022 – 8/23/2022) 
I.   Payroll Reports  (8/10/2022 – 8/23/2022) 
J.  Summary of Funds – July 2022 
 
City Attorney Report/Comment 
Mr. White has been working on the police union contract.  He is starting to work on building 
violations and the appeals process but would like to meet with Ms. Lockhart and the county 
building inspector again to confirm the process.  He will be closing on the Kane building 
tomorrow (gift to the city). 
City Clerk Report/Comment: none 
City Manager Report/Comment 
Ms. Lockhart reported that she has the clerk’s position covered whether or not the ballot  
proposal changing the office to an appointed position passes.  She is anticipating making 
changes to several city ordinances and will try to consolidate those to reduce the expense.   
Finance Director Report/Comment 
Ms. Lockhart reported that Ms. Duncan is working on the annual audit.  The Fire Department 
audit went well. Ms. Lockhart and Mr. Elliott will attend the city manager conference.  The door 
hangers for water meter replacements have worked well and we are close to finishing the 
project.   
Department of Public Works Report/Comment 
K.  Monthly Report – July 2022 
Mr. Duncan requested that anyone seeing an issue around the city that needs to be addressed 
notify him.  He already has a long list but is going through it quickly.  Staff is working on cleaning 
up streets and alleys, taking out dead trees and working on the roof replacements at Riverside 
West.  He would like to keep the momentum going. 
Police Department Report/Comment 
L.  Monthly report – July 2022 
Chief Beam noted that DPW will be clearing out the vegetation around the police department 
building.  The new computer program is live and working well.  Jesse Hyden is attending the 
police academy and since the county is providing transportation, our cost is less.  An offer was 



3 
 

City of Evart Council Minutes 08.23.2022 
 

made to a Community Resource Officer candidate, but it was turned down due to a change in 
personal circumstances. The department continues to work on ordinance violations, and he 
hopes to be sending city staff out to mow yards if out of compliance. Chief gave Officer Higgins 
a five year commendation as he has been working a lot of hours above and beyond his usual 
part time schedule.  The department has done a comprehensive purge of documents and will be 
shredding a lot of records.  
Downtown Development Authority Report/Comment 
M. DDA Meeting Packet – August 9, 2022 
Mr. Bruggema noted that the Korean War Memorial in Guyton Park will be dedicated on August 
27. He has ordered white vinyl fencing for the west property line, paid for by a private donor and 
the VFW.  The city will install this after locating the property line. The Main Street survey is out 
and has already gotten 169 responses. The pop up building on Main Street is for sale and the 
DDA is accepting bids until August 31. 
Evart Area Fire Department 
Mr. Elliott reminded council that he is the council representative to the group and will have to be 
replaced after the November 8 election. 
Evart Housing Commission 
N.  Housing Commission Minutes – July 19, 2022 
 
Citizens’ Comments: none 
 
Motion by Mayor Emerick to adjourn.  Support by Mr. Duffy. Motion passed with all in favor. The 
meeting was adjourned at 8:08pm. 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Kathy Fiebig, City Clerk 
 



CHECK REGISTER FOR CITY OF EVART 1/1Page: 09/08/2022 05:01 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 08/24/2022 - 09/13/2022

AmountVendor NameVendorCheckBankCheck Date

Bank 751 VENDOR

V387.38 MAURER'S TEXTILE RENTAL1757971(A)75108/25/2022
387.38 MAURER'S TEXTILE RENTAL1757972(A)75108/26/2022
10.00 OSCEOLA COUNTY CLERK00263928375108/31/2022

58,014.82 CITY OF EVART00283928475109/01/2022
3,611.87 EVART PUBLIC LIBRARY06533928575109/01/2022

47,280.91 OSCEOLA COUNTY TREASURER0229973(A)75109/01/2022
783.15 EVART FIRE DEPARTMENT00513928675109/06/2022
379.92 EVART PUBLIC LIBRARY06533928775109/06/2022

7,917.72 EVART PUBLIC SCHOOLS00453928875109/06/2022
195.50 MECOSTA OSCEOLA TRANSIT AUTHORITY10473928975109/06/2022

1,988.44 MECOSTA-OSCEOLA INTERMEDIATE06683929075109/06/2022
796.25 EVART FIRE DEPARTMENT00513929175109/06/2022
386.27 EVART PUBLIC LIBRARY06533929275109/06/2022

7,962.48 EVART PUBLIC SCHOOLS00453929375109/06/2022
197.78 MECOSTA OSCEOLA TRANSIT AUTHORITY10473929475109/06/2022

2,009.66 MECOSTA-OSCEOLA INTERMEDIATE06683929575109/06/2022
8,202.27 EVART PUBLIC LIBRARY06533929675109/06/2022
5,931.75 OSCEOLA COUNTY TREASURER0229974(A)75109/06/2022
6,017.15 OSCEOLA COUNTY TREASURER0229975(A)75109/06/2022
6,000.00 PINNACLE TRUCK DRIVER TRAINING, INC12773929775109/08/2022
1,271.89 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN11613929875109/08/2022

688.99 TELNET WORLDWIDE23003929975109/08/2022
105.00 POINT BROADBAND1201976(E)75109/08/2022
371.02 VERIZON WIRELESS1784977(E)75109/08/2022
179.97 CHARTER/SPECTRUM328978(A)75109/09/2022

V4,532.00 ACCIDENT FUND16443930075109/13/2022
30.00 BARNETT'S AUTO REPAIR11823930175109/13/2022

5,596.43 CITY OF EVART00283930275109/13/2022
1,315.64 DEERE CREDIT, INC12003930375109/13/2022

236.50 DEWITT MOTOR FREIGHT6403930475109/13/2022
440.00 DICKINSON WRIGHT PLLC10353930575109/13/2022
465.00 ELECTIONSOURCE17173930675109/13/2022
75.09 EVART PARTS PLUS17663930775109/13/2022
67.75 FILE SAFE, INC10253930875109/13/2022
163.52 HACH COMPANY03953930975109/13/2022

1,674.41 IDEXX LABORATORIES, INC.00613931075109/13/2022
13.23 INTEGRITY BUSINESS SOLUTIONS08763931175109/13/2022
30.65 MEDLER ELECTRONIC CO 7233931275109/13/2022
150.00 MORGAN COMPOSTING, INC.16133931375109/13/2022
50.00 MUSKEGON RIVER WATERSHED ASSEMBLY30013931475109/13/2022
240.00 POINT BROADBAND12013931575109/13/2022

7,916.67 RCB CONTRACTING 7963931675109/13/2022
10,671.08 REPUBLIC SERVICES #23918063931775109/13/2022

380.70 RIETH-RILEY CONSTR CO INC - BR01233931875109/13/2022
195.68 SCHAEFFER MFG. CO. 10133931975109/13/2022
174.04 SINGLESOURCE20353932075109/13/2022

3,421.24 SMITH LUMBER CO01293932175109/13/2022
5,556.15 SMITH LUMBER CO01293932275109/13/2022

130.00 SPECTRUM HEALTH OCCUPATIONAL15793932375109/13/2022
637.96 STANDARD INSURANCE CO.09033932475109/13/2022

4,532.00 ACCIDENT FUND16443932575109/13/2022
3,384.56 CONSUMERS ENERGY0024979(E)75109/13/2022

248.49 LINGO1043980(E)75109/13/2022
40.00 AFFORDABLE PRINTS1858981(A)75109/13/2022
130.00 CROSSROADS TESTING SERVICES0935982(A)75109/13/2022
90.00 DRUG SCREEN PLUS921983(A)75109/13/2022
40.00 DUNCAN, DON641984(A)75109/13/2022
40.00 DUNCAN, JENNIFER1739985(A)75109/13/2022
40.00 JARRETT, EDWARD636986(A)75109/13/2022
40.00 JOHN BEAM JR.1419987(A)75109/13/2022
40.00 MARTIN, DALE1330988(A)75109/13/2022
395.56 MAURER'S TEXTILE RENTAL1757989(A)75109/13/2022
40.00 MILLER, JEFFREY639990(A)75109/13/2022
40.00 MUCZYNSKI, PATRICK1501991(A)75109/13/2022
40.00 MULKERNS, CHRISTINE2302992(A)75109/13/2022
11.50 OSCEOLA COUNTY TREASURER0229993(A)75109/13/2022
40.00 PEPPER LOCKHART1069994(A)75109/13/2022

4,650.72 SCOTLAND OIL COMPANY, INC.1730995(A)75109/13/2022
4,934.00 SHADES OF GREEN LANDSCAPING450996(A)75109/13/2022

821.00 TRACE ANALYTICAL LABORATORIES1600997(A)75109/13/2022
2,916.67 WHITE LAW OFFICE0221998(A)75109/13/2022

40.00 ZINGER, ADAM469999(A)75109/13/2022

751 TOTALS:

222,876.43 Total of 70 Disbursements:

4,919.38 Less 2 Void Checks:
227,795.81 Total of 72 Checks:



Locate File: G >City Council >Letters to Council 

 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
To:  Honorable Mayor Emerick & Council Members 
From:   Jennie Duncan, Finance Director/Treasurer 
Date:  September 8, 2022 
Re: Water Ordinance Updates  
 
For the Agenda of September 13, 2022 
_________________________________________________________________________   
Background. In March 2022, the city staff and city council were made aware of issues and the 
need for clarification with portions of the City Ordinance pertaining to water and sewer 
regulations. During that same meeting, I stated we would review the current language and 
bring potential changes to council. Once decisions are made on the updates, we will need to 
have a public hearing to move forward with the ordinance changes.   
 
Issues & Questions Specified. I have reviewed Chapter 42 – Utilities, Section 42-358 
(Contracts for service) and Section 42-359 (Authority for tenant accounts; procedure) and 
believe that the language should be amended because as currently stated in Contracts for 
service: “. . . renters or leases the property being served, until providing sufficient deposit with 
the city to be retained by the city until the renter leaves the property being served.” This is not 
accurate. The city does not require every tenant to pay a deposit, the only time a deposit is 
required is when the owner/landlord requires their tenants to enter into a landlord/tenant 
affidavit, which is mentioned under section 42-359. I would also like to address adding the 
language to match state law from the Michigan Attorney General for eviction proceedings. 
Lastly, I would like to change the wording under Section 42-90 (Adjustment of meter bills); 
“…estimation shall be based on the county or state estimation of 50 gallons, per person, per 
day, usage”. I spoke to Reed City and BS&A and realized we can do an estimation with our 
software for any account based on their history. 
 
Alternatives. NA 
 
Financial Impact. NA 
 
Recommendation. It is my recommendation we start looking into this ordinance for any issues, 
so it is clear to everyone. Going forward, I would like all rentals units’ utilities to stay in the 
owner/landlord’s name, unless they have a landlord/tenant affidavit on file with the city, or a 
copy of a land contract filed with the county, so the taxes reflect ownership.   
 
Attachments. 
1.  Chapter 42 of the City Ordinance  
2. Michigan Attorney General ‘A Practical Guide for Tenants and Landlords’ Eviction 

Proceedings  
 
 
 



9/8/22, 12:53 PM Evart, MI Code of Ordinances

1/43

Chapter 42 - UTILITIES

Footnotes:

--- (1) ---

State Law reference— Ownership and operation of public service facilities by city, Mich. Const. 1963 art. 7, § 24; local authority to

provide and regulate sewer and water service, MCL 324.4301 et seq.; water and sewer authorities, MCL 124.281 et seq.

ARTICLE I. - IN GENERAL

Secs. 42-1—42-18. - Reserved.

ARTICLE II. - WATER

DIVISION 1. - GENERALLY

Sec. 42-19. - Purpose.

The purpose of this article is to establish standards, rules and regulations with respect to the use of the city

waterworks system and to provide a method for establishing the rates and charges for the connection to and use of

the system.

(Code 2009, § 1040.01; Ord. No. 2014-3, § 1040.01, 12-30-2014)

Sec. 42-20. - De�nitions.

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the meanings ascribed to them in

this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:

Commodity charge means the cost associated with providing water to the users. The term "commodity charge" is

the actual budget cost of the operation, maintenance and repair, divided by the estimated number of gallons to be

produced, for delivery to the users. The term "commodity charge" may also include all or a portion of the annual

debt service expense incurred by the water supply system.

Contaminated groundwater means groundwater which there is present concentrations of chemical compounds

that exceed the residential drinking water criteria established by the EGLE by rule or operational memoranda

pursuant to MCL 324.20101 to 324.20142.

DWRPD means the drinking water and radiologic protection division of the EGLE or its successor agency.

EGLE means the state department of environment, Great Lakes and energy or its predecessor or successor

agency.

Groundwater means underground water within the zone of saturation.



9/8/22, 12:53 PM Evart, MI Code of Ordinances

2/43

(a)

(b)

(c)

Premises means each commercial building or residential unit connected to the water supply system of the city.

Ready to serve charge means the costs associated with retiring all or a portion of the debt of the water supply

system, capital improvements and maintenance and repair. The monthly charge is based upon the users' meter

size, and will be charged, per unit.

Unit means a single-family structure or any separate residential living space (e.g., an apartment).

User means any person who receives water from or benefits from the water supply system.

Water main means that part of the water distribution system located within easement lines or street designed to

supply more than one water service line.

Water service lines means that part of the water distribution system connecting the water main with the

premises served.

Water supply system means the complete water supply system of the city, including all water mains, connections,

pipes, meters, hydrants, wells, well houses, pumps, water storage facilities, transmission lines, water service lines

and all water treatment facilities, plants, works, instrumentalities and properties used or useful in obtaining a water

supply, treating and distributing the same for domestic, commercial, industrial, institutional or fire protection

purposes, and all other appurtenances, thereto, including all easements, rights and land for such easements, and

including all extensions and improvements thereto which may be acquired or constructed on behalf of current and

future users of the water supply system.

Well means an opening in the surface of the earth for the purpose of removing water through non-mechanical or

mechanical means for any purpose.

(Code 2009, § 1040.02; Ord. No. 2014-3, § 1040.02, 12-30-2014; Ord. No. 2018-3, § 2(1040.02), 10-1-2018)

Sec. 42-21. - Management of the waterworks system.

Operation and control. The municipal waterworks system of the city shall be operated and controlled by

the city council, it being the duty of the sewer, water and streets committee of the city council to give

special attention and supervision to the waterworks system.

Active supervision. The active supervision of the waterworks system is under the city water department,

which will exercise supervision under the general direction of the city manager.

Duties of water department. It is the duty of the water department to read and repair all meters; to

exercise constant watchfulness for water leaks; to see that all meters are properly sealed; that all water

used on the premises is properly used as contracted and that all service lines from the water main up to

and including the shut off box, curb cocks, curb boxes and stop cocks are kept in good repair. The

property owner or consumer shall be responsible for all maintenance of the service lines from the shut

off box to the meter.

(Code 2009, § 1040.02; Ord. No. 2014-3, § 1040.02, 12-30-2014; Ord. No. 2018-3, § 2(1040.02), 10-1-2018)

Sec. 42-22. - Use of water from city �re hydrants.



9/8/22, 12:53 PM Evart, MI Code of Ordinances

3/43

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Only city personnel or others specifically authorized shall operate fire hydrants. Requests to use water from fire

hydrants may be granted when such requests are accompanied by the established security deposit. Permission to

use water from fire hydrants shall be in writing and such written permission must be produced when so requested

by the city's authorized personnel. Water used will be charged at established rates. Persons using water from fire

hydrants without first obtaining permission from the city are subject to civil infraction fines.

(Code 2009, § 1040.10; Ord. No. 2014-3, § 1040.10, 12-30-2014)

Sec. 42-23. - Sources of pollution to be isolated from city water sources.

It is unlawful for any person to erect, maintain or use any outhouse, privy, cesspool, barn where animals are

kept, manure pile, or other source of pollution within 200 feet of any well owned by the city and used as a source of

water supply for the people of the city. Each day that any such building or source of pollution is used or maintained

shall constitute a separate violation of this article.

(Code 2009, § 1040.11; Ord. No. 2014-3, § 1040.11, 12-30-2014)

Sec. 42-24. - No �uoride added to city water supply system.

In reference to Public Act 346 of 1968, the city council has taken appropriate action to reject adding fluoride to

the water supply system.

(Code 2009, § 1040.12; Ord. No. 2014-3, § 1040.12, 12-30-2014)

Sec. 42-25. - Service interruptions for repair, maintenance and emergencies.

The city shall have the right to interrupt service without notice in the case of breakdowns or for other

unavoidable causes or for the purpose of making necessary repairs, connections, or maintenance. Reasonable

notice of the service interruption shall be given to consumers when practicable.

(Code 2009, § 1040.06; Ord. No. 2014-3, § 1040.06, 12-30-2014; Ord. No. 2018-3, § 2(1040.06), 10-1-2018; Ord. No.

2019-05(2), § 4, 9-3-2019)

Sec. 42-26. - Enforcement; penalties and other remedies.

City manager to enforce. Notwithstanding any other provision of this article to the contrary, the city

manager shall be responsible for the enforcement of this article, including the issuance of municipal civil

infraction citations and municipal civil infraction violation notices for violations of this article.

Withholding of building or improvement permit. No permit for building, alteration or other required

permit for a premises or improvement thereon shall be issued by the city for any premises found to be in

violation of this article, or where it is proposed to install or use a well in violation of this article.

Injunctive relief. The city may further enforce this section by action seeking injunctive relief. Any well in

violation of this article shall be deemed a nuisance subject to abatement.

Recovery of costs. Any consumer violating any of the provisions of this article, or who causes loss or



9/8/22, 12:53 PM Evart, MI Code of Ordinances

4/43

(e)

(f)

(g)

(a)

damage to or impairs the city water supply system may be liable to the city for any expense loss or

damage caused by such violation of damage. The city may bill the discharger for such costs incurred by

the city for any supervision, investigation, sampling, administration, cleaning, repair, or replacement work

caused by the violation or damage. Refusal to pay the assessed costs shall constitute a violation of this

article enforceable under the provision of this article.

Penalties for civil infraction. Except as provided in section 42-58, a person who violates any provision of

this article (including, without limitation, any notice, order, permit, decision or determination

promulgated, issued or made by the city under this article) is responsible for a municipal civil infraction,

as provided in section 1-13, subject to payment of civil fine of up to $500.00 per day for each infraction,

plus costs and other sanctions.

Repeat offenses and increased fines. Increased fines may be imposed for repeat offenses. As used in this

section, the term "repeat offense" means a second (or any subsequent) municipal civil infraction violation

of the same requirement or provision of this article committed by a person within any 90-day period and

for which the person admits responsibility or is determined to be responsible. The increased fine for any

offense that is a first repeat offense shall be $1,000.00 per day, plus costs. The fine for any offense that is

a second repeat offense or any subsequent repeat offense shall be $2,500.00, per day, plus costs.

Criminal penalties. Any person who knowingly makes any false statement representation, or certification

in any application, record, report, plan, or other document filed required to be maintained pursuant to

this article, or who falsifies, tampers with or knowingly renders inaccurate any metering device required

under this article, shall, upon conviction, be punished by the imposition of a criminal penalty of not more

than $500.00 or by imprisonment for not more than six months, or by both.

(Code 2009, § 1040.13; Ord. No. 2014-3, § 1040.13, 12-30-2014)

Sec. 42-27. - Violations by user sharing a single service pipe apply to persons sharing pipe.

When two or more buildings or units are supplied through a single service pipe, any violation of the rules of the

department with reference to either shall be deemed a violation as to all, and the department may take such action

as could be taken as to a single building or unit.

(Code 2009, § 1040.06; Ord. No. 2014-3, § 1040.06, 12-30-2014; Ord. No. 2018-3, § 2(1040.06), 10-1-2018; Ord. No.

2019-05(2), § 4, 9-3-2019)

Secs. 42-28—42-57. - Reserved.

DIVISION 2. - CONNECTIONS

Sec. 42-58. - Mandatory connection; exceptions.

Except as otherwise provided herein, any property or structure in or on which water is used or consumed

and which has city water "available" to it shall be connected to the city water supply system. Such

https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/


9/8/22, 12:53 PM Evart, MI Code of Ordinances

5/43

(b)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

connection shall be made within 90 days of written notice from the city to do so. For purposes of this

section, city water shall be considered available if the city water supply system is located within 200 feet

of the nearest property line of the property.

The installation of new private wells is prohibited, except for properties that do not have city water

available. A private well existing on the date of the adoption of the ordinance from which this section is

derived may continue to be used until it is no longer operable. A private well that has been disconnected

from any structure on the property that is still operable shall be used solely for outdoor purposes only. A

private well that is disconnected from a structure and that is still in service shall be subject to inspection

as part of the city's cross connection program and shall be registered under the state health department

regulations within 90 days of the disconnection.

(Code 2009, § 1040.08; Ord. No. 2011-4, § 2, 12-19-2011; Ord. No. 2014-3, § 1040.08(j), 12-30-2014)

Sec. 42-59. - Service connections.

Water connection. Water connections shall be installed in accordance with the rules and regulations of

the city. All water connections are the property of the city. The water connection is the section of the

water lateral extending from the water main to the edge of the public right of way or easement.

Failure to pay charges. Should any customer fail or neglect to pay the service connection charges

imposed by the city, the city may collect the same by suit in a court of competent jurisdiction. In addition,

the city may shut-off and discontinue any further water service to the premises in default and may use

any or all methods of collection provided in MCL 123.131 et seq. and 141.101 et seq.

Time for inspection. The applicant for the connection shall notify the city when the service line is ready for

inspection and connection. The connection shall be made under the direction of city personnel.

Service valve. No curb box shall be opened and no valve shall be operated either to turn off or turn on

water supply by anyone other than an authorized city employee. Such tampering is punishable as

described in section 1-13. Special permission may be given by the city manager with at least eight hours

advanced notice.

Maintenance of services. All services exclusive of the fire services, used for domestic, commercial and

industrial purposes will be maintained, from the main to the curb valve, by city personnel. This

maintenance will be done without cost to the property owner, except as hereinafter noted. In case of any

damage to service through negligence of the owner or his agent, the cost of maintenance plus 25 percent

will be charged to the property owner.

Customer's duty to notify for discontinuance of service. The customer shall notify the city if water service

is to be discontinued or if the premises are to be vacated so that water may be shut off. Failure to notify

will result in continuing service charges. The customer is responsible for any damage to the water meter

caused by freezing in any unoccupied building. Upon request and payment of the established fees the

water will be turned on. When service is discontinued the meter shall be read and a partial bill rendered.

(Code 2009, § 1040.03; Ord. No. 2014-3, § 1040.03, 12-30-2014)

https://library.municode.com/


9/8/22, 12:53 PM Evart, MI Code of Ordinances

6/43

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

(h)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Sec. 42-60. - Construction speci�cations.

Excavation. All excavation required for the installation of a water service line shall be open trench work

unless otherwise approved by the city. Pipe laying and backfilling shall be performed in accordance with

the standard specifications for excavating, trenching and backfilling, except that no backfill shall be

placed until the work has been inspected.

Minimum water main size. The minimum water main size shall not be less than six inches in diameter and

conform to the city's water main specifications.

Service line standards and size. The service line shall be copper conforming to the city's water main

specifications. The size of the service line shall be subject to the approval of the city but in no event shall

the inside diameter be less than one inch for a single-family residence or less than 1½ inch for multiple

family dwelling or commercial establishment.

Depth separation from building sewer and bedding. A separate and independent service line shall be

provided for each building. The service line shall be separated from the building sewer by at least ten

feet. Both conduits shall be bedded according to city specifications.

Reduced pressure principle backflow preventer. All new, commercial and industrial water services shall

have installed on the street side of the water meter, a backflow preventer as provided in this article. The

backflow preventer must be approved of the state health department.

State department of environment, Great Lakes and energy. Proposed extensions to the city water system

must be approved on a construction permit issued by the state department of environment, Great Lakes

and energy, before construction is begun.

Testing. The service line will be tested under the direction of city utility personnel at the same pressure as

the water main to which the service line is connected normally operates. The entire service line shall be

completely watertight under test conditions.

MISS DIG System. Any person wishing to perform work on a connection to the water supply system shall

notify MISS DIG at least 72 hours before performing the work, and the department at least 24 hours

before performing the work.

(Code 2009, § 1040.09; Ord. No. 2014-3, § 1040.09, 12-30-2014)

Sec. 42-61. - Cross connections.

The city adopts by reference the water supply cross connection rules of the state department of

environment, Great Lakes and energy, Mich. Admin. Code, R. 325.11401 to 325.11407.

It is the duty of the city to cause inspections to be made of all properties served by the public drinking

water supply where cross connections with the public drinking water supply are deemed possible. The

frequency of inspections and re-inspections based on the potential health hazards involved shall be as

established by the city and as approved by the state department of environment, Great Lakes and

energy.

The representative of the city shall have the right to enter at any reasonable time any property served by

the connection to the public drinking water supply of the city for the purpose of inspecting the piping



9/8/22, 12:53 PM Evart, MI Code of Ordinances

7/43

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

systems thereof for cross connections. On request, the owner, lessees, or occupants of any property so

served shall furnish to the inspection agency any pertinent information regarding the piping systems on

such property. The refusal of such information or refusal of access, when requested, shall be deemed

evidence of the presence of a cross connection.

The city is authorized and directed to discontinue water service after reasonable notice to any property

wherein any connection in violation of this article exists and to take such other precautionary measures

deemed necessary to eliminate any danger of contamination of the public drinking water supply. Water

service to such property shall not be restored until the cross connections has been eliminated in

compliance with the provisions of this article. The city is responsible for all water mains and water service

lines up to the water shut-off box. The user is responsible for maintenance of the water service line from

the shut-off box to the building as well as all inside plumbing. The city shall furnish the meter and yoke,

billing the same to the property owner on initial installation and then maintaining the same at the city's

expense. In no case shall water service lines be allowed to leak more than 24 hours without repair. In the

case of a line leaking after 24 hours and the property owner's being notified, the city shall shut off the

water supply at the water shut-off box.

All testable backflow prevention assemblies shall be tested at the time of installation. relocation, repairs

or put back into service in warm months. Subsequent testing of assemblies shall be conducted at a time

interval specified by the director and in accordance with state quality requirements. Only individuals that

hold a valid state certification and have successfully passed and approved backflow testing class shall

perform such testing. Each tester shall also be approved by the director. Individuals performing assembly

testing shall certify the results of his testing.

That the potable water supply made available on the properties served by the public water supply shall

be protected from possible contamination as specified by this article and by the state plumbing code. Any

water outlet which could be used for potable or domestic purposes and which is not supplied by the

potable system must be labeled in a conspicuous manner as: "Water unsafe for drinking."

This article does not supersede the state plumbing code but is supplementary to it.

(Code 2009, § 1040.07; Ord. No. 2012-1, § 2, 1-3-2012; Ord. No. 2014-3, § 1040.07, 12-30-2014)

Sec. 42-62. - Discontinuance of service.

Utility service may be discontinued for any of the following reasons:

For a misrepresentation in the application as to property or fixtures to be supplied or the use to be

made of the water supply.

For adding units or applicable fixtures, which changes the use to be made of the water supply,

without notice to the city.

For the use of water for any other property or purpose than has been previously approved.

For any tampering with the meter measuring the water supply as to affect its proper operation and

the registration of the water supplied or with the seals on the meter.

For waste of water through improper or imperfect pipes, fixtures or otherwise.



9/8/22, 12:53 PM Evart, MI Code of Ordinances

8/43

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

(h)

(i)

(j)

For neglecting to make or renew advance payment or for non-payment of any account for water supplie

meter or service maintenance.

For any tampering with any special service pipes or the seals thereon, or with the curb stop cock, or

any other appliance of the water department, controlling or regulating the water supply.

In case of the vacancy of the premises.

For the violation of any rules of the water department.

(Code 2009, § 1040.06; Ord. No. 2014-3, § 1040.06, 12-30-2014; Ord. No. 2018-3, § 2(1040.06), 10-1-2018; Ord. No.

2019-05(2), § 4, 9-3-2019)

Secs. 42-63—42-82. - Reserved.

DIVISION 3. - METERS

Sec. 42-83. - Supply and servicing standards.

All new services shall be metered. New service includes the conversion of a residential unit or units into

two or more additional units. Each residential unit in a multi-residential unit building or structure shall

have its own meter. The city reserves the right to place meters on services now in existence as rapidly as

possible without application from the consumer.

The consumer shall notify the director of any injury to or of the nonworking of any meter in his

possession. In case of a disputed account, involving the accuracy of the registration of the meter, the

meter shall be tested by the city. In case of such over-registration or if the meter under registers four

percent or more, the registration shall be re-adjusted to correspond, and the bill corrected accordingly.

Meter connection fees shall be established by the city council by resolution.

All meters shall be located just within the foundation walls of the building supplied, unless otherwise

stipulated by the director, and in a proper place providing protection from theft, freezing, hot water

breakage, or other causes over which the consumer has no control.

All water supplied to metered premises must pass through the meter.

No meter shall be taken off by plumbers or others, after it has been set, except under written permit and

supervision of the director.

The director shall have the right to determine the size of the meter required for any service.

It is unlawful for any person to attach a water meter to any service pipe of the city waterworks system,

unless the water meter shall be installed by the city or under its supervision.

All connections or tapping of pipes belonging to the city will be made by the city, or under its supervision

but in no case shall connections be made until a permit stating the size and location of the same, is

granted by the city to the party desiring to connect. The size of the service pipe is the same as that of the

tap, or of equal area.

The size of the taps and services shall be determined at the time of making the application for a water



9/8/22, 12:53 PM Evart, MI Code of Ordinances

9/43

(k)

(a)

(b)

(a)

(b)

(a)

(b)

service, parties contemplating the erection of a large building for a business block, factory, etc., must

determine the size of the service necessary for supplying such blocks, or factory upon its completion.

When a meter is used in connection with steam, hot water boilers, or hot water heater, it must be

protected by a swinging check valve.

(Code 2009, § 1040.04(a); Ord. No. 2014-3, § 1040.04, 12-30-2014)

Sec. 42-84. - Setting the meter.

A five-eighths-inch meter shall be furnished by the city, and shall be set, removed, or adjusted by

employees of the city, or under supervision of the city. Only one meter will be furnished for each service

connection and it may be located between the main and the building, or within the building, at the option

of the city. An owner requiring a meter larger than five-eighths inch must supply the meter at the owner's

expense and the city shall set, remove, or adjust such meter.

The consumer must arrange the plumbing at his own expense, including check valves, so the meter may

be installed at the point selected by the city and so there shall be no fixtures connected between the

meter and the main.

(Code 2009, § 1040.04(b); Ord. No. 2014-3, § 1040.04, 12-30-2014)

Sec. 42-85. - Accessibility of meter.

The consumer shall maintain a passageway to the meter and keep the meter accessible for reading or

removal at all times.

Authorized personnel shall be permitted at all reasonable hours to enter upon all properties for the

purpose of inspection, observation, measurement, sampling and testing in accordance with the

provisions of these regulations.

(Code 2009, § 1040.04(c); Ord. No. 2014-3, § 1040.04, 12-30-2014)

Sec. 42-86. - Damages to the meter.

In case of breakage, stoppage, or other irregularity in the meter is observed by the consumer, he is to

notify the city water director immediately. All repairs to the meter will be made by the city at its own

expense as hereinafter provided.

If a meter installed on the consumer's premises is stolen, or is damaged by freezing, hot water, fire or

otherwise, due to the act of neglect of the consumer, the cost of repairs or replacement will be added to

the consumer's bill and considered a part of the water bill for that period. The city manager shall have the

sole right to determine the responsibility for damage.

(Code 2009, § 1040.04(d); Ord. No. 2014-3, § 1040.04, 12-30-2014)

Sec. 42-87. - Tampering with the meter.



9/8/22, 12:53 PM Evart, MI Code of Ordinances

10/43

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Except as provided in section 42-86(b), if the city finds a meter seal broken, or other positive evidence of

tampering with the meter, the bill for the period will be estimated. Upon repetition of the offense it shall be optional

with the city to discontinue the water service and collect the amount estimated due.

(Code 2009, § 1040.04(e); Ord. No. 2014-3, § 1040.04, 12-30-2014)

Sec. 42-88. - Bypass on meter settings.

On all services, 1¼ inch and larger, there shall be installed a bypass around the meter connected to the

service pipe through a tee of the same diameter as the service pipe. The pipe and fitting material up to

and including two inches must be copper. Pipe and fittings over two inches may be cast iron or galvanized

iron but must have flanged joints. All valve material must be lead free brass. All material used shall meet

all the requirements of the Safe Drinking Water Act, MCL 325.1001 et seq.

Valves two inches and less must be globe valves, and over two inches must be gate valves.

Meter bypass shall be constructed in such a manner that the meter can be removed without interference

with the bypass. Meter bypass in valve pits will not be allowed. All meter bypass installations shall be

approved by the city.

The bypass valve will be closed and sealed by city personnel. In an emergency the customer may break

the seal and open the bypass valve. The city shall be notified as soon as possible but no later than 48

hours. If a bypass valve is found open and proper notification has not be made to the city, then such use

will be considered unlawful use of city water. In such case, water may be turned off and not turned on

again until the charges for the estimated quantity of water used, plus $10.00 has been paid.

(Code 2009, § 1040.04(f); Ord. No. 2014-3, § 1040.04, 12-30-2014)

Sec. 42-89. - Testing the meter.

If a meter should fail to register, the amount of water used shall be estimated by the city based on the quantity

used in the preceding measurement period and in the same period of the preceding year. A customer who believes

the meter may not be measuring water consumed accurately may request a test be performed to determine the

meter's accuracy. If the meter is found to be incorrect by four percent or more, the last period's bill shall be

adjusted and the consumer shall not be liable for the cost of removing, testing or replacing the meter.

(Code 2009, § 1040.04(g); Ord. No. 2014-3, § 1040.04, 12-30-2014)

Sec. 42-90. - Adjustment of meter bills.

If a meter fails to register properly, the consumption for the period will be estimated by using the average of the

same month, in the three proceeding years, when the water was measured correctly. If previous usage is

inadequate for estimation, estimation shall be based on the county or state estimation of 50 gallons, per person,

per day, usage. If a meter reader is unable to gain access to a meter for reading, after two calls, the bill for the

https://library.municode.com/
Jennifer
Highlight



9/8/22, 12:53 PM Evart, MI Code of Ordinances

11/43

period may be estimated and the proper correction made on the bill, for the next period. If a metered water bill

appears excessive, complaints should be made to the city water department immediately and the meter will be re-

read and reasonable assistance given in searching for waste of water.

(Code 2009, § 1040.04(h); Ord. No. 2014-3, § 1040.04, 12-30-2014)

Sec. 42-91. - Irrigation meters.

If an owner of a property has an irrigation meter and requests a sewer credit, a beginning of season meter read

must be presented, either by picture of the meter read or the presentation of the physical meter, to city hall for the

current year. The monthly meter reads must be submitted to city hall by the 25th of each month, to get a sewer

credit applied to the current month's bill. If the irrigation meter read is submitted after the 25th of the month, the

sewer credit shall be applied to the following month's bill. Sewer credits shall only be issued for the current year. If a

resident fails to provide a beginning of season irrigation read, for the current fiscal year, a sewer credit will not be

given.

(Ord. No. 2018-3, § 2(1040.04), 10-1-2018; Ord. No. 2019-05(1), § 2, 4-15-2019; Ord. No. 2019-05(2), § 2, 9-3-2019)

Sec. 42-92. - Upgrade of meters.

The city may from time to time find it necessary to require upgrades to the customer metering system, due to

either aging equipment or technological advances. Such upgrades are mandatory, and the refusal of a property

owner to allow the upgrade may result in discontinuation of service.

(Ord. No. 2020-05, § 2, 10-19-2020)

Secs. 42-93—42-110. - Reserved.

DIVISION 4. - WATER WELLS

Sec. 42-111. - Purpose and intent.

The city council finds that the use of wells for water may influence the movement of contaminated groundwater

and constitutes a potential public health risk. This division is intended to protect the public health, safety and

welfare and to address, in part, the presence of contaminated groundwater within the city.

(Code 2009, § 1040.08(a); Ord. No. 2014-3, § 1040.08(a), 12-30-2014)

Sec. 42-112. - Prohibition.

Except as provided in section 42-113, no person shall utilize, or allow, permit, or provide for the installation or

utilization of a well in the city.

(Code 2009, § 1040.08(c); Ord. No. 2014-3, § 1040.08(b), 12-30-2014)

https://library.municode.com/


9/8/22, 12:53 PM Evart, MI Code of Ordinances

12/43

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

Sec. 42-113. - Exceptions.

A person may install or utilize, or allow, permit, or provide for the installation or utilization of a well within the

city if any of the following exceptions applies and the requirements of the exception are complied with (note that

the person requesting this exception is responsible for developing and providing the information necessary for the

city and EGLE to consider this request for an exception, which may include, but is not limited to, a groundwater flow

study or chemical analytical data):

Proof of influence. If the EGLE determines that the use of a well is not influenced or potentially

influenced by contaminated groundwater and further determines the use of that well will remain

permanently unaffected by the future migration of contaminated groundwater, and proof of those

determinations is delivered to the city, the city manager may execute a waiver allowing the use of the

well.

Groundwater monitoring. A well may be used for groundwater monitoring or remediation as part of

response activity approved by EGLE.

Construction de-watering. A well may be used for construction dewatering, if it is demonstrated that

the use of the dewatering well will not result in unacceptable exposure to groundwater, possible

cross-contamination between saturated zones, or hydro geological effects on contaminated

groundwater plumes (i.e. the water generated by that activity is properly handled and disposed of in

compliance with all applicable laws, rules, regulations, permit and license requirements, orders and

directives of any governmental entity or agency of competent jurisdiction.) Exacerbation caused by

the use of the well under this exception is the responsibility of the person operating the de-watering

well, provided in MCL 324.20101 to 324.20142.

Processing activities. If the EGLE determines that the use of a well for non-contact heating, cooling or

processing activities will not cause the future migration of contaminated groundwater, and proof of

that determination is delivered to the city, the city manager may execute a waiver allowing the use of

the well for the permitted purposes upon such terms and conditions that the EGLE identifies.

Public emergencies. A well may be used in the event of a public emergency e.g., such as response

actions to a chemical spill. Notice within a reasonable time frame must be provided to the director of

EGLE if this exception is used.

(Code 2009, § 1040.08(d); Ord. No. 2014-3, § 1040.08(c), 12-30-2014)

Sec. 42-114. - Sources of water supplied for human consumption.

Except as provided in section 42-113, water supply for human consumption in the city shall be delivered only

from the city water system or by the use of bottled water delivered or purchased in containers under conditions

approved by the DWRPD or other appropriate agency. For the purposes of this section, the term "human

consumption" means use in food or drink intended for human ingestion, use in food preparation or food service,

use in the interior of a dwelling or dwelling unit for household purposes, and use in any personal washing or

ingestion by irrigation.

https://library.municode.com/


9/8/22, 12:53 PM Evart, MI Code of Ordinances

13/43

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(Code 2009, § 1040.08(e); Ord. No. 2014-3, § 1040.08(d), 12-30-2014)

Sec. 42-115. - Wells a�ecting contaminated groundwater.

No well may be used or installed at any place in the city if the use of the well will have the effect of causing the

migration of contaminated groundwater or a contaminated groundwater plume to previously un-impacted

groundwater, or adversely impacting any groundwater treatment system, unless the well is part of an EGLE or

Federal Environmental Protection Agency approved groundwater monitoring or remediation system.

(Code 2009, § 1040.08(f); Ord. No. 2014-3, § 1040.08(e), 12-30-2014)

Sec. 42-116. - Non-conforming wells.

Any existing well, the use of which is prohibited by section 42-112, shall be plugged or abandoned in

conformance with all applicable laws, rules, regulations, permit and license requirements, orders and directives of

any governmental entity or agency of competent jurisdiction, or, in the absence of an applicable law, rule,

regulation, requirement, order, directive, in conformance with the protocol developed consistent with the American

Standards for Testing and Materials standard #D5299-92.

(Code 2009, § 1040.08(g); Ord. No. 2014-3, § 1040.08(f), 12-30-2014)

Sec. 42-117. - Penalties and other remedies.

Misdemeanor. Any violation of this division shall be a misdemeanor punishable as provided in section 1-

13.

Building or improvement permit. No permit for building, alteration or other required permit for a

premises or improvement thereon shall be issued by the city for any premises found to be in violation of

this section, or where it is proposed to install or use a well in violation of this division.

Injunctive relief. The city may further enforce this division by action seeking injunctive relief. Any well in

violation of this division shall be deemed a nuisance subject to abatement.

Modification or repeal. At least 30 days prior to any amendment or repeal in whole or part of this division,

the city shall notify the EGLE of its intent to so act. Notification shall be sent by registered mail to the

director of the EGLE.

(Code 2009, § 1040.08(i), (j); Ord. No. 2014-3, § 1040.08(h), (i), 12-30-2014)

Secs. 42-118—42-147. - Reserved.

ARTICLE III. - SEWERS

DIVISION 1. - GENERALLY

https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/


9/8/22, 12:53 PM Evart, MI Code of Ordinances

14/43

(a)

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(b)

(c)

Sec. 42-148. - Purpose and policy.

This article sets forth requirements for discharges into the POTW authority wastewater collection

systems, treatment systems, storm sewers and septic systems, and enables the city to protect public

health, the environment and the POTW in conformity with all applicable local, state and federal laws

relating thereto. The objectives of this article are to:

Control or prevent the introduction of pollutants into the municipal wastewater system which will

interfere with the normal operation of the system or contaminate the resulting municipal sludge;

Control or prevent the introduction of pollutants into the municipal wastewater system which do not

receive adequate treatment in the POTW and which will pass through the system into receiving

waters of the state or otherwise be incompatible with the system;

Improve the opportunity to recycle and reclaim wastewater and sludge from the system;

Control or prevent discharges or potential discharges (storage of materials) to systems or areas under

the jurisdiction of this city that may impair the environment.

This article provides for the regulation of discharges into the wastewater system or other discharges

through the issuance of permits, execution of binding contracts, or enforcement of administrative

regulations.

This article does not provide for the recovery of operations maintenance or replacement costs of the

POTW or the costs associated with the construction of collection and treatment systems used by

industrial dischargers, in proportion to their use of the POTW, which are the subject of separate

enactments.

(Code 2009, § 1042.01)

Sec. 42-149. - De�nitions.

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the meanings ascribed to them in

this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:

BOD (denoting biochemical oxygen demand) means the quantity of oxygen utilized in the biochemical oxidation

of organic matter under standard laboratory procedure in five days at 20 degrees Centigrade, expressed in parts

per million by weight.

Building drain means that part of the lowest horizontal piping of a drainage system which receives the discharge

from soil, waste and other drain pipes inside the walls of a building and conveys it to the building sewer, beginning

five feet outside the inner face of the building wall.

Building sewer means the extension from the building drain to the public sewer or other place of disposal.

Combined sewer means a sewer receiving roof drainage, surface runoff and sewage.

Discharge means the introduction of wastewater or pollutants into the POTW, whether intentional or

unintentional, and whether direct or indirect.



9/8/22, 12:53 PM Evart, MI Code of Ordinances

15/43

EGLE means the state department of environment, Great Lakes and energy or its predecessor or successor

agency.

Footing drain means a buried pipe surrounding the building for the purpose of draining groundwater away from

the building footing.

Garbage means solid wastes from the preparation, cooking and dispensing of foods, and from the handling,

storage, processing and sale of produce.

Industrial wastes means the liquid wastes, solids, or semi-solids from industrial processes as distinct from

sanitary sewage.

Infiltration inflow means water that enters the sewage collection system through broken leaky pipes and

manholes or through illegal roof or footing drains and catchbasins connected to the sanitary sewer.

Inspector means a person designated by the city to perform inspection work on public utility construction and

private construction that affects public utilities.

Natural outlets mean any outlet into a watercourse, pond, ditch, lake or other body of water, either surface or

groundwater.

pH means the logarithm of the reciprocal of the weight of hydrogen ions in grams per liter of solution.

ppm means parts per million.

POTW means publicly operated treatment works.

Pretreatment means a process for treating an incompatible industrial waste to the extent that it can be

discharged to the public sanitary sewer without endangering the municipal sewage treatment system or the

watercourse to which the treatment plant discharges its effluent.

Properly shredded garbage means the wastes from the cooking, preparation and dispensing of food that has

been cut or shredded to such a degree that all particles will be carried freely under flow conditions normally

prevailing in public sewers, with no particle greater than one-half inch in dimension.

Public sewer means a sewer in which all owners of abutting property have equal rights and is controlled by the

city or a public agency or authority.

Roof drain means a system for collection of precipitation, which falls on the building roof and includes roof

gutters and downspouts.

Sanitary sewer means a sewer, which carries sewage and to which storm and surfacewater are not intentionally

admitted.

Sanitary wastewater means wastewater free from groundwater, surfacewater, stormwater, or industrial or

commercial wastes, emanating from the sanitary conveniences, including toilet, bath, laundry, lavatory, and or

kitchen sink, of private, commercial, industrial or semi-public sources.



9/8/22, 12:53 PM Evart, MI Code of Ordinances

16/43

(a)

Secondary sewage treatment means a treatment process that removes 85 percent of the BOD and suspended

solids entering the sewage treatment facility or produces an effluent that meets the established water quality

standard.

Sewage means any combination of water-carried wastes from residences, business and commercial buildings,

institutions and industrial establishments, together with such ground, surface and stormwaters as may be present.

Sewage treatment plan means any arrangement of devices and structures for treatment of sewage.

Sewage works means all facilities for collecting, pumping, treatment and disposing of sewage.

Sewer means any pipe, tile, tube or conduit for carrying sewage.

Slug means any discharge of water, sewage or industrial waste which in concentration of any given constituent or

in quantity of flow, which exceeds for any period of duration longer than 15 minutes, more than five times the

average 24 hour concentration or flow rate during normal operation.

Storm sewer or storm drain means a sewer which carries stormwater, surfacewater and drainage but which

excludes sewage and polluted industrial wastes.

Superintendent means the superintendent of sewage works of the city or his authorized assistant, deputy, agent

or representative. He shall be licensed as required by the state.

Suspended solids mean solids that either float on the surface of, or are in suspension in water, sewage, or other

liquids, and which are removable by standard laboratory filtering techniques.

Tertiary sewage treatment means any treatment process, which increases the removal percentage above that

defined for secondary treatment or removes an impurity in the sewage not required to be removed under

secondary treatment.

Waste means any material other than water, which is accidentally or purposely discarded into the wastewater

system.

Wastewater means the water-borne wastes or sanitary wastewater as defined herein, emanating from

residential, commercial, industrial or semi-public sources, singular or in any combination, together with such

groundwater, surfacewater or stormwater as cannot be avoided.

Watercourse means a channel in which a flow of water occurs, either continuously or intermittently.

Water quality standard means the maximum amount of various foreign substances in the water to be discharged

into a watercourse.

(Code 2009, § 1042.02)

Sec. 42-150. - Certain discharges, privies and septic tanks prohibited.

It is unlawful to discharge into any sanitary sewer, POTW or storm sewer, within the city, any sanitary

sewage, industrial waste, or other polluted waters, except where suitable treatment has been provided in

accordance with the standards established by the state department of environment, Great Lakes and



9/8/22, 12:53 PM Evart, MI Code of Ordinances

17/43

(b)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

energy (EGLE).

Except as otherwise provided in this article, it is unlawful to construct or maintain any privy, privy vault,

septic tank, cesspool or other facility intended or used for the disposal of sewage.

(Code 2009, § 1042.03(a)—(c); Ord. No. 2019-07(1), § 2, 5-6-2019; Ord. No. 2019-07(2), § 2, 5-20-2019)

Secs. 42-151—42-168. - Reserved.

DIVISION 2. - CONNECTIONS

Sec. 42-169. - Connection required; exceptions.

The owner of all houses, buildings or properties used for human occupancy, employment, recreation, or other

purposes, situated within the city and abutting on any street, alley, right-of-way or public utility easement in which

there is now located or may in the future be located a public sanitary or combined sewer of the city is required at

his own expense to install suitable toilet facilities therein and to connect such facilities directly to the public sewer in

accordance with the provisions of this article within 90 days after date of the official notice to do so has been issued

by the director, provided that the public sewer is located within a public easement contiguous to and not further

than 200 feet from any such housed buildings, structures, or properties and further, provided that a public sewer is

available with 100 feet of the property to be served.

(Code 2009, § 1042.04(d); Ord. No. 2019-07(1), § 2, 5-6-2019; Ord. No. 2019-07(2), § 2, 5-20-2019)

Sec. 42-170. - Private sewage disposal.

When permitted. Where a public sanitary sewer or combined sewer is not available pursuant to this

article, the building sewer shall be connected with a private disposal system complying with the

regulations and orders of the EGLE, the city and the provisions of the building code and regulations.

System maintenance. The owner shall operate and maintain the private sewage disposal facilities in a

sanitary manner at all times at no expense to the city.

Discontinuance of system. At such time as a public sewer becomes available to a property served by a

private sewage disposal system, a direct connection shall be made to the public sewer in compliance with

the provisions of this article, and sewage in any septic tank, cesspool seepage pit, or other similar private

sewage facility shall be removed and disposed of in a sanitary manner, and the septic tank, cesspool,

seepage pit or other private sewage facility shall be filled with sand or gravel.

County and state regulations may also apply. No statement contained in this article shall be construed to

interfere with any additional requirements that may be imposed by the county or state health

department with respect to private sewage disposal.

(Code 2009, § 1042.04)

Sec. 42-171. - Meters required; options for installation.



9/8/22, 12:53 PM Evart, MI Code of Ordinances

18/43

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

The owners of properties, within the city, that use the sanitary sewer system, but do not have city water, may

install a sewer meter at the property owner's expense or have the city install a meter on their private water well at

the city's expense.

(Ord. No. 2019-07(1), § 2, 5-6-2019; Ord. No. 2019-07(2), § 2, 5-20-2019)

Sec. 42-172. - Connection permits.

Required. No authorized person shall uncover, make any connections with or open into use, alter or

disturb any public sewer or any appurtenance thereof without first obtaining a written permit from the

city treasurer.

Fee. All connections with the sanitary or combined sewers of the city shall be made only on written

authorization and permits issued by the city on such forms and on payments of such fees as the city

council shall, from time to time, prescribe by resolution.

Installation costs. All costs and expenses incident to the installation and connection of the building sewer

shall be borne by the owner of the property. The owner shall indemnify the city from all loss or damage

that may directly or indirectly be occasioned by the installation of the building sewer.

Plans and specifications. All applicants for sewer connection permits shall submit for approval, plans and

specifications for all plumbing construction within the building or premises that meet the requirements of

the plumbing code of the city. The plans and specifications must be approved by the director before

construction can occur and before connection with the city sewer system.

Inspection. The applicant for a building sewer permit shall notify the director when the building sewer is

ready for inspection and connection to the public sewer. The building inspector shall then inspect the

building and plumbing construction therein and if such construction meets the previous requirements as

approved in the construction permit, a sewer connection permit shall be issued, subject to the applicable

provisions of this article.

(Code 2009, § 1042.05(a)—(e))

Sec. 42-173. - Repairs and maintenance.

The cost of all repairs and replacements of existing building sewers and their connection to public sewer shall be

borne by the property owner to the right-of-way line. Such owner shall make application to perform such work to

the director. Maintenance of building sewer lines such as cleaning or root removal from the building to the main

sewer line shall be borne by the property owner.

(Code 2009, § 1042.05(f))

Sec. 42-174. - Separate sewer for each building required; use of existing sewer.

A separate and independent building sewer shall be provided for each new building or lot split. Old building

sewers may be used in connection with new buildings only when they are found, upon examination and test by city

personnel, to conform to regulations of the city.



9/8/22, 12:53 PM Evart, MI Code of Ordinances

19/43

(Code 2009, § 1042.05(g), (h))

Sec. 42-175. - Size, slope and alignment.

The size and slope of the building sewer from the property line (or right-of-way line) to the building shall be

subject to the approval of the city, but in no event shall the inside diameter be less than four inches for residential

or six inches for multiple units. The slope of the building sewer shall be not less than one-eighth-inch per foot. The

building sewer shall be laid at uniform grade and in straight alignment insofar as possible. Changes in direction shall

be made only with properly curved pipe and fittings.

(Code 2009, § 1042.05(i))

Sec. 42-176. - Cleanouts.

Maximum distance between cleanouts shall be 100 feet. A minimum of one cleanout must be installed outside of

each house, building, or property used for human occupancy that is connected to the public sewer. Cleanouts may

be placed at the property line by the city.

(Code 2009, § 1042.05(i))

Sec. 42-177. - Materials and joints, bedding and change of pipe material.

The building sewer shall be Schedule 40 PVC piping (or greater), reinforced or non-reinforced concrete pipe, ABS

composite pipe, or vitrified clay pipe. Joints shall be tight and waterproof. The building sewer shall be bedded on a

four-inch minimum compacted sand cushion and shall be backfilled to a point at least 12 inches above the pipe with

sand. Changes from one type of pipe to another shall be made only with a suitable factory manufactured adapter

approved by the director.

(Code 2009, § 1042.05(j))

Sec. 42-178. - Building sewer near building.

Whenever possible, the building sewer shall be brought to the building at an elevation below the basement floor.

No building sewer shall be laid parallel to within three feet of any bearing wall which might thereby be weakened.

The depth shall be sufficient to afford protection from frost, but not less than five feet.

(Code 2009, § 1042.05(k))

Secs. 42-179—42-209. - Reserved.

DIVISION 3. - SYSTEM DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS

Sec. 42-210. - General regulations.



9/8/22, 12:53 PM Evart, MI Code of Ordinances

20/43

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(a)

(b)

All plans for the extension of the public sewer system that require a permit for construction from EGLE shall

approved by the city superintendent.

New public sewer systems shall not be placed in service until approved. Approval shall be contingent

upon receipt of satisfactory test results and subject to receipt of as built plans, within 90 days. Building

drain connections shall not be permitted until, the public sewer is accepted by the city engineer.

Any sewer, which services two or more separate buildings or dwellings shall be a public sewer, unless the

buildings are part of a singly owned industrial complex or a public complex where future division of

ownership is not anticipated.

Combined sewer systems shall not be permitted.

(Code 2009, § 1042.07(A))

Sec. 42-211. - Design �ows.

Sewer systems shall be designed on the basis of an average flow, which shall include not less than 75 gallons per

capita per day and the estimated flow from unusual industrial sources. Generally, the sewers shall be designed to

carry, when running full, peak flows of not less than 400 percent of average daily flow for lateral sewers and not less

than 260 percent of average daily flow for trunk sewers. When deviations from the foregoing per capita rates are

demonstrated, a description of the procedure used for sewer design shall be included.

(Code 2009, § 1042.07(B))

Sec. 42-212. - Materials and bulkhead.

Any generally accepted material for sewer will be given consideration, but the material selected should be

adapted to local conditions, such as character of industrial wastes, possibility of septicity, soil

characteristics, exceptionally heavy external loadings, abrasion and similar problems.

Sewer joints and materials shall be designed to eliminate infiltration and to prevent the entrance of roots.

All joints shall be of a premium nature.

Based on subsections (a) and (b) of this section, or on other pertinent data, the superintendent may reject

any type of sewer pipe or joint in any project whose water is proposed to be processed by the sewage

treatment facilities under the control of the city.

A bulkhead shall be installed at each outlet to an existing system and shall not be removed until the new

sewer system has been accepted by the superintendent.

(Code 2009, § 1042.07(C)(1)—(4))

Sec. 42-213. - General design.

Sewers shall be a minimum of eight inches in diameter.

Sewers shall be designed for mean velocities, when flowing full, of not less than two feet per second,

based on Kutter's formula using an "n" value of 0.013. Use of other "n" values may be permitted if

deemed justifiable on the basis of research or field data presented.



9/8/22, 12:53 PM Evart, MI Code of Ordinances

21/43

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

(h)

(i)

Sewers shall be designed with a uniform slope and direction between manholes.

When a smaller sewer joins a larger one, the invert of the larger sewer shall be lowered at least enough to

maintain the 0.8 depth point of both sewers at the same elevation.

Where velocities greater than 12 feet per second are attained, special provisions may be required to

protect against scouring and thrust displacement.

All sewer systems shall be designed so as to limit infiltration to less than 200 gallons per inch of pipe

diameter per mile per day or as determined by the superintendent.

Sewers shall be sufficiently deep so as to prevent freezing.

Sewers shall be properly vented.

Sewer pipe strength requirements are as tabulated below.

Sewer Strength Classification

Saturated Clay

Sewer depth (ft.) 3-8 8-12 12-16 Over 16

Vitri�ed clay pipe c 700 *c 700 ** —

ABS composite pipe Std. Std. Std. Std.

PVC sewer pipe Std.* Std. Std. Std.*

Non-reinforced concrete c 14-3 *c 14-3 ** —

Reinforced concrete c 76-IV c76-V *c76-V **

Dry sand

Sewer depth (ft) 3-8 8-12 12-16 Over 16

Vitri�ed clay pipe c 700 c 700 *c- 00 *c-700

ABS composite pipe Std. Std. Std. Std.

PVC sewer pipe Std.* Std.* Std.* Std.*

Non-reinforced concrete c 14-2 c 14-2 * c 14-3 c 14-3*-

Reinforced concrete c 76-IV c76-IV *c76-V **

https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/


9/8/22, 12:53 PM Evart, MI Code of Ordinances

22/43

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

(h)

(a)

(b)

Sewer depths of less than three feet require special treatment as directed by the engineer.

* Class B bedding and backfill required.

** Specified for use only under direct supervision of the engineer.

(Code 2009, § 1042.07(C)(5))

Sec. 42-214. - Manholes.

Manholes shall be installed at the end of each line, at all changes in grade, type of pipe, size, and

alignment, at all intersections, and at distances not greater than 400 feet.

A standard drop connection shall be provided for a sewer whose invert is at an elevation of 24 inches or

more above the manhole invert.

The minimum inside of diameter of manholes shall be 48 inches.

Only solid manhole covers are to be used. Where venting is required, vent pipes shall be installed;

The flow channel through manholes shall be made to conform in shape and slope to that of the sewers.

All manholes shall be watertight.

Pre-cast manholes shall have approved joints. Joints shall be wrapped with a bituminous waterproof

coating if required.

Manholes of brick or segmented block shall be waterproofed on the exterior with plaster coatings,

supplemented by a waterproof coating, if required.

(Code 2009, § 1042.07(C)(6))

Sec. 42-215. - Pumping systems.

All pumping systems would be equipped with an approved recording totalizing flow meter and a wet well

level indicator.

An emergency power supply for pumping stations shall be provided, and may be accomplished by

connection of the station to at least two independent public utility sources, or by provision of in-place

internal combustion engine equipment which will generate electrical or mechanical energy, or by the

provision of portable pumping equipment.

(Code 2009, § 1042.07(C)(7))

Sec. 42-216. - Force mains.

At design minimum flow, a cleansing velocity of at least two feet per second shall be maintained. An automatic

air relief valve shall be placed at high points in the force main to prevent air locking. Force main cleanouts shall be

provided at intervals of about 1,000 feet. A velocity reducing device, may be required at the juncture of the force



9/8/22, 12:53 PM Evart, MI Code of Ordinances

23/43

(a)

(b)

(a)

(b)

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

(11)

(12)

main with the gravity sewer.

(Code 2009, § 1042.07(C)(8))

Sec. 42-217. - Testing.

Sewer systems. Leakage tests shall be specified. This may include appropriate water or low pressure air

testing. The leakage outward or inward (exfiltration or infiltration) shall not exceed 200 gallons per inch of

pipe diameter per mile per day for any section of the system, or as required by the superintendent. The

use of a television camera for inspection may be required. Tests or television inspection shall be

witnessed by the superintendent or his authorized representative. Satisfactory results shall be obtained

prior to permitting any building sewer connections.

Pumping systems. Tests shall be conducted to verify performance curves of each pumping device

installed in the system.

(Code 2009, § 1042.07(C)(9))

Sec. 42-218. - Plans.

Five sets of plans shall be submitted to the superintendent for all proposed public sewage collection

systems. Plans that are completed to his satisfaction shall be transmitted by the city to the state

department of public health for a construction permit.

The following data shall be incorporated in the plans:

A location map indicating the one-fourth section in which the project is located.

When more than one sheet is required for the plan, a small scale overall plan shall be shown.

Each set of plans shall bear the embossed seal of the engineer who is responsible for the plans.

Two benchmarks shall be shown on each plan sheet.

Existing utilities shall be shown on plan and profile.

All existing sewer inverts must be field measured and shall be so designated on the plan.

A profile including inverts, top of casting grades, gradient, length and drop connections shall be

shown for each run of sewer or force main.

Proposed and existing elevation of curb or road, or ground above the sewer shall be shown on the

profile. Where the difference in elevation between the road grade and sewer invert is less than seven

feet, basement elevations should be indicated on the plan.

The location of stoppers and bulkheads shall be indicated on the plan.

Manholes shall be numbered on plan and profile.

An allowable type of pipe, joint and stoppers for public and building sewers shall be indicated on the

plans.

An easement shall be designated on the plan for each run of public sewer not in public right-of-way.

The minimum easement shall be 12 feet wide, or as required by the superintendent.



9/8/22, 12:53 PM Evart, MI Code of Ordinances

24/43

(13)

(14)

(c)

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Details of pipe bedding, building sewers, drop connections, bulkheads, manholes, manhole covers, and o

appurtenances shall be submitted with the plans.

Extension of the city sewer system outside the city limits shall require the approval of the applicable

Township representatives or designated official. Such approval shall be submitted prior to final city

approval.

The following notes shall appear on the plans:

All construction and materials shall conform to the city's current standards, specifications and details.

No connection receiving stormwater shall be made to sanitary sewers.

Infiltration for any section of sewers between manholes shall not exceed 200 gals./inch dia./mile/24

hours.

All elevations shall be based on Evart USGS Datum.

(Code 2009, § 1042.07(C)(10))

Sec. 42-219. - Existing systems.

When alterations prohibited; exception. No work shall be performed on existing sewer systems, which

would change the capacity of the system or would result in non-conformity with these regulations, except

by written permission of the superintendent.

Excavations near manholes or similar structures. When it is necessary to excavate adjacent to manholes

or similar structures, the excavation shall extend around the entire perimeter, except by permission of

the superintendent.

Approval to existing systems as city systems. Sewer systems not having been previously approved as city

sewers may be accepted as city sewers, provided they meet all general requirements of this regulation.

The superintendent shall cause such tests on the sewer as he deems necessary. Television inspection of

the system may be required. All costs of performing such tests shall be borne by the owner of the facility.

(Code 2009, § 1042.07(C)(11))

Secs. 42-220—42-246. - Reserved.

DIVISION 4. - USE REGULATIONS

Sec. 42-247. - Discharges restricted; authority of city engineer.

No person shall discharge or cause to be discharged any stormwater, surfacewater, groundwater, roof run off,

subsurface drainage cooling water or unpolluted industrial process waters into any sanitary sewer. Stormwater and

all other unpolluted drainage shall be discharged into such sewers as are specifically designated as combined

sewers or storm sewers or to a natural outlet approved by the city engineer or the EGLE. Industrial cooling water or

unpolluted process waters may be discharged, upon approval of the city engineer, into a storm sewer, combined

sewer or natural outlet.



9/8/22, 12:53 PM Evart, MI Code of Ordinances

25/43

(a)

(b)

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(c)

(d)

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(Code 2009, § 1042.06(a))

Sec. 42-248. - Prohibited discharges.

Except as herein provided, no person shall discharge any industrial type wastes into the city sewer system

that are deleterious to the public health and safety of the people of the city. Any waste will be considered

deleterious that may cause damages or effects as stated under general conditions or does not confirm to

the limitations stated under the specific conditions.

No person shall contribute nor cause to be contributed, directly or indirectly, into the sewage works, any

substances that may cause the following:

Chemical reaction, either directly or indirectly, with the materials of construction to impair the

strength of durability of sewer structures.

Mechanical action that will destroy or damage the sewer structures.

Restrictions of the hydraulic capacity of sewer structures.

Restriction of the normal inspection or maintenance of the sewer structures.

Placing of unusual demands on the sewage treatment equipment or process.

Limitation of the effectiveness of the sewage treatment process.

Danger to public health and safety.

Obnoxious conditions inimical to the public interest.

Acidity or alkalinity must be neutralized to a pH of a maximum temporary variation of 5.05-10.5. In any

event a minimum pH of not less than 5.5 is necessary in order to comply with 40 CFR 403.5.

In addition, the following specific conditions shall apply:

Must not contain more than ten ppm of the following gases: hydrogen sulphide, sulphur dioxide,

oxides of nitrogen or any of the halogens.

Must not contain any explosive substance.

Must not contain any flammable substance with flash point lower than 187 degrees Fahrenheit, which

might be injurious to the sanitary sewer system.

Must have a temperature within the range of 32 degrees and 104 degrees Fahrenheit.

Must not contain grease or oil or other substance that will solidify or become viscous at temperatures

between 32 degrees and 104 degrees Fahrenheit.

Must not contain insoluble substance in excess of 10,000 ppm or exceeding a daily average of 500

ppm.

Must not contain total solids (soluble and insoluble substance) in excess of 20,000 ppm or exceeding

a daily average of 2,000 ppm.

Must not contain soluble substance in concentrations that would increase the viscosity to greater

than 1.1 specific viscosity.

Must not contain insoluble substance having a specific gravity greater than 2.65.

https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/


9/8/22, 12:53 PM Evart, MI Code of Ordinances

26/43

(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)

(14)

(15)

(16)

(17)

(e)

(f)

(g)

(h)

(i)

(a)

Must not contain insoluble substances that will fail to pass a No. 8 standard sieve or having any dimensio

than one-half inch.

Must not contain gasses or vapors, either free or occluded, in concentrations toxic or dangerous to

humans or animals.

Must not contain chlorine demand greater than 15 ppm.

Must not contain more than 100 ppm of any antiseptic substance.

Must not contain phenols in excess of 0.005 ppm.

Must not contain in excess of 50 ppm or exceed a daily average of 25 ppm of any fats, oil or grease or

any other oily substance.

Must not contain phosphorus in excess of eight ppm.

Must not contain any toxic or irritating substance, which will create conditions hazardous to public

health and safety.

Discharges in excess of specific quantities or concentrations or pollutants or pollutant properties set

forth in any national standard for industrial pretreatment as set forth by the federal environmental

protection agency or its successors, are prohibited. Upon promulgation of any national categorical

pretreatment standard, alternative discharge limits or other federal or state limitations, for a particular

industrial subcategory, the pretreatment standard, if more stringent than limitations imposed under this

division, shall be considered part of this division. Compliance by an existing source with categorical

pretreatment standards shall be within the time frame prescribed by the standard in the appropriate

subpart of 40 CFR chapter I, subchapter N.

State requirements or limitations on discharges shall apply whenever they are more stringent than

national categorical pretreatment standards or limitations provided in this division. State and national

requirements are not subject to any appeal procedures.

No discharger shall contribute any wastewater containing toxic pollutants in sufficient quantity, either

singly or by interaction to injure or interfere with any waste water treatment process, constitute a hazard

to humans or animals, to exceed the limitations set forth in categorical pretreatment standards or to

cause a violation of the state of state water quality standards.

All of the preceding standards and regulations are to apply at the point where industrial or commercial

type wastes are discharged into a public sewer and all chemical or mechanical corrective treatment must

be accomplished to practical completion before this point is reached.

No discharger shall increase the use of potable or process water in any way, nor mix separate waste

streams for the purpose of diluting a discharge as a partial or complete substitute for adequate

treatment to achieve compliance with the standards set forth in this division.

(Code 2009, § 1042.06(b))

Sec. 42-249. - Interceptors.

Generally. Grease, oil and sand interceptors shall be provided for restaurants, car washes and other

users that in the opinion of the director or EGLE are necessary for the proper handling of liquid wastes



9/8/22, 12:53 PM Evart, MI Code of Ordinances

27/43

(b)

(a)

(1)

(2)

(3)

(b)

(c)

containing grease in excessive amounts or any inflammable wastes, sand, or other harmful ingredients,

except that such interceptors shall not be required for private living quarters or dwelling units. All

interceptors shall be of a type and capacity approved by the city engineer or the EGLE and shall be

located so as to be readily accessible for cleaning and inspection. Grease and oil interceptors shall be

constructed of impervious materials capable of withstanding abrupt and extreme changes in

temperature. They shall be substantially constructed, watertight, and equipped with easily removable

covers which when bolted in place shall be gastight and watertight.

Interceptor maintenance. Where installed, all grease, oil and sand interceptors shall be maintained by the

owner, at his expense, in continuously efficient operation at all times.

(Code 2009, § 1042.06(c))

Sec. 42-250. - Excess sewage �ow to be reviewed.

The discharge into the public sewers of any waters or wastes having a five-day BOD greater than 300 ppm

by weight, or containing more than 350 ppm, by weight of suspended solids, or containing any quantity

or substance having the characteristic of a prohibited discharge described in this division or having a daily

sewage flow greater than two percent of the average daily sewage flow of the city, shall be subject to the

review and approval of the city council and the EGLE. The owner shall provide, at his expense, such

preliminary treatment as may be necessary to:

Reduce the BOD to 300 ppm and the suspended solids to 350 ppm by weight;

Reduce objectionable characteristics or constituents to within the maximum limits provided in this

article;

Control the quantities and rates or discharge of such waters or wastes.

Plans, specifications and any other pertinent information relating to proposed preliminary treatment

facilities, shall be submitted for approval of the city council or the EGLE and no construction of such

facilities shall be commenced until the approvals are obtained in writing.

Where preliminary treatment facilities are provided for any waters or wastes, they shall be maintained in

satisfactory and effective operation, by the owner, at his expense.

(Code 2009, § 1042.06(d))

Sec. 42-251. - Control manholes.

When required by the city council or EGLE, the owner of any property serviced by a building sewer carrying

industrial wastes shall install a suitable control manhole in the building sewer to facilitate observation, sampling and

measurement of wastes. Such manhole, when required, shall be accessibly and safely located and shall be

maintained by him so as to be safe and accessible at all times.

(Code 2009, § 1042.06(e))

Sec. 42-252. - Measurements and testing.



9/8/22, 12:53 PM Evart, MI Code of Ordinances

28/43

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

All measurements, tests, and analyses of the characteristics of water and wastes shall be determined at the

control manhole or upon suitable samples taken at the control manhole. In the event that no special manhole has

been required, then control manhole shall be considered to be the nearest down-stream manhole in the public

sewer to the point at which the building sewer is connected.

(Code 2009, § 1042.06(f))

Sec. 42-253. - Agreements.

No statement contained in this division shall be construed as preventing any special agreement or arrangement

between the city and any industrial concern whereby an industrial waste of unusual strength or character may be

accepted by the city for treatment, subject to the payment by the industrial concern of the estimated cost of such

treatment, unless prohibited by state or federal regulations.

(Code 2009, § 1042.06(g))

Sec. 42-254. - Protection from damage or obstruction.

No unauthorized person shall maliciously, willfully or negligently break, damage, destroy, uncover, deface or

tamper with any structure, appurtenance or equipment which is part of the municipal sewage system or treatment

plant nor shall any unauthorized person obstruct or cause any obstruction in any part of the municipal sewage

system.

(Code 2009, § 1042.06(h))

Sec. 42-255. - Orders of determination.

Generally. The city may issue written orders of determination upon the request of a sewer user. Any

order of determination issued in accordance with this division shall be considered a part of this division

for the specific user involved.

Violation of order of determination. When a particular user is found to be violating the terms of the order

of determination, the city may discontinue water or sewer service to such user until such time as the user

shall conform to the provisions of the order of determination.

Annual review. Any order of determination issued by the eased flows in the entire sewer system or

increased contribution of toxic, poisonous or objectionable substances by other users of the sewer

system.

Waste characteristic statement. Any person or industry whose operations discharge wastes containing

toxic, poisonous or objectionable substances shall file with the city a written statement setting forth the

nature of the operation contemplated or currently being carried on, the amount of water required to be

used and its source, the proposed point of discharge of the waste into the sewer, the maximum amount



9/8/22, 12:53 PM Evart, MI Code of Ordinances

29/43

(a)

(b)

(c)

to be discharged per second and a fair statement setting forth the expected bacterial, physical, chemical

or other known characteristics of the wastes. Upon receipt of the statement, the city shall make a written

order of determination setting forth the maximum limits for the substance.

(Code 2009, § 1042.06(i))

Sec. 42-256. - When pretreatment required.

Where the wastes from a user exceed the limits set forth in the order of determination, the user may be

required, as a condition precedent to this right to use the city sewer, to construct necessary pretreatment facilities

to keep waste discharged into the city sewers within the limits set forth in this division.

(Code 2009, § 1042.06(j))

Sec. 42-257. - Supplementary speci�cations.

With the approval of the city, a township may adopt such supplementary specifications as it deems necessary

and proper for the construction, maintenance and operation of water mains and sewers which will connect to or

become a part of the city system, provided that the supplementary specifications shall equal or exceed the city

specification and shall in no way detract from or conflict with the intent of the city specifications and the township

system is maintained and operated by personnel employed and paid by the township. The intent of this permissive

regulation is to provide for local standards for hydrant configuration, water service fittings, manhole castings and

similar appurtenances.

(Code 2009, § 1042.06(k))

Secs. 42-258—42-277. - Reserved.

DIVISION 5. - DISCHARGE PERMITS AND WAIVERS

Sec. 42-278. - Required.

Generally. It is unlawful to discharge sewage, industrial wastes or other wastes without a permit or waiver

by the city to any storm sewer sanitary sewer, septic system, dry well or other system within the

jurisdiction of the city or to the POTW.

Industrial users; notice of pretreatment requirements. All industrial dischargers proposing to connect to

or to discharge sewage, industrial waste and other wastes to the POTW shall obtain a wastewater

discharge permit or waiver before connecting to or discharging to the POTW. The city shall notify

industrial users that pretreatment standards may be applicable to the enforcement of this division.

Failure of the city to so notify a user shall not, however, excuse violation of this division by sewer users.

New, increased or modified discharges. All existing industrial dischargers planning a new, increased, or

modified discharge shall obtain a new permit or waiver prior to initiation of operations of the new or

modified facilities. An application for renewal of a permit or waiver, which will expire, shall be submitted



9/8/22, 12:53 PM Evart, MI Code of Ordinances

30/43

(a)

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

90 days prior to the expiration date and shall note any changes in the discharge since the issuance of the

last permit or waiver.

(Code 2009, § 1042.08(A), (B))

Sec. 42-279. - Application for permit or waiver of permit requirement.

Industrial dischargers shall complete and file with the superintendent a permit application or waiver

application in the sequence prescribed by the city and accompanied by the appropriate fee. Proposed

new dischargers shall apply at least 90 days prior to connecting to the POTW. No discharge permit or

waiver shall be issued unless and until the following information has been provided or the following

conditions have been met:

Disclose name, address, and location of the discharger;

Disclose industrial classification number pursuant to the North American Industry Classification

System (NAICS), 2017 edition;

Provide a plan map of the building, works, or complex with each outfall to the sanitary sewer or storm

sewer described, and the waste stream identified. Air exhaust vents and rupture disks will also be

noted when serving areas where potential problems exist. Contaminants that can accumulate on

roofs from exhaust vents and be flushed to the groundwater or sewers during a rain will be noted.

Upon request provide detailed plans of treatment facilities; chemical or fuel storage areas, chemical

use areas; operational and support facilities that may affect wastewater control.

Provide plans of plumbing and plans of inspection or sampling manholes.

Provide plans for secondary containment at storage areas or large volume use areas to prevent

sudden losses of materials from the plant to storm sewers or sanitary sewers.

Provide a report such as the state-controlled materials report on raw materials entering the process

or support system, intermediate materials, final products and waste byproducts as those factors may

affect waste control.

Provide the following information when requested by the city: each source of water; the amount of

water from each source; the amount of water discharged at each location; a schedule of average daily

flow, peak flow rates, time and duration of flow variations and seasonal or monthly variations at each

location; a statement on the present or expected bacterial, physical, chemical, radioactive or other

pertinent characteristics of the wastes; a schedule on the variation of characteristics of the wastes,

including average daily concentrations, peak concentrations, time and duration of concentrations,

seasonal or monthly variations, corresponding flow rates or mass loadings (pounds/hour or

pounds/day).

Provide a statement on whether compliance is being achieved with this article on a continuing basis

or whether additional equipment, operational changes, or maintenance activities are necessary for

compliance with this article.

Provide a program for prompt control of potential spills, including equipment, materials, control

procedures, clean up procedures, personal protection required and requirements for notification of



9/8/22, 12:53 PM Evart, MI Code of Ordinances

31/43

(11)

(12)

(13)

(14)

(15)

(b)

(1)

(2)

plant and government officials when requested. Evaluate effects of potential losses in the sewer

systems or other discharge point.

Provide a schedule to sample, test, and file reports with the city and appropriate state agencies on

appropriate characteristics of wastes at locations, according to methods approved by the city.

Place waste treatment facilities, process facilities, waste streams, storage facilities, transfer facilities

or other potential waste problems under the specific supervision and control of persons who have

been designated by the owner as a responsible person authorized to sign on behalf of the discharger.

Provide a manual of instructions for operation of waste control facilities, the proper loading and

unloading of chemicals, for laboratory controls, for other information or requirements related to a

pollution incident prevention plan and for the training of personnel in the above areas of concern.

Maintain records reporting the final disposal of specific liquids, solid wastes, oils, radioactive

materials, solvents, or other wastes when requested.

If any industrial process is to be significantly altered as to include or negate a process wastewater or

potential wastewater, give written notification to the city and it will be subject to approval.

All permit or contract applications for new or modified permits or contracts shall be signed by a principal

executive officer of the discharger or his designated representative. All renewal applications for existing

permits or contracts shall be signed by a principal executive officer of the discharger or his designated

representative.

(Code 2009, § 1042.08(C))

Sec. 42-280. - Construction schedule.

When additional pretreatment or operation and maintenance activities will be required to comply with this

article, the discharger shall provide a declaration of the shortest schedule by which the discharger will provide such

additional pretreatment or implementation of additional operational and maintenance activities.

The schedule shall contain milestone dates for the commencement and completion of major events

leading to the construction and operation of additional pretreatment required for the discharger to

comply with the requirements of this article, including, but not limited to, dates relating to hiring an

engineer, hiring other appropriate personnel, completing preliminary plans, completing final plans,

executing a contract for major components, commencing construction, and all other acts necessary to

achieve compliance with this article.

No later than 14 days following each milestone date in the schedule and the final date for compliance,

the discharger shall submit a progress report to the city, including no less than a statement as to

whether or not it complied with the increment of progress represented by that milestone date, and if

not, the date on which it expects to comply with this increment of progress, the reason for delay, and

steps being taken by the discharger to return the construction to the approved schedule.

(Code 2009, § 1042.08(D))

Sec. 42-281. - Plan review.



9/8/22, 12:53 PM Evart, MI Code of Ordinances

32/43

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

The city shall be provided with all plans, specifications shop drawings, and operations and maintenance manuals

for review and approval prior to initiation of construction for all applicable secondary containment facilities,

pretreatment facilities, or operational facilities required to comply with this article. Direct costs for review may be

billed to the discharger regardless of whether construction is initiated or not.

(Code 2009, § 1042.08(E))

Sec. 42-282. - Permit or waiver modi�cations.

The city reserves the right to amend any wastewater discharge permit or waiver issued hereunder in

order to ensure compliance by the city with applicable laws and regulations. Within nine months of the

promulgation of a national categorical pretreatment standard, the wastewater discharge permit for each

discharger subject to such standards may be revised to require compliance with such standards within

the time frame prescribed by such standards.

If the discharger has not previously submitted an application for a wastewater discharge permit as

required by section 42-279, the discharger shall apply for a wastewater discharge permit from the city

within 180 days after the promulgation of the applicable national categorical pretreatment standard by

the Federal Environmental Protection Agency.

In addition, the discharger with an existing wastewater discharge permit shall re-submit to the city within

180 days after the promulgation of an applicable national categorical pretreatment standard, the

information required by section section 42-279.

The discharger shall be informed of any proposed changes in his permit at least 30 days prior to the

effective date of change. Any changes or new conditions in the permit shall include a reasonable time

schedule for compliance.

(Code 2009, § 1042.08(F))

Sec. 42-283. - Contents of permit.

Wastewater discharge permits may specify no less than the following:

Fees and charges assessed on initial issuance.

Limits on the average and minimum wastewater constituents and characteristics regulated thereby.

Limits on average and maximum rate and time of discharge or requirements for flow regulations and

equalization.

Requirements for the installation and maintenance of inspection and sampling facilities.

Special conditions as the city may reasonably impose under the particular circumstances of a given

discharge, including sampling locations, frequency of sampling, number types, and standards for

tests and reporting schedule.

Compliance schedules.

Requirements for submission of special technical reports or discharge reports where same differ

from those prescribed by this article.

https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/


9/8/22, 12:53 PM Evart, MI Code of Ordinances

33/43

(8)

(9)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(a)

(b)

A statement of duration.

A statement of non-transferability without, at a minimum, prior notification to city.

(Code 2009, § 1042.08(G))

Sec. 42-284. - Permit duration.

Generally, wastewater discharge permits will be issued for a five-year duration, subject to amendment or

revocation as provided in this division. In certain cases, a permit may be issued for a shorter or longer period or may

be stated to expire on a specific date.

(Code 2009, § 1042.08(H))

Sec. 42-285. - Limitations on permit transfer.

Wastewater discharge permits are issued to a specific discharger for a specific operation and are not assignable

to another discharger or transferable to any other location, without the prior written approval of the city.

(Code 2009, § 1042.08(I))

Sec. 42-286. - Special reporting requirements, new discharge, or new pretreatment standards.

Within 90 days following the date for final compliance by the discharger with applicable pretreatment

standards set forth in this division or 90 days following commencement of the introduction of wastewater

into the POTW by a new discharger, any discharger subject to this article shall submit to the city a report

indicating the nature and concentration of all prohibited or regulated substances contained in its

discharge, and the average and maximum daily flow in gallons.

The report shall state whether the applicable pretreatment standards or requirements are being met on

a consistent basis and, if not, what additional O&M or pretreatment is necessary to bring the discharger

into compliance with the applicable pretreatment standards or requirements.

The statement shall be signed by an authorized representative of the discharger and certified to by a

qualified engineer licensed to practice in the state.

(Code 2009, § 1042.08(J))

Sec. 42-287. - Periodic compliance reports.

Any discharger subject to a pretreatment standard set forth in this division, after the compliance date of

such pretreatment standard, or, in the case of a new discharger, after commencement of the discharge to

the city shall submit to the city during the months of June and December, unless required more

frequently by the city, a report indicating the nature and concentration of pollutants in the effluent which

are limited by pretreatment standards.

In addition, the report shall include a record of all measured or estimated average and maximum daily

flows during the reporting period. Flows shall be reported on the basis of actual measurement; provided,



9/8/22, 12:53 PM Evart, MI Code of Ordinances

34/43

(c)

(d)

(e)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

however, that if cost or feasibility considerations justify such reporting, the city may accept reports of

average and maximum flows estimated by verifiable techniques. The city for good cause when

considering such factors as high/low flow rates, holidays, budget cycles or other extenuating factors may

authorize submission of the report.

The city shall require the frequency of monitoring necessary to assess and ensure compliance by the

industrial user with applicable pretreatment standards and requirements. If an industrial user subject to

the reporting requirements in this division monitors any pollutant more frequently than required by the

city, the results of this monitoring shall be included in the report.

The superintendent, in his discretion, may alter the months during which the above reports are to be

submitted. The report shall include the certification statement or a statement of compliance as required

in section 42-286. This report shall be signed by an authorized representative of the permit holder. In the

case of non-categorical significant industrial users, where the POTW itself collects all the information

required for the report, the non-categorical significant industrial user will not be required to submit the

report.

The superintendent may also impose limitations on users using dilution to meet applicable pretreatment

standards or requirements, or in other cases in which the imposition of mass limitations is appropriate.

In such cases, the report required by this section shall also indicate the mass of pollutants regulated by

pretreatment standards in effluent of the user.

(Code 2009, § 1042.08(K))

Sec. 42-288. - Monitoring facilities.

Each discharger shall provide and operate at the dischargers own expense, a monitoring facility or

location for inspection, sampling and flow measurements of each sewer discharge to the city.

Each monitoring facility shall be situated on the discharger's premises, except where such a location

would be impractical or cause undue hardship on the discharger, the city may concur with the facility

being constructed in the public street or sidewalk area providing that the facility is located so that it will

not be obstructed by landscaping or parked vehicles. There shall be ample room in or near such sampling

facility to allow accurate sampling and preparation of samples for analysis.

The facility, sampling and measuring equipment shall be maintained at all times in a safe and proper

operating condition at the expense of the discharger.

All monitoring facilities shall be constructed and maintained in accordance with all applicable local

construction standards and specifications.

Construction shall be completed within 120 days of receipt of a permit or contract by an existing

discharger and prior to initiation of operations by a new discharger.

(Code 2009, § 1042.08(L))

Sec. 42-289. - Inspection and sampling.

https://library.municode.com/


9/8/22, 12:53 PM Evart, MI Code of Ordinances

35/43

(a)

(b)

(c)

(a)

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

The city may inspect the monitoring facilities of any discharger to determine compliance with the requirements

of this article. The discharger shall allow the city, or its representatives, upon presentation of credentials of

identifications, to enter upon the premises of the discharger at all reasonable hours, for the purposes of inspection,

sampling, or records examination. The city, or its representatives, shall have the right to set up on the discharger's

property such devices as are necessary to conduct sampling, inspection, compliance monitoring or metering

operations.

(Code 2009, § 1042.08(M))

Sec. 42-290. - Con�dential information.

Information and data furnished to the city with respect to the nature and frequency of discharge may be

available to the public or other governmental agency without restriction unless the discharger specifically

requests and is able to demonstrate to the satisfaction of the city that the release of such information

would divulge information, processes, or methods of production entitled to protection as trade secrets or

proprietary information, (records) for the private use, of the discharger.

When requested by a discharger furnishing a report, the portions of a report which may disclose trade

secrets or secret processes shall not be made available for inspection by the public but shall be made

available upon written request to governmental agencies for uses related to this article, the National

Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit, state disposal system permit, or the

pretreatment programs; provided, however, that such portions of a report may be available for use by

the state or state agency in judicial review or enforcement proceedings involving the discharger

furnishing the report.

Wastewater constituents and characteristics will not be recognized as confidential information.

(Code 2009, § 1042.08(N))

Secs. 42-291—42-313. - Reserved.

DIVISION 6. - ENFORCEMENT

Sec. 42-314. - Emergency suspension of service and discharge permits or waivers.

The city council may, for good cause shown, suspend the wastewater treatment service or the

wastewater discharge permit or waiver of a discharger when it appears to the city that an actual or

threatened discharge presents or threatens:

A violation of the NPDES permit;

An imminent or substantial danger to the health or welfare of persons;

An adverse impact to the environment; interference with the operation of the POTW;

Violation of any pretreatment limits imposed by this article; or



9/8/22, 12:53 PM Evart, MI Code of Ordinances

36/43

(5)

(b)

(c)

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(a)

(b)

Violation of any wastewater discharge permit, contract, or waiver issued pursuant to this article.

Any discharger notified of the suspension of the city wastewater treatment service, the water supply

service, or the discharger's wastewater discharge permit, contract, or waiver shall within a period of time,

as determined by the city, cease all discharges.

In the event of failure of the discharger, to comply voluntarily with the suspension order within a specific

time, the city may notify the department of environmental quality and commence judicial proceedings

pending proof from the discharger of the elimination of the non-complying discharge or the conditions

creating the threat as set forth above.

(Code 2009, § 1042.09(A))

Sec. 42-315. - Revocation of permit or waiver.

The city council may revoke the permit or waiver of any discharger:

That fails to factually report the wastewater constituents and characteristics of its discharger;

That fails to report significant changes in wastewater constituents or characteristics;

That refuses reasonable access to the discharger's premises by representatives of the city or its

representatives for the purpose of inspection or monitoring; or

That violates the condition of its permit, contract, waiver, or this article, or any final judicial order

entered with respect thereto.

(Code 2009, § 1042.09(B))

Sec. 42-316. - Noti�cation of violation; administrative adjustment.

Whenever the director finds that any discharger has engaged in conduct which justifies revocation of a

wastewater discharge permit or waiver, the director may serve or cause to be served upon such discharger a written

notice either or personally or by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, stating the nature of the

alleged violation. Within ten continuous days of the date of receipt of the notice, the discharger shall respond

personally or in writing to the director advising of its position with respect to the allegations. Thereafter, the parties

shall meet to ascertain the veracity of the allegations and where necessary, establish a plan for the satisfactory

correction thereof.

(Code 2009, § 1042.09(C))

Sec. 42-317. - Show cause hearing.

Where the violation of this article is not corrected by timely compliance by means of administrative

adjustment, the director may order any discharger which causes or allows conduct prohibited by this

article to show cause before the director, or the director's duly authorized representative, why the

proposed revocation action should not be taken.

A written notice shall be served on the discharger by personal service, certified or registered, return

receipt requested, specifying the time and place of a hearing to be held by the director or its designee



9/8/22, 12:53 PM Evart, MI Code of Ordinances

37/43

(c)

(d)

(e)

(a)

(1)

(2)

(3)

(b)

(a)

regarding the violation, the reasons why the enforcement action is to be taken, the proposed

enforcement action, and directing the discharger to show cause before the director or its designee why

the proposed enforcement action should not be taken.

The notice of the hearing shall be served no less than 20 days before the hearing. Service may be made

on any agent, officer or authorized representative of a discharger.

The proceedings at the hearing shall be considered by the director, which may then enter appropriate

orders with respect to the alleged improper activities of the discharger.

Appeal of such orders may be taken by the discharger in accordance with applicable local or state law.

(Code 2009, § 1042.09(D))

Sec. 42-318. - Judicial proceedings.

Following the entry of any order by the city with respect to the conduct of a discharger contrary to the provision

of this article, the attorney for the city may, following the authorization of such action by the city, commence an

action for appropriate legal or equitable relief.

(Code 2009, § 1042.09(E))

Sec. 42-319. - Operating upset reports.

Any discharger which experiences an upset in operations which places the discharger in a temporary

state of noncompliance with this article or a wastewater discharge permit issued pursuant thereto shall

inform the supervisor immediately upon first awareness of the commencement of the upset. Where such

information is given orally, a written follow-up report thereof, shall be filed by the discharger with the

supervisor within five days. The report shall specify:

Description of the upset, the cause thereof, and the upset's impact on a discharger's compliance

status.

Duration of noncompliance, including exact dates and times of noncompliance, and, if the

noncompliance continues, the time by which compliance is reasonably expected to occur.

All steps taken or to be taken to reduce, eliminate and prevent the occurrence of an upset or other

conditions of noncompliance.

A documented and verified bonafide upset may be an affirmative defense to an enforcement action

brought by the city against a discharger for noncompliance with this article or any wastewater discharge

permit, contract, or waiver pursuant hereto, which arises as a result of violations alleged to have occurred

during the period of the upset and where actual harm or interference to the sewage works occurs or

which jeopardizes the POTW's discharge permit.

(Code 2009, § 1042.09(F))

Sec. 42-320. - Penalties.

Enforcement official. Notwithstanding any other provision of this article to the contrary, the



9/8/22, 12:53 PM Evart, MI Code of Ordinances

38/43

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

superintendent (and any representative designated by the superintendent) is designated as the

authorized city official to issue municipal civil infraction citations and municipal civil infraction violation

notices for violations of this article.

Violation; municipal civil infractions. Except as otherwise provided in this division, a person who violates

any provision of this article (including, without limitation, any notice, order, permit, decision or

determination promulgated, issued or made by the POTW under this article) is responsible for a

municipal civil infraction, subject to payment of a civil fine of not less than $1,000.00 per day for each

infraction and not more than $10,000.00 per day for each infraction, plus costs and other sanctions.

Repeat offenses; increased fines. Increased fines may be imposed for repeat offenses. The increased fine

for a first repeat offense shall be not less than $2,500.00 plus costs. The fine for any offense that is a

second repeat offense or any subsequent repeat offense shall be not less than $5,000.00, plus costs.

Amount of fine for civil infraction. Subject to the minimum fine amounts specified in this section, the

court in determining the amount of a municipal civil infraction fine following the issuance of a municipal

civil infraction citation for a violation of this article shall be based on the type, nature, severity, frequency,

duration, preventability, potential and actual effect, and economic benefit to the violator (such as delayed

or avoided costs or competitive advantage) of a violation; the violator's recalcitrance or efforts to comply;

the economic impacts of the fine on the violator; and such other matters as justice may require.

Mitigating factors. A violator shall bear the burden of demonstrating the presence and degree of any

mitigating factors to be considered in determining the amount of a fine. However, mitigating factors shall

not be considered unless it is determined that the violator has made all good faith efforts to correct and

terminate all violations.

Notices; schedule of fines. Notwithstanding any provision of this article to the contrary, the amount of a

municipal civil infraction fine due in response to the issuance of a municipal civil infraction notice for a

violation shall be according to the following schedule:

Schedule of Fines

First o�ense $1,000.00

First repeat o�ense $2,500.00

Second repeat o�ense (or any subsequent repeat o�enses) $5,000.00

A copy of this schedule shall be available from the office of the city clerk.

Recovery of costs incurred by the city. Any discharger violating any of the provisions of this article, or who

discharges or causes a discharge producing a deposit or obstruction, or causes damage to or impairs the

city stormwater or wastewater disposal system may be liable to the city for any expense, loss, or damage

caused by such violation or discharge. The director may bill the discharger for such costs incurred by the



9/8/22, 12:53 PM Evart, MI Code of Ordinances

39/43

(h)

(a)

(b)

city for any supervision, investigation, sampling, administration, cleaning, repair, or replacement work

caused by the violation or discharge. Refusal to pay the assessed costs shall constitute a violation of this

article, enforceable under the provisions of section 42-361.

Falsifying information. Any person who knowingly makes any false statement representation, or

certification in any application, record, report, plan, or other document filed or required to be maintained

pursuant to this article (or wastewater discharge permit), or who falsifies, tampers with, or knowingly

renders inaccurate any monitoring device or method required under this article, shall, upon conviction be

punished by the imposition of a criminal penalty of not more than $500.00 or by imprisonment for not

more than six months, or by both.

(Code 2009, § 1042.10)

Sec. 42-321. - Records retention.

All dischargers subject to this article shall retain and preserve for no less than three years, any records,

books, documents, memoranda, reports, correspondence and any and all summaries thereof, relating to

monitoring, sampling and chemical analyses made by or in behalf of a discharger in connection with its

discharge.

All records which pertain to matters which are the subject of administrative adjustment or any other

enforcement or litigation activities brought by the authority pursuant hereto shall be retained and

preserved by the discharger until all enforcement activities have concluded and all periods of limitation

with respect to any and all appeals have expired.

(Code 2009, § 1042.11)

Sec. 42-322. - Removal credits.

Where applicable, the authority may elect to initiate a program of removal credits as part of this article to reflect

the POTW's ability to remove pollutants in accordance with 40 CFR 403.7.

(Code 2009, § 1042.12)

Sec. 42-323. - Net and gross calculations.

The authority may elect to adjust categorical pretreatment standards to reflect the presence of pollutants in the

discharger's intake water, in accordance with 40 CFR 403.15.

(Code 2009, § 1042.13)

Secs. 42-324—42-349. - Reserved.

ARTICLE IV. - USER FEES

https://library.municode.com/


9/8/22, 12:53 PM Evart, MI Code of Ordinances

40/43

(a)

(b)

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(a)

(b)

(1)

Sec. 42-350. - Purpose and intent; current fee schedule on �le with clerk.

It is the purpose of this article to provide for the payment of water and sewer system user service fees, to

compensate the city water and sewer systems for the cost of administration, operation and maintenance of the

sewer and water systems. Fees authorized under this article, as amended from time to time by resolution of the city

council, are available from the office of the city clerk.

(Ord. No. 2015-1, § 1(1044.01), 1-19-2015)

Sec. 42-351. - Authority to impose; basis for determining amounts.

Water and sewage disposal rates shall be established by the city council. Generally, such rates shall be

sufficient to provide for the payment of all expenses for the administration, operation and maintenance

of the water system as may be necessary to preserve the same in good repair and working order; to

provide for the payment of the interest upon and the principal of all bonds or loans payable therefrom,

as and when the same shall become due and payable, and for the creation of a reserve as required and

necessary to build up a fund for replacement of the water system or any portion thereof.

The city shall adopt charges and fees administering the water and sewer systems by resolution. No free

service shall be furnished to any person, firm or corporation, public or private, or to a public agency or

instrumentality. Charges fees authorized by this article may include:

Fees for monitoring, inspections, and surveillance procedures (which may be changed pursuant to a

specification in a permit or contract for administrative enforcement or optionally be included as an

element of the sewer charge system).

Fees for permit applications (permits only).

Fees for filing appeals.

Fees for reviewing accidental discharge procedures and construction.

Fees for review of plans for additions or connections to municipal systems.

Fees for review of pretreatment plans, specifications, and construction.

Fees for special studies or continuous studies to evaluate pretreatment systems.

(Ord. No. 2015-1, § 1(1044.04), (1044.05), (1044.06(a)), 1-19-2015; Ord. No. 2019-06(1), § 2, 4-15-2019; Ord. No. 2019-

06(2), § 1, 9-3-2019)

Sec. 42-352. - Sanitary sewage work rate structure.

Use of property tax revenues. Property tax revenues may be used for supporting sewage works costs only

for the construction of new collector sewers and where specifically obligated by the citizens of the city.

Determining sewage flow. To determine the sanitary sewage flow from any establishment, the

superintendent may use one of the following methods:

The amount of water supplied to the premises by the city or a private water supply as shown upon

the water meter if the premises are metered;



9/8/22, 12:53 PM Evart, MI Code of Ordinances

41/43

(2)

(3)

(4)

(c)

(d)

(a)

(b)

(c)

If the premises are supplied with river water or water from private wells, the amount of water supplied f

sources as estimated by the superintendent from the water, gas or electric supply, or from averages of s

users;

If such premises are used for an industrial or commercial purpose of such a nature that the water

supplied to the premises cannot be entirely discharged into the sewer system, the estimate of the

amount of sewage discharged into the sewer system made by the superintendent from the water, gas

or electric supply; or

The number of gallons of sewage discharged into the sewer system as determined by the

measurements and samples taken at a monitoring station installed by the owner of the property

served by the sewer system at his own expense.

Sewage originating outside city limits. The transportation and treatment costs for sewage originating

outside of the city will be borne by the users in that area. Individual agreements will be established to

provide sufficient income to cover the actual costs of the service.

Cost of discharge surveillance. Where surveillance of sewage discharges is required to determine the

quantity and strength of sewage flows to ensure compliance with this regulation, the user shall be billed

for the actual cost of this surveillance incurred by the city.

(Ord. No. 2015-1, § 1(1044.03), 1-19-2015)

Sec. 42-353. - Ready to serve charge.

A ready to serve charge shall be charged against every premises connected to the water supply system or

the sanitary sewer system whether the utility is used or not. The charge is in addition to the systems

commodity charge, which is based on the amount of water consumed. In the case of multi-unit

residences, each unit shall be charged a monthly ready to serve charge equivalent to a typical resident.

The ready to serve monthly charge is based on the size of each meter on the customer's premises and

designed to recover costs that do not vary with consumption. Costs include those of meter reading and

billing customers, a portion of the systems debt service costs, and maintenance and replacement of

meters and service lines in the collection/distribution system.

The ready to serve charge also represents an "ability to serve" cost, meaning the cost incurred by the city

in ensuring that water will be supplied through public water lines large enough to meet the demands of

each customer and the needs of a city-wide fire protection system and that the sanitary sewer collection,

treatment and disposal system is of adequate size for the city-wide demand.

(Ord. No. 2015-1, § 1(1044.06(c)), 1-19-2015; Ord. No. 2019-06(1), § 2, 4-15-2019; Ord. No. 2019-06(2), § 1, 9-3-2019)

Sec. 42-354. - Additional charge for tampering with water meters.

For illegally disconnecting, connecting or tampering with a water meter, the property owner shall be charged two

times the cost of the last monthly billing. No service shall be provided until such bill is paid in full. If not paid, such

cost shall be added to the property taxes and collected as delinquent.

(Ord. No. 2015-1, § 1(1044.06(b)), 1-19-2015; Ord. No. 2019-06(1), § 2, 4-15-2019; Ord. No. 2019-06(2), § 1, 9-3-2019)



9/8/22, 12:53 PM Evart, MI Code of Ordinances

42/43

(a)

(b)

(a)

(b)

Sec. 42-355. - Fees for turning water service on and o�; advance payment required.

A fee will be charged for shutting off and turning on water. No water will be shut off or turned on at owner's

request other than in the case of an emergency, unless the request is handed to the city treasurer in writing,

accompanied by the applicable fee. The amount of the fee for shutting off and turning on water will be established

by resolution of the city council and is subject to revision and change from time to time.

(Ord. No. 2015-1, § 1(1044.06(d)), 1-19-2015; Ord. No. 2019-06(1), § 2, 4-15-2019; Ord. No. 2019-06(2), § 1, 9-3-2019)

Sec. 42-356. - Emergency �nal reading fee.

At least 72 hours' notice shall be given to the city for a final notice reading on a property. If such time limit cannot

be given, a fee, as established by council, shall be made to perform the work on an emergency basis.

(Ord. No. 2015-1, § 1(1044.06(e)), 1-19-2015; Ord. No. 2019-06(1), § 2, 4-15-2019; Ord. No. 2019-06(2), § 1, 9-3-2019)

Sec. 42-357. - Unmetered water �at rate.

The city shall have the right to install meters as rapidly as possible for all existing services now being furnished

on a flat rate. The flat rate, per month, shall, from time to time, be established by resolution of the city council.

Meter rates shall become operative upon the installation of the meter.

Sec. 42-358. - Contracts for service.

No user shall receive service from the water supply system or the sanitary sewer system without first

completing a contract application and providing evidence of ownership of the property to be served or, if

the user rents or leases the property being served, until providing sufficient deposit with the city to be

retained by the city until the renter leaves the property being served.

No utility service will be activated without a signed contract, and no billings shall be made to "occupant"

or any person other than the property being served or a tenant who has complied with the requirements

of this section, or such other persons as the city manager approves.

(Ord. No. 2015-1, § 1(1044.06(f)), 1-19-2015; Ord. No. 2019-06(1), § 2, 4-15-2019; Ord. No. 2019-06(2), § 1, 9-3-2019)

Sec. 42-359. - Authority for tenant accounts; procedure.

For premises equipped with a separate water shut-off, in all cases where a tenant represents to the city,

by filing an affidavit evidencing the legal execution of a lease containing a provision that the lessor shall

not be liable for the payment of water or sewage system bills, then the tenant shall pay to the city a

deposit as set by the resolution of the city council from time to time as security for payment of future

rates and charges.

If the tenant fails to pay rates and charges, the delinquent rates and charges shall not become a lien

against the premises. The city shall, however, cease to provide water service to the tenant's premises

until the tenant pays the delinquent charges in full.

Jennifer
Highlight

Jennifer
Highlight



9/8/22, 12:53 PM Evart, MI Code of Ordinances

43/43

(a)

(b)

(c)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(Ord. No. 2015-1, § 1(1044.06(i)), 1-19-2015; Ord. No. 2019-06(1), § 2, 4-15-2019; Ord. No. 2019-06(2), § 1, 9-3-2019)

Sec. 42-360. - Meter reading; billing; collection.

Duty of city officials generally. The city manager shall have charge of the reading of all meters and shall

have all meters read periodically, but at least quarterly. Bills for water service shall be due and payable

when rendered. The treasurer shall be responsible for collecting all charges and crediting the proper

account.

Billing and due dates. Water bills shall be paid monthly to the city and invoices shall be dated the first of

each month. The due date for all bills is the end of the month following the issuance of the bill. The date

due is 30 days after the date of the invoice.

Late payment charge. If water bills are not paid by the due date, a five percent penalty shall be added to

the delinquent bill.

(Code 2009, §§ 1040.05, 1044.06(g); Ord. No. 2011-1, § 1, 3-21-2011; Ord. No. 2014-3, § 1040.05, 12-30-2014; Ord.

No. 2015-2, § 1, 6-1-2015; Ord. No. 2019-06(1), § 2, 4-15-2019; Ord. No. 2019-05(2), § 3, 9-3-2019; Ord. No. 2019-

06(2), § 1, 9-3-2019)

Sec. 42-361. - Enforcement; liens.

The rates and charges for water and sewage disposal service furnished by the city shall be liens on the

property served. The city shall certify those rates and charges delinquent for six months or more to the

city tax assessing officer, who shall enter the amount of the delinquent rates and charges on the tax roll

against the premises to which the service was rendered, and who shall collect the rates and charges and

enforce the lien in the same manner as provided for the collection of ad valorem property taxes assessed

upon the same roll and the enforcement of the lien for taxes.

The charges for water and sewage disposal service which are, under the provisions of MCL 141.121 made

a lien on all premises served thereby, unless notice is given pursuant to this article that a tenant is

responsible, which notice shall include a true copy of the lease of the affected property, and recognized

to constitute such lien.

When any such charge against any piece of property shall be delinquent for six months, the city official in

charge of the collection shall certify annually on April 1 to the tax assessing officer of the city the fact of

such delinquency, where upon such charge shall be by such tax assessing officer entered upon the next

tax roll as a charge against the premises and shall be collected and the lien thereon enforced.

In addition to other remedies provided, the city shall have the right to shut off and discontinue the supply

of water to any premises for the non-payment of the rates when due. If such charges are not paid within

30 days after the due date thereof the water shall not be restored until the sums then due and owing

shall be paid, plus a turn-on charge, as determined from time to time, by resolution of the city council.

(Ord. No. 2015-1, § 1(1044.06(h)), (1044.07), 1-19-2015; Ord. No. 2019-06(1), § 2, 4-15-2019; Ord. No. 2019-06(2), § 1,

9-3-2019)

Jennifer
Highlight







AGENDA REPORT 

To:  Honorable Mayor Emerick & Council Members 
From:  Don Duncan, Director of Public Works  
Date:  September 8, 2022 
Re: Request to approve Park improvements 

 
For the Agenda of September 13, 2022, Meeting 
 
Background: Recommendation of the Parks and Recreation Commission which met on Thursday 
September 1, these items is being brought to the City Council for approval. After much discussion we 
would like to start with some of the cosmetics right away and plan for the next year. We have not 
received all the quotes back for all the items but here is some to start with. I will have a presentation on 
Tuesday for you to review as well. 
 
Issues & Questions Specified: We would like to have several of the stumps removed. We received three 
quotes and I believe we will be able to complete most of these ourselves. We can rent a stump grinder 
locally by the day. We would like to paint all the buildings, so they match our branding. We would like to 
replace boards on the bridge at Riverside East. We are waiting on quotes for a new park and recreation 
plan. We will need this plan to apply for grants to help with some of the major improvements. We will 
also present other small improvements recommended in the presentation. 
   
 
Financial Impact:  If approved, we will take from the other parks (207-751-930-000) and campground 
budget lines of 208-751-730-000. We have budgeted for these items for the current fiscal year. 
 
Recommendation:  We recommend that you authorize us to proceed with all the suggested 
improvements.   
 
Attachments: All quotes include park and city-wide stump removals; they will not match the spreadsheet 
attached because I am only asking for the parks.  
 

1. RCB Contracting Quote 
2. Beaver Tree Service Quote 
3. F& B Stump Grinding Quote 
4. Excel Spreadsheet of Misc. Items 











ESTIMATE

Beaver Tree And Irrigation llc

236 north pine st
Evart, MI 49631

beaverti@outlook.com
+1 2312502332

City Of Evart

Bill to

City Of Evart
Evart
Mi
49631

Ship to

City Of Evart
Evart
Mi
49631

Estimate details

Estimate no. : 1199
Estimate date : 9/6/22

AmountProduct or service

1. Stump grinding $195.00

Guyton Park

Grinding stump and runner roots 4-6” below surrounding grade leaving chips.

Note to customer
Thank you for your business.

Total $195.00

mailto:beaverti@outlook.com
tel:+1 2312502332


ESTIMATE

Beaver Tree And Irrigation llc

236 north pine st
Evart, MI 49631

beaverti@outlook.com
+1 2312502332

City Of Evart

Bill to

City Of Evart
Evart
Mi
49631

Ship to

City Of Evart
Evart
Mi
49631

Estimate details

Estimate no. : 1200
Estimate date : 9/6/22

AmountProduct or service

1. Stump grinding $225.00

Heritage Park -
grinding six stumps 4-6” below grade leaving chips .

Note to customer
Thank you for your business.

Total $225.00

mailto:beaverti@outlook.com
tel:+1 2312502332


ESTIMATE

Beaver Tree And Irrigation llc

236 north pine st
Evart, MI 49631

beaverti@outlook.com
+1 2312502332

City Of Evart

Bill to

City Of Evart
Evart
Mi
49631

Ship to

City Of Evart
Evart
Mi
49631

Estimate details

Estimate no. : 1201
Estimate date : 9/6/22

AmountProduct or service

1. Stump grinding $1,248.00

River side park west

Grinding 9 stumps 4-6” below grade and runner roots as needed. leaving chips.

Note to customer
Thank you for your business.

Total $1,248.00

mailto:beaverti@outlook.com
tel:+1 2312502332


ESTIMATE

Beaver Tree And Irrigation llc

236 north pine st
Evart, MI 49631

beaverti@outlook.com
+1 2312502332

City Of Evart

Bill to

City Of Evart
Evart
Mi
49631

Ship to

City Of Evart
Evart
Mi
49631

Estimate details

Estimate no. : 1202
Estimate date : 9/6/22

AmountProduct or service

1. Tree removal $1,850.00

219 north cherry st

tree removal and stump grinding. brush and wood removed. leaving chips.

Note to customer
Thank you for your business.

Total $1,850.00

mailto:beaverti@outlook.com
tel:+1 2312502332


ESTIMATE

Beaver Tree And Irrigation llc

236 north pine st
Evart, MI 49631

beaverti@outlook.com
+1 2312502332

City Of Evart

Bill to

City Of Evart
Evart
Mi
49631

Ship to

City Of Evart
Evart
Mi
49631

Estimate details

Estimate no. : 1203
Estimate date : 9/6/22

AmountProduct or service

1. Tree removal $2,300.00

440 5th street -

30” storm damage maple. leaning slightly pulling up sidewalk. 

removal of wood and brush and grinding stump leaving chips.

Note to customer
Thank you for your business.

Total $2,300.00

mailto:beaverti@outlook.com
tel:+1 2312502332


ESTIMATE

Beaver Tree And Irrigation llc

236 north pine st
Evart, MI 49631

beaverti@outlook.com
+1 2312502332

City Of Evart

Bill to

City Of Evart
Evart
Mi
49631

Ship to

City Of Evart
Evart
Mi
49631

Estimate details

Estimate no. : 1204
Estimate date : 9/6/22

AmountProduct or service

1. Stump grinding $1,595.00

Grind stumps and leaving chips. 12 stumps at these location

216 N cedar
602 N cedar
511 N hemlock 
546 N main
602 N main
621 N main
624 N Main
731 N main
215 3rd st
502 5th? n.w. corner of 5th/cherry

Note to customer
Thank you for your business.

Total $1,595.00

mailto:beaverti@outlook.com
tel:+1 2312502332


ESTIMATE

Beaver Tree And Irrigation llc

236 north pine st
Evart, MI 49631

beaverti@outlook.com
+1 2312502332

City Of Evart

Bill to

City Of Evart
Evart
Mi
49631

Ship to

City Of Evart
Evart
Mi
49631

Estimate details

Estimate no. : 1205
Estimate date : 9/6/22

AmountProduct or service

1. Stump grinding $2,950.00

Combined stump rate-
combines all parks and city streets stumps previously bid as one price.

Note to customer
Thank you for your business.

Total $2,950.00

mailto:beaverti@outlook.com
tel:+1 2312502332












Park Improvement Task Cost Items Needed Approx Cost Avoidance using own labor

Removal of Grease Pole -$                              Labor / Equipment Only 150.00$                                                               

5 ft Oak Stump Removal 300.00$                        To be completed by RCB -$                                                                     

8 Stumps in Riverside Park West 150.00$                        Renting Stump Grinder ($200/Day) 600.00$                                                               F&B Stump Grinding

3 Stumps in Riverside Park East 50.00$                          Using above stump grinder 150.00$                                                               

Riverside East Bridge Repairs 370.00$                        Labor / Equipment Only 800.00$                                                               

Filling in holes from Stumps with Dirt 200.00$                        5 Yards of Black Dirt - $35/Yard 500.00$                                                               

Painting all building to common color scheme 1,200.00$                     Approx. 30 gallons  ($40/per gallon) of paint / Supplies 4,800.00$                                                           

Basketball court repair 945.00$                        

23 Buckets of sealer - $25/per

10 Gallons of crack repair - $8/per

$90 for Asphalt Repair - $90/ton

Supplies - $200 Waiting on Quote - Est. $2500

$125/Ton

$86/Ton

Volleyball Court Rebuilding 590.00$                        

 30 Yards of Mason Sand - $13 / Yard

Weed Fabric - $200 1,210.00$                                                           

10,170.00$                                                         Avoided Cost for Park Projects

3,805.00$                     

2022 Park Improvements 



AGENDA REPORT 
 

To:  Honorable Mayor Emerick and Council members 

From:  Kathy Fiebig, City Clerk 

Date:  September 6, 2022 

Re:   Reappointment to Planning Commission 

 

For the Agenda of September 13, 2022: Regular Meeting 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

Background 
Ruth Ann Northon’s term expires this month.  She has agreed to serve another term. 

Issues and Questions Specified 
Ruth Ann has been a valued member of the Planning Commission for many years and currently 
serves as Chair and is on the Administrative Review Committee.   
 
Alternatives 
1. Do nothing 
  
Financial Impact 
None. 
 
Recommendation 
I recommend reappointing Ms. Northon to the Planning Commission for a three year term, 
expiring in 2025. 
 
Attachments 
None 

 

 

 



AGENDA REPORT 

To:  Honorable Mayor Emerick and Council Members 

From:  Kathy Fiebig, City Clerk  

Date:  September 6, 2022 

Re:  Reappointment to Historic District Commission 

  For the Agenda of September 13, 2022: Regular Meeting 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

Background 
Roger Elkin’s term on the Historic District Commission expired in August.  He has agreed to 
accept another three year term. 
 
Issues and Questions Specified 
Mr. Elkins is well versed in the history of Evart and has been a valued member of the 
Commission. 
 
Alternatives 
Do nothing. 
 
Financial Impact 
None. 

Recommendation 
I recommend that Mr. Elkins be reappointed to another three year term on the Historic District 
Commission, expiring in 2025. 
 
Attachments 
None. 



AGENDA REPORT 

To:  Honorable Mayor Emerick and Council Members 

From:  Pepper Lockhart, City Manager 

Date:  September 7, 2022 

Re:  Reappointments to Parks & Recreation Board 

  For the Agenda of September 13, 2022: Regular Meeting 

______________________________________________________________________
______ 

Background 
The Parks & Recreation Board was in active in 2020 and 2021. The board was 
appointed in 2018. This board should consist of seven members. One of these 
members included the DPW Director. We had a meeting on Thursday, September 1 and 
the previous members have agreed to serve again. I would like you to appoint them to 
staggered terms. 
 
Issues and Questions Specified 
Amber Landers has agreed to a three-year term to expire in 2025 
Matt Hildebrand has agreed to a two-year term to expire in 2024 
Sandy Szeliga has agreed to a two-year term to expire in 2024 
 
Alternatives 

1. Do nothing 
2. Seek different candidates 

 
Financial Impact 
None.   

Recommendation 
Appoint Amber Landers to a three-year term along with Matt Hildebrand and Sandy 
Szeliga to two-year terms.  
 
Attachments 
None. 
 



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 1/8Page
:

09/08/2022 05:02 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 08/24/2022 - 09/13/2022
Banks: 751

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

** VOIDED **PROFESSIONAL SERVICESMAURER'S TEXTILE RENTAL971(A)75108/25/2022

** VOIDED **PROFESSIONAL SERVICES971(A)

** VOIDED **PROFESSIONAL SERVICES971(A)

** VOIDED **PROFESSIONAL SERVICES971(A)

96.84 101-265-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESMAURER'S TEXTILE RENTAL972(A)75108/26/2022

96.84 101-441-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES972(A)

96.85 590-537-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES972(A)

96.85 591-545-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES972(A)

387.38 

10.00 101-203-807.000MEMBERSHIP AND DUESOSCEOLA COUNTY CLERK3928375108/31/2022

54,192.40 703-000-214.102DUE TO GENL - PROPERTY TAXCITY OF EVART3928475109/01/2022

469.60 703-000-214.104DUE TO GENL-ADMIN FEE39284

238.85 703-000-214.210RUBBISH PENALTY39284

2,023.91 703-000-214.326DUE TO NORTH OAK ASSESSMENT39284

729.83 703-000-214.590DUE TO SEWER FUND39284

360.23 703-000-214.591DUE TO WATER FUND39284

58,014.82 

3,611.87 703-000-214.223DUE TO LIBRARYEVART PUBLIC LIBRARY3928575109/01/2022

22,768.72 703-000-214.221DUE TO STATE EDUCATION TAXOSCEOLA COUNTY TREASURER973(A)75109/01/2022

24,512.19 703-000-214.222DUE TO COUNTY973(A)

47,280.91 

783.15 101-000-425.000PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF TAXESEVART FIRE DEPARTMENT3928675109/06/2022

379.92 101-000-425.000PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF TAXESEVART PUBLIC LIBRARY3928775109/06/2022

7,917.72 101-000-425.000PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF TAXESEVART PUBLIC SCHOOLS3928875109/06/2022

195.50 101-000-425.000PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF TAXESMECOSTA OSCEOLA TRANSIT AUTHORITY3928975109/06/2022

1,988.44 101-000-425.000PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF TAXESMECOSTA-OSCEOLA INTERMEDIATE3929075109/06/2022

796.25 101-000-425.000PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF TAXESEVART FIRE DEPARTMENT3929175109/06/2022

386.27 101-000-425.000PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF TAXESEVART PUBLIC LIBRARY3929275109/06/2022

7,962.48 101-000-425.000PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF TAXESEVART PUBLIC SCHOOLS3929375109/06/2022

197.78 101-000-425.000PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF TAXESMECOSTA OSCEOLA TRANSIT AUTHORITY3929475109/06/2022

2,009.66 101-000-425.000PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF TAXESMECOSTA-OSCEOLA INTERMEDIATE3929575109/06/2022

8,202.27 101-000-573.000LOCAL COMMUNITY STABILIZATION SHAREEVART PUBLIC LIBRARY3929675109/06/2022

5,931.75 101-000-425.000PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF TAXESOSCEOLA COUNTY TREASURER974(A)75109/06/2022



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 2/8Page
:

09/08/2022 05:02 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 08/24/2022 - 09/13/2022
Banks: 751

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

6,017.15 101-000-425.000PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF TAXESOSCEOLA COUNTY TREASURER975(A)75109/06/2022

6,000.00 101-441-957.000EDUCATION AND TRAININGPINNACLE TRUCK DRIVER TRAINING,
INC

3929775109/08/2022

1,271.89 101-191-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIESSTAPLES CREDIT PLAN3929875109/08/2022

48.33 101-265-850.000COMMUNICATIONSTELNET WORLDWIDE3929975109/08/2022

543.98 101-301-850.000COMMUNICATIONS39299

48.34 590-538-850.000COMMUNICATIONS39299

48.34 591-546-850.000COMMUNICATIONS39299

688.99 

105.00 101-301-850.000COMMUNICATIONSPOINT BROADBAND976(E)75109/08/2022

81.64 101-265-850.000COMMUNICATIONSVERIZON WIRELESS977(E)75109/08/2022

126.08 101-301-850.000COMMUNICATIONS977(E)

81.65 590-537-850.000COMMUNICATIONS977(E)

81.65 591-546-850.000COMMUNICATIONS977(E)

371.02 

16.66 101-265-850.000COMMUNICATIONSCHARTER/SPECTRUM978(A)75109/09/2022

16.67 101-301-850.000COMMUNICATIONS978(A)

16.66 590-537-850.000COMMUNICATIONS978(A)

129.98 591-545-850.000COMMUNICATIONS978(A)

179.97 

** VOIDED **WORKMENS COMPENSATIONACCIDENT FUND3930075109/13/2022

** VOIDED **WORKMENS COMPENSATION39300

** VOIDED **WORKMENS COMPENSATION39300

** VOIDED **WORKMENS COMPENSATION39300

** VOIDED **WORKMENS COMPENSATION39300

** VOIDED **WORKMENS COMPENSATION39300

30.00 661-599-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESBARNETT'S AUTO REPAIR3930175109/13/2022

255.59 101-265-921.000UTILITIESCITY OF EVART3930275109/13/2022

48.05 101-301-921.000UTILITIES39302

186.84 101-442-921.000UTILITIES39302

6.96 207-751-921.000UTILITIES39302

5,016.99 207-751-921.100WATER USAGE FOR SPLASH PAD39302

82.00 208-757-921.000UTILITIES39302

5,596.43 

1,315.64 661-599-970.100CAPITAL OUTLAY-CAPITALIZEDDEERE CREDIT, INC3930375109/13/2022



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 3/8Page
:

09/08/2022 05:02 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 08/24/2022 - 09/13/2022
Banks: 751

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

150.00 661-599-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESDEWITT MOTOR FREIGHT3930475109/13/2022

86.50 661-599-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE39304

236.50 

440.00 101-210-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESDICKINSON WRIGHT PLLC3930575109/13/2022

465.00 101-191-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESELECTIONSOURCE3930675109/13/2022

75.09 661-599-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCEEVART PARTS PLUS3930775109/13/2022

22.58 101-265-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESFILE SAFE, INC3930875109/13/2022

22.58 590-537-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES39308

22.59 591-545-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES39308

67.75 

163.52 591-547-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIESHACH COMPANY3930975109/13/2022

1,674.41 591-546-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIESIDEXX LABORATORIES, INC.3931075109/13/2022

13.23 101-441-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIESINTEGRITY BUSINESS SOLUTIONS3931175109/13/2022

30.65 590-539-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCEMEDLER ELECTRONIC CO3931275109/13/2022

150.00 101-440-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIESMORGAN COMPOSTING, INC.3931375109/13/2022

50.00 591-545-807.000MEMBERSHIP AND DUESMUSKEGON RIVER WATERSHED ASSEMBLY3931475109/13/2022

30.00 101-265-850.000COMMUNICATIONSPOINT BROADBAND3931575109/13/2022

25.00 101-442-850.000COMMUNICATIONS39315

130.00 590-537-850.000COMMUNICATIONS39315

55.00 591-545-850.000COMMUNICATIONS39315

240.00 

7,916.67 209-276-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESRCB CONTRACTING3931675109/13/2022

129.00 101-441-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESREPUBLIC SERVICES #2393931775109/13/2022

10,208.08 101-526-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES39317

90.00 209-276-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES39317

122.00 590-538-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES39317

122.00 591-546-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES39317

10,671.08 

113.99 202-451-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCERIETH-RILEY CONSTR CO INC - BR3931875109/13/2022

266.71 203-451-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE39318

380.70 

195.68 661-599-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIESSCHAEFFER MFG. CO.3931975109/13/2022

43.51 101-441-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIESSINGLESOURCE3932075109/13/2022

43.51 207-751-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES39320



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 4/8Page
:

09/08/2022 05:02 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 08/24/2022 - 09/13/2022
Banks: 751

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

43.51 590-539-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES39320

43.51 591-546-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES39320

174.04 

543.75 101-265-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCESMITH LUMBER CO3932175109/13/2022

30.49 101-301-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES39321

2,765.73 208-757-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE39321

81.27 591-547-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES39321

3,421.24 

71.16 101-441-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCESMITH LUMBER CO3932275109/13/2022

5,438.57 207-751-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE39322

31.25 590-539-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES39322

15.17 591-547-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE39322

5,556.15 

130.00 101-441-840.000PHYSICALS/DRUG TESTINGSPECTRUM HEALTH OCCUPATIONAL3932375109/13/2022

223.29 101-301-719.000OTHER FRINGE BENEFITSSTANDARD INSURANCE CO.3932475109/13/2022

159.49 101-850-719.000OTHER FRINGE BENEFITS39324

19.14 202-850-719.000OTHER FRINGE BENEFITS39324

12.76 203-850-719.000OTHER FRINGE BENEFITS39324

121.21 590-850-719.000OTHER FRINGE BENEFITS39324

102.07 591-850-719.000OTHER FRINGE BENEFITS39324

637.96 

679.80 101-301-724.000WORKMENS COMPENSATIONACCIDENT FUND3932575109/13/2022

226.60 101-850-724.000WORKMENS COMPENSATION39325

317.24 202-850-724.000WORKMENS COMPENSATION39325

271.92 203-850-724.000WORKMENS COMPENSATION39325

1,540.88 590-850-724.000WORKMENS COMPENSATION39325

1,495.56 591-850-724.000WORKMENS COMPENSATION39325

4,532.00 

389.28 101-265-921.000UTILITIESCONSUMERS ENERGY979(E)75109/13/2022

222.22 101-301-921.000UTILITIES979(E)

305.70 101-441-921.000UTILITIES979(E)

317.63 101-442-921.000UTILITIES979(E)

315.50 101-448-921.000UTILITIES979(E)

80.20 202-460-921.000UTILITIES979(E)

219.69 207-751-921.000UTILITIES979(E)

131.29 208-757-921.000UTILITIES979(E)

667.73 590-538-921.000UTILITIES979(E)

735.32 591-546-921.000UTILITIES979(E)

3,384.56 



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 5/8Page
:

09/08/2022 05:02 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 08/24/2022 - 09/13/2022
Banks: 751

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

124.24 590-538-850.000COMMUNICATIONSLINGO980(E)75109/13/2022

124.25 591-546-850.000COMMUNICATIONS980(E)

248.49 

40.00 101-301-900.000PUBLISHING/PRINTINGAFFORDABLE PRINTS981(A)75109/13/2022

45.00 101-301-840.000PHYSICALS/DRUG TESTINGCROSSROADS TESTING SERVICES982(A)75109/13/2022

85.00 101-441-840.000PHYSICALS/DRUG TESTING982(A)

130.00 

45.00 101-301-840.000PHYSICALS/DRUG TESTINGDRUG SCREEN PLUS983(A)75109/13/2022

45.00 101-441-840.000PHYSICALS/DRUG TESTING983(A)

90.00 

20.00 590-537-850.000COMMUNICATIONSDUNCAN, DON984(A)75109/13/2022

20.00 591-545-850.000COMMUNICATIONS984(A)

40.00 

40.00 101-203-850.000COMMUNICATIONSDUNCAN, JENNIFER985(A)75109/13/2022

20.00 590-537-850.000COMMUNICATIONSJARRETT, EDWARD986(A)75109/13/2022

20.00 591-545-850.000COMMUNICATIONS986(A)

40.00 

40.00 101-301-850.000COMMUNICATIONSJOHN BEAM JR.987(A)75109/13/2022

20.00 590-537-850.000COMMUNICATIONSMARTIN, DALE988(A)75109/13/2022

20.00 591-545-850.000COMMUNICATIONS988(A)

40.00 

98.89 101-265-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESMAURER'S TEXTILE RENTAL989(A)75109/13/2022

98.89 101-441-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES989(A)

98.89 590-537-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES989(A)

98.89 591-545-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES989(A)

395.56 

20.00 590-537-850.000COMMUNICATIONSMILLER, JEFFREY990(A)75109/13/2022

20.00 591-545-850.000COMMUNICATIONS990(A)

40.00 

20.00 590-537-850.000COMMUNICATIONSMUCZYNSKI, PATRICK991(A)75109/13/2022

20.00 591-545-850.000COMMUNICATIONS991(A)

40.00 

13.33 101-265-850.000COMMUNICATIONSMULKERNS, CHRISTINE992(A)75109/13/2022

13.33 590-537-850.000COMMUNICATIONS992(A)



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 6/8Page
:

09/08/2022 05:02 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 08/24/2022 - 09/13/2022
Banks: 751

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

13.34 591-545-850.000COMMUNICATIONS992(A)

40.00 

11.50 101-248-956.000PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENT-EXPENSEOSCEOLA COUNTY TREASURER993(A)75109/13/2022

40.00 101-172-850.000COMMUNICATIONSPEPPER LOCKHART994(A)75109/13/2022

858.83 101-301-861.000GAS AND OILSCOTLAND OIL COMPANY, INC.995(A)75109/13/2022

3,791.89 661-599-861.000GAS AND OIL995(A)

4,650.72 

4,934.00 101-440-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESSHADES OF GREEN LANDSCAPING996(A)75109/13/2022

821.00 591-546-730.000OUTSOURCED TESTINGTRACE ANALYTICAL LABORATORIES997(A)75109/13/2022

729.16 101-210-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESWHITE LAW OFFICE998(A)75109/13/2022

729.17 101-301-801.301Attorney Fees - Police998(A)

729.17 590-538-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES998(A)

729.17 591-546-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES998(A)

2,916.67 

20.00 590-537-850.000COMMUNICATIONSZINGER, ADAM999(A)75109/13/2022

20.00 591-545-850.000COMMUNICATIONS999(A)

40.00 

        831.73 COMMUNICATIONS101-301-850.000

         90.00 PHYSICALS/DRUG TESTING101-301-840.000

        729.17 Attorney Fees - Police101-301-801.301

         30.49 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-301-740.000

        679.80 WORKMENS COMPENSATION101-301-724.000

        223.29 OTHER FRINGE BENEFITS101-301-719.000

        543.75 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE101-265-930.000

        644.87 UTILITIES101-265-921.000

        189.96 COMMUNICATIONS101-265-850.000

        218.31 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES101-265-801.000

         11.50 PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENT-EXPENSE101-248-956.000

      1,169.16 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES101-210-801.000

         40.00 COMMUNICATIONS101-203-850.000

         10.00 MEMBERSHIP AND DUES101-203-807.000

        465.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES101-191-801.000

      1,271.89 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-191-740.000

         40.00 COMMUNICATIONS101-172-850.000

      8,202.27 LOCAL COMMUNITY STABILIZATION SHARE101-000-573.000

     34,566.07 PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF TAXES101-000-425.000
--- GL TOTALS --- 

222,876.43 TOTAL OF 72 CHECKS (2 voided)TOTAL - ALL FUNDS



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 7/8Page
:

09/08/2022 05:02 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 08/24/2022 - 09/13/2022
Banks: 751

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

      1,717.92 OPERATING SUPPLIES591-546-740.000

        821.00 OUTSOURCED TESTING591-546-730.000

        318.32 COMMUNICATIONS591-545-850.000

         50.00 MEMBERSHIP AND DUES591-545-807.000

        218.33 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES591-545-801.000

      1,540.88 WORKMENS COMPENSATION590-850-724.000

        121.21 OTHER FRINGE BENEFITS590-850-719.000

         30.65 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE590-539-930.000

         74.76 OPERATING SUPPLIES590-539-740.000

        667.73 UTILITIES590-538-921.000

        172.58 COMMUNICATIONS590-538-850.000

        851.17 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES590-538-801.000

        361.64 COMMUNICATIONS590-537-850.000

        218.32 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES590-537-801.000

      8,006.67 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES209-276-801.000

      2,765.73 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE208-757-930.000

        213.29 UTILITIES208-757-921.000

      5,438.57 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE207-751-930.000

      5,016.99 WATER USAGE FOR SPLASH PAD207-751-921.100

        226.65 UTILITIES207-751-921.000

         43.51 OPERATING SUPPLIES207-751-740.000

        271.92 WORKMENS COMPENSATION203-850-724.000

         12.76 OTHER FRINGE BENEFITS203-850-719.000

        266.71 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE203-451-930.000

        317.24 WORKMENS COMPENSATION202-850-724.000

         19.14 OTHER FRINGE BENEFITS202-850-719.000

         80.20 UTILITIES202-460-921.000

        113.99 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE202-451-930.000

        226.60 WORKMENS COMPENSATION101-850-724.000

        159.49 OTHER FRINGE BENEFITS101-850-719.000

     10,208.08 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES101-526-801.000

        315.50 UTILITIES101-448-921.000

        504.47 UTILITIES101-442-921.000

         25.00 COMMUNICATIONS101-442-850.000

      6,000.00 EDUCATION AND TRAINING101-441-957.000

         71.16 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE101-441-930.000

        305.70 UTILITIES101-441-921.000

        260.00 PHYSICALS/DRUG TESTING101-441-840.000

        324.73 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES101-441-801.000

         56.74 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-441-740.000

      4,934.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES101-440-801.000

        150.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-440-740.000

        270.27 UTILITIES101-301-921.000

         40.00 PUBLISHING/PRINTING101-301-900.000

        858.83 GAS AND OIL101-301-861.000



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 8/8Page
:

09/08/2022 05:02 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 08/24/2022 - 09/13/2022
Banks: 751

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

    222,876.43 TOTAL

        360.23 DUE TO WATER FUND703-000-214.591

        729.83 DUE TO SEWER FUND703-000-214.590

      2,023.91 DUE TO NORTH OAK ASSESSMENT703-000-214.326

      3,611.87 DUE TO LIBRARY703-000-214.223

     24,512.19 DUE TO COUNTY703-000-214.222

     22,768.72 DUE TO STATE EDUCATION TAX703-000-214.221

        238.85 RUBBISH PENALTY703-000-214.210

        469.60 DUE TO GENL-ADMIN FEE703-000-214.104

     54,192.40 DUE TO GENL - PROPERTY TAX703-000-214.102

      1,315.64 CAPITAL OUTLAY-CAPITALIZED661-599-970.100

        161.59 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE661-599-930.000

      3,791.89 GAS AND OIL661-599-861.000

        180.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES661-599-801.000

        195.68 OPERATING SUPPLIES661-599-740.000

      1,495.56 WORKMENS COMPENSATION591-850-724.000

        102.07 OTHER FRINGE BENEFITS591-850-719.000

         15.17 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE591-547-930.000

        244.79 OPERATING SUPPLIES591-547-740.000

        735.32 UTILITIES591-546-921.000

        254.24 COMMUNICATIONS591-546-850.000

        851.17 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES591-546-801.000



StatusDepositCheck AmountGrossNameCheck NumberBankCheck Date

DirectPhysicalCheck

For Check Dates 08/24/2022 to 09/13/2022 

09/08/2022 02:57 PM Check Register Report For City Of Evart Page 1 of 3

Cleared826.780.001,250.00 BEAM, JOHN          DD705375009/07/2022

Cleared367.080.00416.67 BRUGGEMA, TODD J         DD705475009/07/2022

Cleared249.820.00288.00 CLARK, RILEE N         DD705575009/07/2022

Cleared665.270.00932.69 DUNCAN, JENNIFER          DD705675009/07/2022

Cleared1,024.200.001,288.46 DUNCAN III, DONALD L         DD705775009/07/2022

Cleared300.050.00352.31 FIEBIG, KATHY          DD705875009/07/2022

Cleared221.820.00252.00 HIGGINS, JERALD J         DD705975009/07/2022

Cleared645.620.00840.00 HYDEN, JESSE          DD706075009/07/2022

Cleared509.700.00680.00 JARRETT, EDWARD C         DD706175009/07/2022

Cleared1,087.520.001,253.75 KIRWIN, DAVID          DD706275009/07/2022

Cleared1,271.790.001,756.59 LOCKHART, PEPPER L         DD706375009/07/2022

Cleared625.730.00965.20 MARTIN, DALE          DD706475009/07/2022

Cleared99.110.00112.50 MCLACHLAN-WOOSLEY, ROSEMARY M         DD706575009/07/2022

Cleared555.440.00782.00 MILLER, JEFFERY A         DD706675009/07/2022

Cleared668.130.001,056.00 MUCZYNSKI, PATRICK          DD706775009/07/2022

Cleared619.980.00800.00 MULKERNS, CHRISTINE L         DD706875009/07/2022

Cleared544.240.00639.39 NEWSOME, LISA R         DD706975009/07/2022

Cleared290.540.00340.00 PARISH JR., WILLIAM E         DD707075009/07/2022

Cleared306.160.00360.00 SHERMAN, GREGG A         DD707175009/07/2022

Cleared175.240.00189.75 SWIFT-ECKERT, TERESA M         DD707275009/07/2022

Cleared117.870.00133.80 TUPPER, VICTORIA          DD707375009/07/2022

Cleared723.670.00904.28 WILSON, CHAD W         DD707475009/07/2022

Cleared504.880.00758.00 ZINGER, ADAM          DD707575009/07/2022

Open0.003,358.453,358.45FEDERAL 941          EFT86075009/07/2022

Open0.0060.0060.00MAURERS          2335175008/31/2022

Open0.00122.00122.00ICMA RC-HEADQUARTERS          2335275008/31/2022

Open0.00100.52100.52P.O.L.C.          2335375008/31/2022

Open0.00234.00234.00TEAMSTERS LOCAL 214          2335475008/31/2022

Cleared906.360.001,250.00 BEAM, JOHN          DD702775008/31/2022

Cleared399.120.00480.00 CLARK, RILEE N         DD702875008/31/2022



StatusDepositCheck AmountGrossNameCheck NumberBankCheck Date

DirectPhysicalCheck

For Check Dates 08/24/2022 to 09/13/2022 

09/08/2022 02:57 PM Check Register Report For City Of Evart Page 2 of 3

Cleared721.590.00932.69 DUNCAN, JENNIFER          DD702975008/31/2022

Cleared1,024.220.001,288.46 DUNCAN III, DONALD L         DD703075008/31/2022

Cleared284.450.00332.31 FIEBIG, KATHY          DD703175008/31/2022

Cleared238.210.00273.00 HIGGINS, JERALD J         DD703275008/31/2022

Cleared698.650.00840.00 HYDEN, JESSE          DD703375008/31/2022

Cleared519.450.00680.00 JARRETT, EDWARD C         DD703475008/31/2022

Cleared1,271.790.001,756.59 LOCKHART, PEPPER L         DD703575008/31/2022

Cleared639.470.00965.20 MARTIN, DALE          DD703675008/31/2022

Cleared56.170.0063.75 MCLACHLAN-WOOSLEY, ROSEMARY M         DD703775008/31/2022

Cleared488.440.00680.00 MILLER, JEFFERY A         DD703875008/31/2022

Cleared887.510.001,293.60 MUCZYNSKI, PATRICK          DD703975008/31/2022

Cleared679.340.00815.00 MULKERNS, CHRISTINE L         DD704075008/31/2022

Cleared625.250.00744.28 NEWSOME, LISA R         DD704175008/31/2022

Cleared290.540.00340.00 PARISH JR., WILLIAM E         DD704275008/31/2022

Cleared306.160.00360.00 SHERMAN, GREGG A         DD704375008/31/2022

Cleared242.940.00263.06 SWIFT-ECKERT, TERESA M         DD704475008/31/2022

Cleared110.080.00124.95 TUPPER, VICTORIA          DD704575008/31/2022

Cleared748.800.00904.28 WILSON, CHAD W         DD704675008/31/2022

Cleared515.880.00758.00 ZINGER, ADAM          DD704775008/31/2022

Open0.003,281.593,281.59FEDERAL 941          EFT85275008/31/2022

Open0.002,854.342,854.34BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD         EFT85575008/31/2022

Open0.008,855.708,855.70MICHIGAN CONF OF TEAMSTERS         EFT85675008/31/2022

Open0.00961.01961.01ALERUS FINANCIAL          EFT85775008/31/2022

Open0.009,987.239,987.23MERS OF MICHIGAN         EFT85975008/31/2022

Cleared826.800.001,250.00 BEAM, JOHN          DD700075008/24/2022

Cleared249.840.00288.00 CLARK, RILEE N         DD700175008/24/2022

Cleared698.440.00932.69 DUNCAN, JENNIFER          DD700275008/24/2022

Cleared253.200.00292.31 FIEBIG, KATHY          DD700375008/24/2022

Cleared597.230.00735.00 HIGGINS, JERALD J         DD700475008/24/2022

Cleared670.760.00840.00 HYDEN, JESSE          DD700575008/24/2022



StatusDepositCheck AmountGrossNameCheck NumberBankCheck Date

DirectPhysicalCheck

For Check Dates 08/24/2022 to 09/13/2022 

09/08/2022 02:57 PM Check Register Report For City Of Evart Page 3 of 3

Cleared509.700.00680.00 JARRETT, EDWARD C         DD700675008/24/2022

Cleared1,271.790.001,756.59 LOCKHART, PEPPER L         DD700775008/24/2022

Cleared625.990.00965.21 MARTIN, DALE          DD700875008/24/2022

Cleared56.160.0063.75 MCLACHLAN-WOOSLEY, ROSEMARY M         DD700975008/24/2022

Cleared555.450.00782.00 MILLER, JEFFERY A         DD701075008/24/2022

Cleared742.080.001,135.20 MUCZYNSKI, PATRICK          DD701175008/24/2022

Cleared619.980.00800.00 MULKERNS, CHRISTINE L         DD701275008/24/2022

Cleared625.270.00744.28 NEWSOME, LISA R         DD701375008/24/2022

Cleared303.830.00357.00 PARISH JR., WILLIAM E         DD701475008/24/2022

Cleared306.160.00360.00 SHERMAN, GREGG A         DD701575008/24/2022

Cleared171.250.00185.44 SWIFT-ECKERT, TERESA M         DD701675008/24/2022

Cleared136.510.00154.95 TUPPER, VICTORIA          DD701775008/24/2022

Cleared748.800.00904.28 WILSON, CHAD W         DD701875008/24/2022

Cleared505.120.00758.00 ZINGER, ADAM          DD701975008/24/2022

Open0.002,956.002,956.00FEDERAL 941          EFT84975008/24/2022

Open0.002,986.652,986.65STATE OF MICHIGAN          EFT85875008/24/2022

72

4

Total Check Stubs:

Total Physical Checks:

34,529.4235,757.4981,238.75Number of Checks:  076Totals:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 1/22Page:09/08/2022 02:56 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: City Of Evart

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 16.99

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 08/31/2022

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022-23

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND
Revenues
Dept 000 - 728

30.04 367,841.89 120,967.90 157,958.11 525,800.00 CURRENT PROPERTY TAXES101-000-403.000
0.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 TRAILER TAXES101-000-424.000

101.19 (280.43)23,880.43 23,880.43 23,600.00 PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF TAXES101-000-425.000
0.00 56,450.00 0.00 0.00 56,450.00 MARIJUANA TAX101-000-439.000

12.77 9,595.35 1,073.16 1,404.65 11,000.00 ADMIN FEE-PROPERTY TAXES101-000-443.000
0.00 5,600.00 0.00 0.00 5,600.00 PENALTIES AND INTEREST ON TAX101-000-445.000

23.79 12,802.57 3,997.43 3,997.43 16,800.00 CABLE FRANCHISE101-000-452.000
100.00 (32.00)30.00 32.00 0.00 MISCELLANEOUS PERMITS101-000-453.000
10.00 900.00 60.00 100.00 1,000.00 ZONING APPLICATION FEES101-000-478.000
100.00 (600.00)600.00 600.00 0.00 FIRE DEPT FINANCIALS 101-000-485.000
100.00 (400.00)400.00 400.00 0.00 HOUSING COMM. PAYROLL 101-000-486.000

0.00 115,000.00 0.00 0.00 115,000.00 LOCAL COMMUNITY STABILIZATION SHARE101-000-573.000
21.40 132,835.93 36,164.07 36,164.07 169,000.00 STATE SHARED REVENUE101-000-574.000
0.00 20,000.00 0.00 0.00 20,000.00 MEDICAL MARIJUANA APP FEE101-000-579.000

20.41 87,553.39 11,326.78 22,446.61 110,000.00 REFUSE COLLECTION101-000-627.000
0.00 175.00 0.00 0.00 175.00 FINES AND FORFEITS101-000-650.000

12.03 1,143.65 158.69 156.35 1,300.00 INTEREST AND PENALTIES101-000-660.000
(7.28)1,609.19 0.00 (109.19)1,500.00 INTEREST-REVENUE101-000-665.000
0.00 210,000.00 0.00 0.00 210,000.00 APPROPRIATION OF FUND BALANCE 101-000-684.100

10.49 17,901.96 2,098.04 2,098.04 20,000.00 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE101-000-685.000
100.00 (1.00)0.00 1.00 0.00 DONATIONS101-000-685.100

19.35 1,038,195.50 200,756.50 249,129.50 1,287,325.00 Total Dept 000 - 728

Dept 301 - POLICE
0.00 64,999.03 0.97 0.97 65,000.00 PUBLIC SAFETY MILLAGE101-301-480.100

40.00 900.00 300.00 600.00 1,500.00 DIVERSION SURVEY FEES101-301-483.000
0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 COMMUNITY POLICE FUND101-301-572.301
0.00 1,600.00 0.00 0.00 1,600.00 LIQUOR LICENSES101-301-574.578

25.00 225.00 65.00 75.00 300.00 POLICE REPORTS/ FOIA ONLY 101-301-610.000
5.61 1,415.85 47.85 84.15 1,500.00 FINES/TICKETS/FORFEITS101-301-650.000

75.00 225.00 0.00 675.00 900.00 RESTITUTION101-301-681.000
0.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE101-301-685.000
0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 PA 302 REVENUE101-301-685.302

1.97 71,364.88 413.82 1,435.12 72,800.00 Total Dept 301 - POLICE

Dept 751 - RECREATION
100.00 (11,310.00)11,310.00 11,310.00 0.00 POP WARNER REVENUE101-751-630.500

100.00 (11,310.00)11,310.00 11,310.00 0.00 Total Dept 751 - RECREATION

19.25 1,098,250.38 212,480.32 261,874.62 1,360,125.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 000 - 728

17.78 205.54 0.00 44.46 250.00 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE101-000-955.000

17.78 205.54 0.00 44.46 250.00 Total Dept 000 - 728



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 2/22Page:09/08/2022 02:56 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: City Of Evart

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 16.99

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 08/31/2022

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022-23

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND
Expenditures
Dept 101 - CITY  COUNCIL

21.45 7,855.00 0.00 2,145.00 10,000.00 SAL/WAGES, PT101-101-707.000
0.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-101-740.000
0.00 1,055.00 0.00 0.00 1,055.00 EDUCATION AND TRAINING101-101-957.000

19.23 9,010.00 0.00 2,145.00 11,155.00 Total Dept 101 - CITY  COUNCIL

Dept 171 - MAYOR
0.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 SAL/WAGES, PT101-171-707.000
0.00 85.00 0.00 0.00 85.00 MEMBERSHIP AND DUES101-171-807.000
0.00 1,500.00 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 TRAVEL EXPENSES101-171-860.000
0.00 600.00 0.00 0.00 600.00 EDUCATION AND TRAINING101-171-957.000

0.00 3,185.00 0.00 0.00 3,185.00 Total Dept 171 - MAYOR

Dept 172 - CITY MANAGER
15.81 27,782.97 2,898.35 5,217.03 33,000.00 SALARIES101-172-702.000
0.00 1,800.00 0.00 0.00 1,800.00 MEMBERSHIP AND DUES101-172-807.000

16.67 400.00 0.00 80.00 480.00 COMMUNICATIONS101-172-850.000
0.00 1,500.00 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 TRAVEL EXPENSES101-172-860.000
6.00 3,760.00 240.00 240.00 4,000.00 EDUCATION AND TRAINING101-172-957.000

13.58 35,242.97 3,138.35 5,537.03 40,780.00 Total Dept 172 - CITY MANAGER

Dept 191 - ELECTIONS
30.91 2,763.70 1,206.30 1,236.30 4,000.00 SAL/WAGES, PT101-191-707.000
9.55 2,894.38 118.26 305.62 3,200.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-191-740.000

85.12 133.89 198.40 766.11 900.00 POSTAGE & SHIPPING101-191-741.000
25.00 1,350.00 450.00 450.00 1,800.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES101-191-801.000
134.96 (34.96)119.75 134.96 100.00 TRAVEL EXPENSES101-191-860.000

0.00 600.00 0.00 0.00 600.00 PUBLISHING/PRINTING101-191-900.000
0.00 300.00 0.00 0.00 300.00 EDUCATION AND TRAINING101-191-957.000

26.54 8,007.01 2,092.71 2,892.99 10,900.00 Total Dept 191 - ELECTIONS

Dept 202 - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
0.00 11,125.00 0.00 0.00 11,125.00 INDEPENDENT AUDITOR SERVICES101-202-803.000

0.00 11,125.00 0.00 0.00 11,125.00 Total Dept 202 - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Dept 203 - TREASURER-ACCOUNTS MANAGER
16.79 13,729.82 1,538.98 2,770.18 16,500.00 SALARIES101-203-702.000
0.00 650.00 0.00 0.00 650.00 POSTAGE & SHIPPING101-203-741.000

14.00 430.00 70.00 70.00 500.00 MEMBERSHIP AND DUES101-203-807.000
16.00 420.00 0.00 80.00 500.00 COMMUNICATIONS101-203-850.000
0.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 TRAVEL EXPENSES101-203-860.000

50.87 884.42 0.00 915.58 1,800.00 PUBLISHING/PRINTING101-203-900.000
0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 COMPUTERS/EQUIPMENT/IT101-203-932.000
0.00 1,600.00 0.00 0.00 1,600.00 EDUCATION AND TRAINING101-203-957.000



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 3/22Page:09/08/2022 02:56 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: City Of Evart

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 16.99

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 08/31/2022

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022-23

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND
Expenditures

16.64 19,214.24 1,608.98 3,835.76 23,050.00 Total Dept 203 - TREASURER-ACCOUNTS MANAGER

Dept 209 - ASSESSOR
16.67 12,537.50 1,253.75 2,507.50 15,045.00 SALARY AND WAGES - HOURLY101-209-702.000
0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-209-740.000
0.00 350.00 0.00 0.00 350.00 POSTAGE & SHIPPING101-209-741.000
0.00 800.00 0.00 0.00 800.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES101-209-801.000
0.00 700.00 0.00 0.00 700.00 MEMBERSHIP AND DUES101-209-807.000

14.48 384.85 65.15 65.15 450.00 PUBLISHING/PRINTING101-209-900.000

14.42 15,272.35 1,318.90 2,572.65 17,845.00 Total Dept 209 - ASSESSOR

Dept 210 - ATTORNEY, PROF. SERVICES
13.46 12,981.67 1,289.17 2,018.33 15,000.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES101-210-801.000

13.46 12,981.67 1,289.17 2,018.33 15,000.00 Total Dept 210 - ATTORNEY, PROF. SERVICES

Dept 215 - CITY CLERK
17.31 8,269.21 961.55 1,730.79 10,000.00 SALARIES101-215-702.000
0.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES101-215-727.000
0.00 300.00 0.00 0.00 300.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-215-740.000
0.00 200.00 0.00 0.00 200.00 MEMBERSHIP AND DUES101-215-807.000
0.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 TRAVEL EXPENSES101-215-860.000
0.00 1,900.00 0.00 0.00 1,900.00 PUBLISHING/PRINTING101-215-900.000

13.74 10,869.21 961.55 1,730.79 12,600.00 Total Dept 215 - CITY CLERK

Dept 242 - PLANNING & ZONING
0.00 2,000.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 CODE ENFORCEMENT101-242-706.000

90.00 10.00 90.00 90.00 100.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-242-740.000
0.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 POSTAGE & SHIPPING101-242-741.000
0.50 4,975.00 0.00 25.00 5,000.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES101-242-801.000
0.00 300.00 0.00 0.00 300.00 TRAVEL EXPENSES101-242-860.000
0.00 3,000.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 MASTER LAND USE PLAN101-242-885.000
0.00 400.00 0.00 0.00 400.00 PUBLISHING/PRINTING101-242-900.000
8.13 735.00 0.00 65.00 800.00 EDUCATION AND TRAINING101-242-957.000

1.54 11,520.00 90.00 180.00 11,700.00 Total Dept 242 - PLANNING & ZONING

Dept 247 - BOARD OF REVIEW
0.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 SAL/WAGES, PT101-247-707.000

0.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 Total Dept 247 - BOARD OF REVIEW

Dept 248 - TAX REBATE
100.00 (487.42)487.42 487.42 0.00 PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENT-EXPENSE101-248-956.000

100.00 (487.42)487.42 487.42 0.00 Total Dept 248 - TAX REBATE



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 4/22Page:09/08/2022 02:56 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: City Of Evart

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 16.99

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 08/31/2022

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022-23

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND
Expenditures
Dept 265 - CITY HALL

7.33 5,560.00 440.00 440.00 6,000.00 SALARY AND WAGES - HOURLY101-265-706.000
4.97 1,140.32 59.68 59.68 1,200.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES101-265-727.000
4.83 1,427.50 71.01 72.50 1,500.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-265-740.000

10.75 2,766.66 0.00 333.34 3,100.00 POSTAGE & SHIPPING101-265-741.000
2.43 10,245.34 119.42 254.66 10,500.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES101-265-801.000

134.50 (172.50)0.00 672.50 500.00 MEMBERSHIP AND DUES101-265-807.000
0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 PHYSICALS/DRUG TESTING101-265-840.000

17.03 1,659.43 52.63 340.57 2,000.00 COMMUNICATIONS101-265-850.000
14.01 1,719.89 168.88 280.11 2,000.00 PUBLISHING/PRINTING101-265-900.000
34.84 2,606.30 751.43 1,393.70 4,000.00 UTILITIES101-265-921.000
0.00 2,950.00 0.00 0.00 2,950.00 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE101-265-930.000
8.02 4,598.88 330.45 401.12 5,000.00 COMPUTERS/EQUIPMENT/IT101-265-932.000

10.16 449.21 42.17 50.79 500.00 EQUIPMENT RENTAL101-265-943.000
0.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE101-265-955.000

10.79 35,551.03 2,035.67 4,298.97 39,850.00 Total Dept 265 - CITY HALL

Dept 269 - GARDEN CLUB
30.08 594.35 0.00 255.65 850.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-269-740.000

30.08 594.35 0.00 255.65 850.00 Total Dept 269 - GARDEN CLUB

Dept 301 - POLICE
0.00 938.00 0.00 0.00 938.00 PA 302 EXPENDITURES101-301-681.302

16.95 58,550.00 6,250.00 11,950.00 70,500.00 SALARIES101-301-702.000
9.50 162,901.48 8,721.40 17,098.52 180,000.00 SALARY AND WAGES - HOURLY101-301-706.000

10.08 2,248.00 0.00 252.00 2,500.00 OVERTIME WAGES101-301-706.100
18.09 21,296.00 2,562.00 4,704.00 26,000.00 SAL/WAGES, PT101-301-707.000
11.36 23,045.36 1,555.69 2,954.64 26,000.00 POLICE SECRETARY101-301-707.100
8.15 2,296.27 203.73 203.73 2,500.00 OTHER FRINGE BENEFITS101-301-719.000

20.35 2,628.45 0.00 671.55 3,300.00 WORKMENS COMPENSATION101-301-724.000
33.98 990.32 311.84 509.68 1,500.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES101-301-727.000
5.33 3,786.97 160.97 213.03 4,000.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-301-740.000
0.00 400.00 0.00 0.00 400.00 POSTAGE & SHIPPING101-301-741.000
0.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 AMMUNITION101-301-744.000

19.05 404.75 95.25 95.25 500.00 FIREARMS101-301-745.000
0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 Community Policing Fund101-301-746.000

31.46 1,370.84 310.50 629.16 2,000.00 UNIFORMS101-301-758.006
6.92 2,420.00 0.00 180.00 2,600.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES101-301-801.000

14.58 8,541.67 729.16 1,458.33 10,000.00 Attorney Fees - Police101-301-801.301
10.00 540.00 0.00 60.00 600.00 MEMBERSHIP AND DUES101-301-807.000
37.50 1,250.00 750.00 750.00 2,000.00 PHYSICALS/DRUG TESTING101-301-840.000
100.63 (3.48)0.00 553.48 550.00 INVESTIGATIONS101-301-841.000
22.43 4,770.32 826.33 1,379.68 6,150.00 COMMUNICATIONS101-301-850.000
1.45 1,724.59 0.00 25.41 1,750.00 TRAVEL EXPENSES101-301-860.000

22.29 6,216.86 788.91 1,783.14 8,000.00 GAS AND OIL101-301-861.000
27.65 615.00 50.00 235.00 850.00 PUBLISHING/PRINTING101-301-900.000
48.59 7,248.28 0.00 6,851.72 14,100.00 LIABILITY INSURANCE101-301-912.000
14.71 3,838.15 354.81 661.85 4,500.00 UTILITIES101-301-921.000
0.00 3,000.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE101-301-930.000

17.90 4,104.81 40.55 895.19 5,000.00 VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINTENANCE101-301-931.000
7.22 7,422.05 389.32 577.95 8,000.00 COMPUTERS/EQUIPMENT/IT101-301-932.000

10.26 2,692.23 239.77 307.77 3,000.00 EDUCATION AND TRAINING101-301-957.000



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 5/22Page:09/08/2022 02:56 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: City Of Evart

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 16.99

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 08/31/2022

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022-23

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND
Expenditures

0.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY-CAPITALIZED101-301-970.100

13.86 341,736.92 24,340.23 55,001.08 396,738.00 Total Dept 301 - POLICE

Dept 303 - FIRE PROTECTION
0.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 FOR FUTURE EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT101-303-943.000

0.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 Total Dept 303 - FIRE PROTECTION

Dept 395 - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
0.00 20,000.00 0.00 0.00 20,000.00 CONTRIBUTION TO DDA 101-395-923.000

0.00 20,000.00 0.00 0.00 20,000.00 Total Dept 395 - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

Dept 396 - EXP. RELATED TO LDFA
9.71 22,573.00 2,427.00 2,427.00 25,000.00 LDFA ANNUAL MERS PAYMENT 101-396-718.100

9.71 22,573.00 2,427.00 2,427.00 25,000.00 Total Dept 396 - EXP. RELATED TO LDFA

Dept 440 - BUILDING & GROUNDS
7.01 2,324.83 145.46 175.17 2,500.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-440-740.000

32.01 22,438.00 4,934.00 10,562.00 33,000.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES101-440-801.000
0.00 4,000.00 0.00 0.00 4,000.00 UTILITIES101-440-921.000
3.12 1,937.55 62.45 62.45 2,000.00 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE101-440-930.000

58.86 205.72 262.90 294.28 500.00 EQUIPMENT RENTAL101-440-943.000

26.41 30,906.10 5,404.81 11,093.90 42,000.00 Total Dept 440 - BUILDING & GROUNDS

Dept 441 - DEPT OF PUBLIC WORKS
14.94 7,229.85 638.33 1,270.15 8,500.00 SALARIES101-441-702.000
15.66 33,736.52 3,999.98 6,263.48 40,000.00 SALARY AND WAGES - HOURLY101-441-706.000
71.73 1,696.44 2,613.16 4,303.56 6,000.00 SAL/WAGES, PT101-441-707.000
0.00 50.00 0.00 0.00 50.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES101-441-727.000
0.00 200.00 0.00 0.00 200.00 SAFETY SUPPLIES101-441-728.000

14.30 2,570.95 284.54 429.05 3,000.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-441-740.000
33.97 1,452.75 747.25 747.25 2,200.00 REIMBURSEMENT EXPENSE101-441-768.000
14.24 3,173.14 285.22 526.86 3,700.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES101-441-801.000
0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 MEMBERSHIP AND DUES101-441-807.000
6.00 470.00 0.00 30.00 500.00 PHYSICALS/DRUG TESTING101-441-840.000
3.33 483.34 0.00 16.66 500.00 COMMUNICATIONS101-441-850.000
0.34 996.58 3.42 3.42 1,000.00 TRAVEL EXPENSES101-441-860.000

100.00 (83.34)0.00 83.34 0.00 PUBLISHING/PRINTING101-441-900.000
5.48 11,342.88 325.32 657.12 12,000.00 UTILITIES101-441-921.000
6.99 930.14 69.86 69.86 1,000.00 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE101-441-930.000

50.75 6,402.17 2,267.54 6,597.83 13,000.00 EQUIPMENT RENTAL101-441-943.000
0.00 400.00 0.00 0.00 400.00 EDUCATION AND TRAINING101-441-957.000

22.69 71,551.42 11,234.62 20,998.58 92,550.00 Total Dept 441 - DEPT OF PUBLIC WORKS

Dept 442 - AIRPORT



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 6/22Page:09/08/2022 02:56 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: City Of Evart

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 16.99

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 08/31/2022

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022-23

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND
Expenditures

28.15 431.09 168.91 168.91 600.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-442-740.000
0.00 6,000.00 0.00 0.00 6,000.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES101-442-801.000
0.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 LICENSES - EXPENSE101-442-808.000
7.59 924.08 46.67 75.92 1,000.00 COMMUNICATIONS101-442-850.000

99.91 3.03 3,206.97 3,206.97 3,210.00 LIABILITY INSURANCE101-442-912.000
9.70 6,772.76 359.58 727.24 7,500.00 UTILITIES101-442-921.000
0.00 1,500.00 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE101-442-930.000
0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 COMPUTERS/EQUIPMENT/IT101-442-932.000

43.08 4,553.39 1,934.44 3,446.61 8,000.00 EQUIPMENT RENTAL101-442-943.000

26.84 20,784.35 5,716.57 7,625.65 28,410.00 Total Dept 442 - AIRPORT

Dept 443 - BRUSH
11.78 13,233.25 1,171.53 1,766.75 15,000.00 EQUIPMENT RENTAL101-443-943.000

11.78 13,233.25 1,171.53 1,766.75 15,000.00 Total Dept 443 - BRUSH

Dept 444 - TREES
78.90 126.59 120.00 473.41 600.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-444-740.000
0.00 10,000.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES101-444-801.000

22.19 1,556.12 258.29 443.88 2,000.00 EQUIPMENT RENTAL101-444-943.000

7.28 11,682.71 378.29 917.29 12,600.00 Total Dept 444 - TREES

Dept 448 - STREET LIGHTING
16.64 21,255.91 2,152.92 4,244.09 25,500.00 UTILITIES101-448-921.000
0.00 1,250.00 0.00 0.00 1,250.00 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE101-448-930.000
0.00 300.00 0.00 0.00 300.00 EQUIPMENT RENTAL101-448-943.000

15.69 22,805.91 2,152.92 4,244.09 27,050.00 Total Dept 448 - STREET LIGHTING

Dept 526 - REFUSE SERVICE
23.17 84,513.70 12,952.98 25,486.30 110,000.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES101-526-801.000

23.17 84,513.70 12,952.98 25,486.30 110,000.00 Total Dept 526 - REFUSE SERVICE

Dept 751 - RECREATION
100.00 (8,510.00)8,510.00 8,510.00 0.00 POP WARNER EXPENSES101-751-743.501

100.00 (8,510.00)8,510.00 8,510.00 0.00 Total Dept 751 - RECREATION

Dept 850 - FRINGE BENEFITS
15.39 4,991.82 485.07 908.18 5,900.00 MEDICARE101-850-714.000
20.77 14,816.73 2,074.20 3,883.27 18,700.00 SOCIAL SECURITY101-850-715.000
18.35 32,660.01 3,228.04 7,339.99 40,000.00 HEALTH INSURANCE101-850-716.000
16.25 37,686.78 4,082.77 7,313.22 45,000.00 RETIREMENT101-850-718.000
5.82 2,354.48 145.52 145.52 2,500.00 OTHER FRINGE BENEFITS101-850-719.000
5.31 2,367.20 0.00 132.80 2,500.00 UNEMPLOYMENT COMP.101-850-723.000

12.44 1,576.15 0.00 223.85 1,800.00 WORKMENS COMPENSATION101-850-724.000



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 7/22Page:09/08/2022 02:56 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: City Of Evart

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 16.99

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 08/31/2022

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022-23

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND
Expenditures

17.14 96,453.17 10,015.60 19,946.83 116,400.00 Total Dept 850 - FRINGE BENEFITS

Dept 851 - INSURANCE
20.39 4,776.47 0.00 1,223.53 6,000.00 LIABILITY INSURANCE101-851-912.000

20.39 4,776.47 0.00 1,223.53 6,000.00 Total Dept 851 - INSURANCE

Dept 895 - SPECIAL EVENTS
0.00 3,200.00 0.00 0.00 3,200.00 COMMUNITY PROMOTIONS101-895-880.000
0.00 700.00 0.00 0.00 700.00 EQUIPMENT RENTAL101-895-943.000

0.00 3,900.00 0.00 0.00 3,900.00 Total Dept 895 - SPECIAL EVENTS

Dept 966 - CONTRIBUTION TO
0.00 114,500.00 0.00 0.00 114,500.00 CONTRIB TO RECREATION101-966-999.207
0.00 115,150.00 0.00 0.00 115,150.00 CONTRIB. TO PARK FUND101-966-999.208
0.00 35,500.00 0.00 0.00 35,500.00 CONTRIB. TO CEMETERY FUND101-966-999.209

0.00 265,150.00 0.00 0.00 265,150.00 Total Dept 966 - CONTRIBUTION TO

13.57 1,179,847.95 97,327.30 185,240.05 1,365,088.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

1,544.12 (81,597.57)115,153.02 76,634.57 (4,963.00)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

13.57 1,179,847.95 97,327.30 185,240.05 1,365,088.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
19.25 1,098,250.38 212,480.32 261,874.62 1,360,125.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 8/22Page:09/08/2022 02:56 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: City Of Evart

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 16.99

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 08/31/2022

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022-23

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 202 - MAJOR STREET
Revenues
Dept 000 - 728

19.92 3,523.51 876.49 876.49 4,400.00 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT N. OAK ST. 202-000-403.327
16.89 166,211.09 17,724.16 33,788.91 200,000.00 STATE SHARED REVENUE202-000-574.000
195.49 (572.95)0.00 1,172.95 600.00 STATE-TRUNKL MAINT.202-000-576.000
70.30 29.70 0.00 70.30 100.00 INTEREST-REVENUE202-000-665.000
0.00 500,000.00 0.00 0.00 500,000.00 APPROPRIATION OF FUND BALANCE 202-000-684.100

44.96 275.21 224.79 224.79 500.00 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE202-000-685.000

5.12 669,466.56 18,825.44 36,133.44 705,600.00 Total Dept 000 - 728

5.12 669,466.56 18,825.44 36,133.44 705,600.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 202 - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

0.00 1,500.00 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 INDEPENDENT AUDITOR SERVICES202-202-803.000

0.00 1,500.00 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 Total Dept 202 - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Dept 450 - CONSTRUCTION
0.00 500,000.00 0.00 0.00 500,000.00 STREET RESURFACING202-450-949.000

0.00 500,000.00 0.00 0.00 500,000.00 Total Dept 450 - CONSTRUCTION

Dept 451 - ROUTINE MAINTENANCE
4.49 2,005.67 94.33 94.33 2,100.00 SALARY AND WAGES - HOURLY202-451-706.000
0.00 800.00 0.00 0.00 800.00 OVERTIME WAGES202-451-706.100
0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 SAL/WAGES, PT202-451-707.000
0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES202-451-740.000
0.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES202-451-801.000
0.00 2,500.00 0.00 0.00 2,500.00 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE202-451-930.000
5.77 2,355.82 144.18 144.18 2,500.00 EQUIPMENT RENTAL202-451-943.000

2.41 9,661.49 238.51 238.51 9,900.00 Total Dept 451 - ROUTINE MAINTENANCE

Dept 452 - WINTER MAINTENANCE
0.00 4,000.00 0.00 0.00 4,000.00 SALARY AND WAGES - HOURLY202-452-706.000
0.00 300.00 0.00 0.00 300.00 OVERTIME WAGES202-452-706.100
0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 SAL/WAGES, PT202-452-707.000
0.00 10,500.00 0.00 0.00 10,500.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES202-452-740.000
0.00 15,000.00 0.00 0.00 15,000.00 EQUIPMENT RENTAL202-452-943.000

0.00 30,300.00 0.00 0.00 30,300.00 Total Dept 452 - WINTER MAINTENANCE

Dept 453 - SIDEWALKS/NON-MOTORIZED
4.64 1,239.67 0.00 60.33 1,300.00 SALARY AND WAGES - HOURLY202-453-706.000
0.00 300.00 0.00 0.00 300.00 SAL/WAGES, PT202-453-707.000
0.00 200.00 0.00 0.00 200.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES202-453-740.000
0.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES202-453-801.000
0.00 3,000.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE202-453-930.000
4.56 2,386.01 0.00 113.99 2,500.00 EQUIPMENT RENTAL202-453-943.000



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 9/22Page:09/08/2022 02:56 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: City Of Evart

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 16.99

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 08/31/2022

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022-23

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 202 - MAJOR STREET
Expenditures

2.10 8,125.68 0.00 174.32 8,300.00 Total Dept 453 - SIDEWALKS/NON-MOTORIZED

Dept 454 - ADMINISTRATION
18.15 5,729.85 638.34 1,270.15 7,000.00 SALARIES202-454-702.000
0.00 950.00 0.00 0.00 950.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES202-454-801.000

90.73 11.12 0.00 108.88 120.00 MEMBERSHIP AND DUES202-454-807.000
48.94 765.88 0.00 734.12 1,500.00 LIABILITY INSURANCE202-454-912.000

22.08 7,456.85 638.34 2,113.15 9,570.00 Total Dept 454 - ADMINISTRATION

Dept 455 - SWEEPING - US10
36.20 319.02 144.78 180.98 500.00 SALARY AND WAGES - HOURLY202-455-706.000
0.00 5,600.00 0.00 0.00 5,600.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES202-455-801.000

100.00 (318.50)273.00 318.50 0.00 EQUIPMENT RENTAL202-455-943.000

8.19 5,600.52 417.78 499.48 6,100.00 Total Dept 455 - SWEEPING - US10

Dept 456 - SHOULDER WORK
5.03 1,139.67 0.00 60.33 1,200.00 SALARY AND WAGES - HOURLY202-456-706.000
2.73 2,918.19 0.00 81.81 3,000.00 EQUIPMENT RENTAL202-456-943.000

3.38 4,057.86 0.00 142.14 4,200.00 Total Dept 456 - SHOULDER WORK

Dept 457 - DRAINAGE
27.14 1,821.47 575.97 678.53 2,500.00 SALARY AND WAGES - HOURLY202-457-706.000
0.00 300.00 0.00 0.00 300.00 SAL/WAGES, PT202-457-707.000

34.30 1,970.88 890.05 1,029.12 3,000.00 EQUIPMENT RENTAL202-457-943.000

29.44 4,092.35 1,466.02 1,707.65 5,800.00 Total Dept 457 - DRAINAGE

Dept 459 - GRASS AND WEED
25.50 149.00 51.00 51.00 200.00 SALARY AND WAGES - HOURLY202-459-706.000
13.75 431.26 68.74 68.74 500.00 EQUIPMENT RENTAL202-459-943.000

17.11 580.26 119.74 119.74 700.00 Total Dept 459 - GRASS AND WEED

Dept 460 - TRAFFIC SIGNS
0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 SALARY AND WAGES - HOURLY202-460-706.000
0.00 1,500.00 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES202-460-740.000
8.78 1,641.98 79.84 158.02 1,800.00 UTILITIES202-460-921.000
0.00 300.00 0.00 0.00 300.00 EQUIPMENT RENTAL202-460-943.000

3.85 3,941.98 79.84 158.02 4,100.00 Total Dept 460 - TRAFFIC SIGNS

Dept 461 - US 10-STATE TRUNKLINE
1.70 1,474.50 25.50 25.50 1,500.00 SALARY AND WAGES - HOURLY202-461-706.000

100.00 (17.00)17.00 17.00 0.00 US-10 ROADSIDE CLEAN-UP202-461-706.124
0.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 GRASS & WEEDS202-461-706.126



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 10/22Page:09/08/2022 02:56 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: City Of Evart

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 16.99

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 08/31/2022

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022-23

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 202 - MAJOR STREET
Expenditures

0.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 US-10 SWEEPING & FLUSHING202-461-706.132
0.00 300.00 0.00 0.00 300.00 OTHER WINTER MAINTENANCE 202-461-706.149
0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 SAL/WAGES, PT202-461-707.000
0.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 UTILITIES202-461-921.000
1.11 494.44 5.56 5.56 500.00 EQUIPMENT RENTAL202-461-943.000

1.20 3,951.94 48.06 48.06 4,000.00 Total Dept 461 - US 10-STATE TRUNKLINE

Dept 850 - FRINGE BENEFITS
6.65 466.73 21.48 33.27 500.00 MEDICARE202-850-714.000
6.77 1,957.75 91.85 142.25 2,100.00 SOCIAL SECURITY202-850-715.000
6.22 11,534.34 233.03 765.66 12,300.00 HEALTH INSURANCE202-850-716.000
7.04 5,205.80 239.83 394.20 5,600.00 RETIREMENT202-850-718.000
3.17 532.54 17.46 17.46 550.00 OTHER FRINGE BENEFITS202-850-719.000

10.62 446.88 0.00 53.12 500.00 UNEMPLOYMENT COMP.202-850-723.000
12.05 2,286.61 0.00 313.39 2,600.00 WORKMENS COMPENSATION202-850-724.000

7.12 22,430.65 603.65 1,719.35 24,150.00 Total Dept 850 - FRINGE BENEFITS

Dept 966 - CONTRIBUTION TO
0.00 45,000.00 0.00 0.00 45,000.00 CONTRIB. TO LOCAL STREETS202-966-999.203

0.00 45,000.00 0.00 0.00 45,000.00 Total Dept 966 - CONTRIBUTION TO

1.06 646,699.58 3,611.94 6,920.42 653,620.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

56.20 22,766.98 15,213.50 29,213.02 51,980.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

1.06 646,699.58 3,611.94 6,920.42 653,620.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
5.12 669,466.56 18,825.44 36,133.44 705,600.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 202 - MAJOR STREET:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 11/22Page:09/08/2022 02:56 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: City Of Evart

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 16.99

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 08/31/2022

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022-23

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 203 - LOCAL STREET
Revenues
Dept 000 - 728

24.96 3,376.58 909.76 1,123.42 4,500.00 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT S. HEMLOCK ST. 203-000-403.326
16.71 58,304.81 6,134.84 11,695.19 70,000.00 STATE SHARED REVENUE203-000-574.000
11.09 133.37 0.00 16.63 150.00 INTEREST-REVENUE203-000-665.000
0.00 100,000.00 0.00 0.00 100,000.00 APPROPRIATION OF FUND BALANCE 203-000-684.100

27.25 400.14 149.86 149.86 550.00 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE203-000-685.000
0.00 45,000.00 0.00 0.00 45,000.00 TRANSFER FROM MAJOR STREET203-000-699.202

5.90 207,214.90 7,194.46 12,985.10 220,200.00 Total Dept 000 - 728

5.90 207,214.90 7,194.46 12,985.10 220,200.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 202 - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

0.00 1,800.00 0.00 0.00 1,800.00 INDEPENDENT AUDITOR SERVICES203-202-803.000

0.00 1,800.00 0.00 0.00 1,800.00 Total Dept 202 - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Dept 450 - CONSTRUCTION
0.00 100,000.00 0.00 0.00 100,000.00 STREET RESURFACING203-450-949.000

0.00 100,000.00 0.00 0.00 100,000.00 Total Dept 450 - CONSTRUCTION

Dept 451 - ROUTINE MAINTENANCE
9.27 3,629.28 370.72 370.72 4,000.00 SALARY AND WAGES - HOURLY203-451-706.000
3.62 963.80 36.20 36.20 1,000.00 OVERTIME WAGES203-451-706.100
0.00 600.00 0.00 0.00 600.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES203-451-740.000
0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES203-451-801.000
0.00 7,500.00 0.00 0.00 7,500.00 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE203-451-930.000
9.90 4,234.80 465.20 465.20 4,700.00 EQUIPMENT RENTAL203-451-943.000

4.77 17,427.88 872.12 872.12 18,300.00 Total Dept 451 - ROUTINE MAINTENANCE

Dept 452 - WINTER MAINTENANCE
0.00 3,600.00 0.00 0.00 3,600.00 SALARY AND WAGES - HOURLY203-452-706.000
0.00 200.00 0.00 0.00 200.00 OVERTIME WAGES203-452-706.100
0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 SAL/WAGES, PT203-452-707.000
0.00 10,500.00 0.00 0.00 10,500.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES203-452-740.000
0.00 10,500.00 0.00 0.00 10,500.00 EQUIPMENT RENTAL203-452-943.000

0.00 25,300.00 0.00 0.00 25,300.00 Total Dept 452 - WINTER MAINTENANCE

Dept 453 - SIDEWALKS/NON-MOTORIZED
9.65 451.74 0.00 48.26 500.00 SALARY AND WAGES - HOURLY203-453-706.000
0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 SAL/WAGES, PT203-453-707.000
0.00 200.00 0.00 0.00 200.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES203-453-740.000
0.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES203-453-801.000
2.00 9,800.00 0.00 200.00 10,000.00 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE203-453-930.000
3.62 1,927.54 0.00 72.46 2,000.00 EQUIPMENT RENTAL203-453-943.000



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 12/22Page:09/08/2022 02:56 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: City Of Evart

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 16.99

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 08/31/2022

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022-23

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 203 - LOCAL STREET
Expenditures

2.26 13,879.28 0.00 320.72 14,200.00 Total Dept 453 - SIDEWALKS/NON-MOTORIZED

Dept 454 - ADMINISTRATION
14.44 2,053.53 174.11 346.47 2,400.00 SALARIES203-454-702.000
0.00 600.00 0.00 0.00 600.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES203-454-801.000

90.73 11.13 0.00 108.87 120.00 MEMBERSHIP AND DUES203-454-807.000
48.94 510.59 0.00 489.41 1,000.00 LIABILITY INSURANCE203-454-912.000

22.93 3,175.25 174.11 944.75 4,120.00 Total Dept 454 - ADMINISTRATION

Dept 455 - SWEEPING - US10
0.00 150.00 0.00 0.00 150.00 SALARY AND WAGES - HOURLY203-455-706.000
0.00 5,500.00 0.00 0.00 5,500.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES203-455-801.000
0.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 EQUIPMENT RENTAL203-455-943.000

0.00 5,750.00 0.00 0.00 5,750.00 Total Dept 455 - SWEEPING - US10

Dept 456 - SHOULDER WORK
0.00 800.00 0.00 0.00 800.00 SALARY AND WAGES - HOURLY203-456-706.000
0.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 EQUIPMENT RENTAL203-456-943.000

0.00 1,800.00 0.00 0.00 1,800.00 Total Dept 456 - SHOULDER WORK

Dept 457 - DRAINAGE
20.62 1,984.41 413.03 515.59 2,500.00 SALARY AND WAGES - HOURLY203-457-706.000
26.34 2,209.81 651.12 790.19 3,000.00 EQUIPMENT RENTAL203-457-943.000

23.74 4,194.22 1,064.15 1,305.78 5,500.00 Total Dept 457 - DRAINAGE

Dept 460 - TRAFFIC SIGNS
0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 SALARY AND WAGES - HOURLY203-460-706.000
0.00 10,000.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES203-460-740.000
0.00 150.00 0.00 0.00 150.00 EQUIPMENT RENTAL203-460-943.000

0.00 10,650.00 0.00 0.00 10,650.00 Total Dept 460 - TRAFFIC SIGNS

Dept 850 - FRINGE BENEFITS
3.56 482.21 13.53 17.79 500.00 MEDICARE203-850-714.000
6.35 1,123.83 57.89 76.17 1,200.00 SOCIAL SECURITY203-850-715.000
7.09 5,109.79 225.20 390.21 5,500.00 HEALTH INSURANCE203-850-716.000
9.01 2,365.81 158.98 234.19 2,600.00 RETIREMENT203-850-718.000
2.33 488.36 11.64 11.64 500.00 OTHER FRINGE BENEFITS203-850-719.000
8.67 2,831.38 0.00 268.62 3,100.00 WORKMENS COMPENSATION203-850-724.000

7.45 12,401.38 467.24 998.62 13,400.00 Total Dept 850 - FRINGE BENEFITS

2.21 196,378.01 2,577.62 4,441.99 200,820.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 13/22Page:09/08/2022 02:56 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: City Of Evart

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 16.99

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 08/31/2022

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022-23

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 203 - LOCAL STREET

44.08 10,836.89 4,616.84 8,543.11 19,380.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

2.21 196,378.01 2,577.62 4,441.99 200,820.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
5.90 207,214.90 7,194.46 12,985.10 220,200.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 203 - LOCAL STREET:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 14/22Page:09/08/2022 02:56 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: City Of Evart

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 16.99

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 08/31/2022

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022-23

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 207 - OTHER PARKS/RECREATION FUND
Revenues
Dept 000 - 728

0.00 6,500.00 0.00 0.00 6,500.00 APPROPRIATION OF FUND BALANCE 207-000-684.100
0.00 114,500.00 0.00 0.00 114,500.00 TRANSFER FROM GEN. FUND207-000-699.101

0.00 121,000.00 0.00 0.00 121,000.00 Total Dept 000 - 728

Dept 751 - RECREATION
42.50 575.00 250.00 425.00 1,000.00 PAVILLION RENTAL207-751-667.200
100.00 (343.55)89.40 343.55 0.00 RIVERSIDE EAST/WEST PARK PASS REVENUE207-751-685.150

76.86 231.45 339.40 768.55 1,000.00 Total Dept 751 - RECREATION

0.63 121,231.45 339.40 768.55 122,000.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 751 - RECREATION

16.89 415.53 71.01 84.47 500.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES207-751-740.000
0.00 2,000.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES207-751-801.000

13.06 6,085.52 240.45 914.48 7,000.00 UTILITIES207-751-921.000
80.82 1,918.25 8,081.75 8,081.75 10,000.00 WATER USAGE FOR SPLASH PAD207-751-921.100
0.26 100,741.68 134.07 258.32 101,000.00 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE207-751-930.000

36.91 946.29 553.71 553.71 1,500.00 EQUIPMENT RENTAL207-751-943.000

8.11 112,107.27 9,080.99 9,892.73 122,000.00 Total Dept 751 - RECREATION

8.11 112,107.27 9,080.99 9,892.73 122,000.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

100.00 9,124.18 (8,741.59)(9,124.18)0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

8.11 112,107.27 9,080.99 9,892.73 122,000.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
0.63 121,231.45 339.40 768.55 122,000.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 207 - OTHER PARKS/RECREATION FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 15/22Page:09/08/2022 02:56 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: City Of Evart

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 16.99

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 08/31/2022

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022-23

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 208 - RIVERSIDE CAMPGROUND FUND
Revenues
Dept 000 - 728

0.00 115,150.00 0.00 0.00 115,150.00 TRANSFER FROM GEN. FUND208-000-699.101

0.00 115,150.00 0.00 0.00 115,150.00 Total Dept 000 - 728

Dept 757 - RIVERSIDE PARK
100.00 (485.00)178.00 485.00 0.00 CAMP SITE RENTAL208-757-667.300

100.00 (485.00)178.00 485.00 0.00 Total Dept 757 - RIVERSIDE PARK

0.42 114,665.00 178.00 485.00 115,150.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 757 - RIVERSIDE PARK

0.00 300.00 0.00 0.00 300.00 PERMITS AND FEES208-757-729.000
100.00 (284.72)124.50 284.72 0.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES208-757-740.000
30.12 2,970.00 400.00 1,280.00 4,250.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES208-757-801.000
100.00 (77.05)38.59 77.05 0.00 COMMUNICATIONS208-757-850.000
48.94 255.29 0.00 244.71 500.00 LIABILITY INSURANCE208-757-912.000
17.56 2,060.95 236.14 439.05 2,500.00 UTILITIES208-757-921.000
0.10 105,891.50 64.34 108.50 106,000.00 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE208-757-930.000

29.85 1,122.45 229.94 477.55 1,600.00 EQUIPMENT RENTAL208-757-943.000

2.53 112,238.42 1,093.51 2,911.58 115,150.00 Total Dept 757 - RIVERSIDE PARK

2.53 112,238.42 1,093.51 2,911.58 115,150.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

100.00 2,426.58 (915.51)(2,426.58)0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

2.53 112,238.42 1,093.51 2,911.58 115,150.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
0.42 114,665.00 178.00 485.00 115,150.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 208 - RIVERSIDE CAMPGROUND FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 16/22Page:09/08/2022 02:56 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: City Of Evart

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 16.99

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 08/31/2022

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022-23

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 209 - CEMETERY FUND
Revenues
Dept 000 - 728

46.58 2,403.95 776.05 2,096.05 4,500.00 FOUNDATION INSTALLATION209-000-636.000
100.00 (50.00)50.00 50.00 0.00 SPECIAL FOUNDATION ORDERS209-000-636.100
24.72 13,550.00 1,550.00 4,450.00 18,000.00 GRAVE OPENINGS/CLOSINGS209-000-637.000
8.89 8,200.00 0.00 800.00 9,000.00 SALES209-000-642.000
0.00 35,500.00 0.00 0.00 35,500.00 TRANSFER FROM GEN. FUND209-000-699.101

11.04 59,603.95 2,376.05 7,396.05 67,000.00 Total Dept 000 - 728

11.04 59,603.95 2,376.05 7,396.05 67,000.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 202 - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 INDEPENDENT AUDITOR SERVICES209-202-803.000

0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 Total Dept 202 - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Dept 276 - CEMETERY
0.00 200.00 0.00 0.00 200.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES209-276-740.000

33.71 31,486.66 8,006.67 16,013.34 47,500.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES209-276-801.000
0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 INDEPENDENT AUDITOR SERVICES209-276-803.000
0.00 600.00 0.00 0.00 600.00 UTILITIES209-276-921.000

32.23 10,166.22 4,833.78 4,833.78 15,000.00 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE209-276-930.000
75.40 123.00 0.00 377.00 500.00 COMPUTERS/EQUIPMENT/IT209-276-932.000
8.34 183.32 0.00 16.68 200.00 EQUIPMENT RENTAL209-276-943.000

32.93 43,259.20 12,840.45 21,240.80 64,500.00 Total Dept 276 - CEMETERY

32.68 43,759.20 12,840.45 21,240.80 65,000.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

692.24 15,844.75 (10,464.40)(13,844.75)2,000.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

32.68 43,759.20 12,840.45 21,240.80 65,000.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
11.04 59,603.95 2,376.05 7,396.05 67,000.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 209 - CEMETERY FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 17/22Page:09/08/2022 02:56 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: City Of Evart

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 16.99

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 08/31/2022

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022-23

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 590 - SEWER FUND
Revenues
Dept 000 - 728

32.44 1,351.29 353.84 648.71 2,000.00 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT S. OAK ST590-000-403.325
16.58 500,519.72 52,827.47 99,480.28 600,000.00 SALES590-000-642.000
18.74 146,268.72 16,948.88 33,731.28 180,000.00 READY TO SERVE FEE590-000-644.000
9.91 4,504.50 500.35 495.50 5,000.00 INTEREST AND PENALTIES590-000-660.000

23.24 383.82 0.00 116.18 500.00 INTEREST-REVENUE590-000-665.000
0.00 500,000.00 0.00 0.00 500,000.00 APPROPRIATION OF FUND BALANCE 590-000-684.100

49.95 3,002.80 2,997.20 2,997.20 6,000.00 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE590-000-685.000

10.63 1,156,030.85 73,627.74 137,469.15 1,293,500.00 Total Dept 000 - 728

10.63 1,156,030.85 73,627.74 137,469.15 1,293,500.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 202 - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

0.00 5,150.00 0.00 0.00 5,150.00 INDEPENDENT AUDITOR SERVICES590-202-803.000

0.00 5,150.00 0.00 0.00 5,150.00 Total Dept 202 - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Dept 537 - ADMINISTRATION
14.13 55,814.32 4,901.12 9,185.68 65,000.00 SALARIES590-537-702.000
12.68 82,950.60 6,448.74 12,049.40 95,000.00 SALARY AND WAGES - HOURLY590-537-706.000
2.98 1,940.34 59.66 59.66 2,000.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES590-537-727.000
0.00 4,000.00 0.00 0.00 4,000.00 PERMITS AND FEES590-537-729.000
0.55 1,989.03 7.99 10.97 2,000.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES590-537-740.000

16.67 1,666.67 0.00 333.33 2,000.00 POSTAGE & SHIPPING590-537-741.000
24.10 10,625.35 1,739.43 3,374.65 14,000.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES590-537-801.000
29.60 1,408.10 96.90 591.90 2,000.00 MEMBERSHIP AND DUES590-537-807.000
57.00 86.00 84.00 114.00 200.00 PHYSICALS/DRUG TESTING590-537-840.000
9.63 4,518.47 126.66 481.53 5,000.00 COMMUNICATIONS590-537-850.000
0.68 496.58 3.42 3.42 500.00 TRAVEL EXPENSES590-537-860.000

16.09 1,678.20 168.90 321.80 2,000.00 PUBLISHING/PRINTING590-537-900.000
0.00 2,000.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE590-537-930.000
6.08 6,198.88 330.45 401.12 6,600.00 COMPUTERS/EQUIPMENT/IT590-537-932.000
0.00 200.00 0.00 0.00 200.00 EQUIPMENT RENTAL590-537-943.000

16.46 1,837.90 362.10 362.10 2,200.00 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE590-537-955.000
0.00 2,000.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 EDUCATION AND TRAINING590-537-957.000

13.20 179,410.44 14,329.37 27,289.56 206,700.00 Total Dept 537 - ADMINISTRATION

Dept 538 - PLANT OPERATION
14.97 25,508.72 2,224.76 4,491.28 30,000.00 SALARY AND WAGES - HOURLY590-538-706.000
2.69 6,811.77 188.23 188.23 7,000.00 OUTSOURCED TESTING590-538-730.000
0.00 10,000.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 FERRIC CHLORIDE590-538-731.000
1.83 4,613.93 53.92 86.07 4,700.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES590-538-740.000

85.55 2,168.16 786.67 12,831.84 15,000.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES590-538-801.000
21.58 1,568.48 171.84 431.52 2,000.00 COMMUNICATIONS590-538-850.000
46.49 10,701.21 0.00 9,298.79 20,000.00 LIABILITY INSURANCE590-538-912.000
14.82 40,035.84 4,662.96 6,964.16 47,000.00 UTILITIES590-538-921.000
0.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE590-538-930.000

51.67 2,416.71 2,363.71 2,583.29 5,000.00 EQUIPMENT RENTAL590-538-943.000
0.00 163,464.00 0.00 0.00 163,464.00 DEPRECIATION590-538-969.000



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 18/22Page:09/08/2022 02:56 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: City Of Evart

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 16.99

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 08/31/2022

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022-23

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 590 - SEWER FUND
Expenditures

0.00 50,000.00 0.00 0.00 50,000.00 STORM SEWER/SANITARY SEWER IMPROVEMENTS590-538-970.101

10.27 322,288.82 10,452.09 36,875.18 359,164.00 Total Dept 538 - PLANT OPERATION

Dept 539 - COLLECTION
6.92 37,230.04 1,538.88 2,769.96 40,000.00 SALARIES590-539-702.000

19.34 28,229.94 3,679.93 6,770.06 35,000.00 SALARY AND WAGES - HOURLY590-539-706.000
6.62 12,139.23 522.66 860.77 13,000.00 SAL/WAGES, PT590-539-707.000
2.22 3,128.99 71.01 71.01 3,200.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES590-539-740.000
2.72 471,784.97 13,205.73 13,215.03 485,000.00 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE590-539-930.000

11.08 13,338.36 577.45 1,661.64 15,000.00 EQUIPMENT RENTAL590-539-943.000

4.29 565,851.53 19,595.66 25,348.47 591,200.00 Total Dept 539 - COLLECTION

Dept 850 - FRINGE BENEFITS
9.98 4,501.07 267.32 498.93 5,000.00 MEDICARE590-850-714.000

15.24 11,866.80 1,143.01 2,133.20 14,000.00 SOCIAL SECURITY590-850-715.000
13.09 52,148.04 2,625.37 7,851.96 60,000.00 HEALTH INSURANCE590-850-716.000
20.93 19,766.27 2,226.05 5,233.73 25,000.00 RETIREMENT590-850-718.000
3.69 2,889.40 110.60 110.60 3,000.00 OTHER FRINGE BENEFITS590-850-719.000
7.30 2,780.88 0.00 219.12 3,000.00 UNEMPLOYMENT COMP.590-850-723.000

19.03 6,477.82 0.00 1,522.18 8,000.00 WORKMENS COMPENSATION590-850-724.000

14.89 100,430.28 6,372.35 17,569.72 118,000.00 Total Dept 850 - FRINGE BENEFITS

8.36 1,173,131.07 50,749.47 107,082.93 1,280,214.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

228.71 (17,100.22)22,878.27 30,386.22 13,286.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

8.36 1,173,131.07 50,749.47 107,082.93 1,280,214.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
10.63 1,156,030.85 73,627.74 137,469.15 1,293,500.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 590 - SEWER FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 19/22Page:09/08/2022 02:56 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: City Of Evart

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 16.99

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 08/31/2022

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022-23

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 591 - WATER FUND
Revenues
Dept 000 - 728

32.44 1,351.30 353.83 648.70 2,000.00 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT S. OAK ST591-000-403.325
39.03 1,219.34 632.20 780.66 2,000.00 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT S. HEMLOCK ST. 591-000-403.326
17.14 6,629.08 1,370.92 1,370.92 8,000.00 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT N. OAK ST. 591-000-403.327
24.39 756,084.49 124,706.63 243,915.51 1,000,000.00 SALES591-000-642.000
17.81 90,409.51 9,930.42 19,590.49 110,000.00 READY TO SERVE FEE591-000-644.000
100.00 (505.53)375.53 505.53 0.00 LAWN METER SALES591-000-645.000
12.90 2,177.43 324.95 322.57 2,500.00 INTEREST AND PENALTIES591-000-660.000
7.23 2,783.05 0.00 216.95 3,000.00 INTEREST-REVENUE591-000-665.000
0.00 500,000.00 0.00 0.00 500,000.00 APPROPRIATION OF FUND BALANCE 591-000-684.100

51.09 4,890.52 2,297.71 5,109.48 10,000.00 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE591-000-685.000
0.00 25,000.00 0.00 0.00 25,000.00 TOWER LEASE REVENUE591-000-691.000

16.39 1,390,039.19 139,992.19 272,460.81 1,662,500.00 Total Dept 000 - 728

16.39 1,390,039.19 139,992.19 272,460.81 1,662,500.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 202 - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

0.00 5,150.00 0.00 0.00 5,150.00 INDEPENDENT AUDITOR SERVICES591-202-803.000

0.00 5,150.00 0.00 0.00 5,150.00 Total Dept 202 - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Dept 545 - ADMINISTRATION
13.06 60,856.66 4,871.53 9,143.34 70,000.00 SALARIES591-545-702.000
19.79 60,161.22 8,028.12 14,838.78 75,000.00 SALARY AND WAGES - HOURLY591-545-706.000
0.00 17,000.00 0.00 0.00 17,000.00 SAL/WAGES, PT591-545-707.000
5.97 940.34 59.66 59.66 1,000.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES591-545-727.000
0.00 6,000.00 0.00 0.00 6,000.00 PERMITS AND FEES591-545-729.000
0.24 4,589.03 7.99 10.97 4,600.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES591-545-740.000

11.11 2,666.67 0.00 333.33 3,000.00 POSTAGE & SHIPPING591-545-741.000
12.50 13,125.34 1,739.44 1,874.66 15,000.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES591-545-801.000
54.90 1,353.00 0.00 1,647.00 3,000.00 MEMBERSHIP AND DUES591-545-807.000
4.56 2,386.00 84.00 114.00 2,500.00 PHYSICALS/DRUG TESTING591-545-840.000
6.37 4,681.68 126.65 318.32 5,000.00 COMMUNICATIONS591-545-850.000
0.23 1,496.57 3.43 3.43 1,500.00 TRAVEL EXPENSES591-545-860.000

45.14 1,645.71 168.90 1,354.29 3,000.00 PUBLISHING/PRINTING591-545-900.000
0.00 2,000.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE591-545-930.000
5.73 6,598.89 330.45 401.11 7,000.00 COMPUTERS/EQUIPMENT/IT591-545-932.000
2.78 972.20 16.68 27.80 1,000.00 EQUIPMENT RENTAL591-545-943.000

16.46 1,837.89 362.11 362.11 2,200.00 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE591-545-955.000
0.00 2,000.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 EDUCATION AND TRAINING591-545-957.000

13.81 190,311.20 15,798.96 30,488.80 220,800.00 Total Dept 545 - ADMINISTRATION

Dept 546 - PLANT/OPERATIONS
16.91 20,772.50 2,094.00 4,227.50 25,000.00 SALARY AND WAGES - HOURLY591-546-706.000
7.65 6,926.13 348.48 573.87 7,500.00 SAL/WAGES, PT591-546-707.000
3.54 15,434.00 566.00 566.00 16,000.00 OUTSOURCED TESTING591-546-730.000
0.00 22,000.00 0.00 0.00 22,000.00 CHLORINE/TREATMENT CHEMICALS591-546-732.000
7.19 9,281.12 686.72 718.88 10,000.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES591-546-740.000
8.55 20,118.16 786.67 1,881.84 22,000.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES591-546-801.000



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 20/22Page:09/08/2022 02:56 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: City Of Evart

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 16.99

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 08/31/2022

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022-23

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 591 - WATER FUND
Expenditures

0.00 3,000.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 MEMBERSHIP AND DUES591-546-807.000
29.74 1,405.26 171.85 594.74 2,000.00 COMMUNICATIONS591-546-850.000
40.78 3,552.95 0.00 2,447.05 6,000.00 LIABILITY INSURANCE591-546-912.000
18.91 89,201.88 13,807.62 20,798.12 110,000.00 UTILITIES591-546-921.000
0.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE591-546-930.000

14.30 21,423.82 1,454.60 3,576.18 25,000.00 EQUIPMENT RENTAL591-546-943.000
18.60 2,035.00 465.00 465.00 2,500.00 EDUCATION AND TRAINING591-546-957.000
0.00 227,582.00 0.00 0.00 227,582.00 DEPRECIATION591-546-969.000

7.41 447,732.82 20,380.94 35,849.18 483,582.00 Total Dept 546 - PLANT/OPERATIONS

Dept 547 - DISTRIBUTION
16.26 33,494.96 3,548.52 6,505.04 40,000.00 SALARY AND WAGES - HOURLY591-547-706.000
0.00 6,000.00 0.00 0.00 6,000.00 SAL/WAGES, PT591-547-707.000

96.24 3,007.00 0.00 76,993.00 80,000.00 WATER TOWER MAINTENANCE591-547-734.000
22.07 5,455.04 1,348.73 1,544.96 7,000.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES591-547-740.000
0.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES591-547-801.000
0.08 449,634.43 365.57 365.57 450,000.00 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE591-547-930.000

11.28 17,744.68 1,068.18 2,255.32 20,000.00 EQUIPMENT RENTAL591-547-943.000
0.00 150,000.00 0.00 0.00 150,000.00 LEAD SERVICE LINE REPLACEMENTS 591-547-970.300
0.00 30,000.00 0.00 0.00 30,000.00 WELL IMPROVEMENTS591-547-970.400

11.12 700,336.11 6,331.00 87,663.89 788,000.00 Total Dept 547 - DISTRIBUTION

Dept 548 - ACCOUNTING AND COLLECTION
7.14 37,145.93 1,585.59 2,854.07 40,000.00 SALARIES591-548-702.000
8.99 13,651.57 686.66 1,348.43 15,000.00 EQUIPMENT RENTAL591-548-943.000

7.64 50,797.50 2,272.25 4,202.50 55,000.00 Total Dept 548 - ACCOUNTING AND COLLECTION

Dept 850 - FRINGE BENEFITS
13.18 3,472.82 283.73 527.18 4,000.00 MEDICARE591-850-714.000
18.79 9,745.70 1,213.25 2,254.30 12,000.00 SOCIAL SECURITY591-850-715.000
17.01 38,588.38 2,561.30 7,911.62 46,500.00 HEALTH INSURANCE591-850-716.000
19.65 21,694.03 2,294.71 5,305.97 27,000.00 RETIREMENT591-850-718.000
6.21 1,406.86 93.14 93.14 1,500.00 OTHER FRINGE BENEFITS591-850-719.000
8.63 2,741.04 0.00 258.96 3,000.00 UNEMPLOYMENT COMP.591-850-723.000

16.42 7,522.59 0.00 1,477.41 9,000.00 WORKMENS COMPENSATION591-850-724.000

17.31 85,171.42 6,446.13 17,828.58 103,000.00 Total Dept 850 - FRINGE BENEFITS

10.63 1,479,499.05 51,229.28 176,032.95 1,655,532.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

1,383.87 (89,459.86)88,762.91 96,427.86 6,968.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

10.63 1,479,499.05 51,229.28 176,032.95 1,655,532.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
16.39 1,390,039.19 139,992.19 272,460.81 1,662,500.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 591 - WATER FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 21/22Page:09/08/2022 02:56 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: City Of Evart

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 16.99

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 08/31/2022

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022-23

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 661 - EQUIPMENT POOL FUND
Revenues
Dept 000 - 728

22.75 46,351.92 6,720.52 13,648.08 60,000.00 GENERAL FUND661-000-654.101
5.52 30,138.10 1,381.53 1,761.90 31,900.00 MAJOR STREETS661-000-654.202
8.04 15,909.72 1,116.32 1,390.28 17,300.00 LOCAL STREET FUND661-000-654.203
0.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 RECREATION FUND661-000-654.207
0.00 1,600.00 0.00 0.00 1,600.00 PARK FUND661-000-654.208
0.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 CEMETERY FUND661-000-654.209

21.01 15,955.07 2,941.16 4,244.93 20,200.00 SEWER FUND661-000-654.590
11.82 53,792.27 3,226.12 7,207.73 61,000.00 WATER FUND661-000-654.591
4.04 671.75 0.00 28.25 700.00 INTEREST-REVENUE661-000-665.000
0.00 22,200.00 0.00 0.00 22,200.00 APPROPRIATION OF FUND BALANCE 661-000-684.100

100.00 (1,123.95)1,123.95 1,123.95 0.00 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE661-000-685.000

13.61 186,594.88 16,509.60 29,405.12 216,000.00 Total Dept 000 - 728

13.61 186,594.88 16,509.60 29,405.12 216,000.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 202 - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

0.00 2,000.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 INDEPENDENT AUDITOR SERVICES661-202-803.000

0.00 2,000.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 Total Dept 202 - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Dept 599 - EQUIPMENT POOL
15.40 5,076.20 464.24 923.80 6,000.00 SALARIES661-599-702.000
10.36 4,930.46 363.72 569.54 5,500.00 SALARY AND WAGES - HOURLY661-599-706.000
4.76 7,904.73 395.27 395.27 8,300.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES661-599-740.000

107.55 (226.50)2,956.50 3,226.50 3,000.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES661-599-801.000
21.08 15,783.68 1,293.32 4,216.32 20,000.00 GAS AND OIL661-599-861.000
40.78 4,618.83 0.00 3,181.17 7,800.00 LIABILITY INSURANCE661-599-912.000
35.93 7,047.81 3,414.22 3,952.19 11,000.00 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE661-599-930.000
0.00 1,600.00 0.00 0.00 1,600.00 PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE661-599-930.100
0.00 56,000.00 0.00 0.00 56,000.00 DEPRECIATION661-599-969.000
4.67 53,768.72 1,315.64 2,631.28 56,400.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY-CAPITALIZED661-599-970.100

10.87 156,503.93 10,202.91 19,096.07 175,600.00 Total Dept 599 - EQUIPMENT POOL

Dept 850 - FRINGE BENEFITS
6.76 279.71 11.50 20.29 300.00 MEDICARE661-850-714.000

14.47 513.21 49.20 86.79 600.00 SOCIAL SECURITY661-850-715.000
8.83 5,470.40 129.41 529.60 6,000.00 HEALTH INSURANCE661-850-716.000

16.09 1,258.66 133.43 241.34 1,500.00 RETIREMENT661-850-718.000

10.45 7,521.98 323.54 878.02 8,400.00 Total Dept 850 - FRINGE BENEFITS

Dept 907 - SCHEDULED PAYMENTS
78.72 5,959.71 22,040.29 22,040.29 28,000.00 PRINCIPAL661-907-950.991

78.72 5,959.71 22,040.29 22,040.29 28,000.00 Total Dept 907 - SCHEDULED PAYMENTS



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 22/22Page:09/08/2022 02:56 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: City Of Evart

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 16.99

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 08/31/2022

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022-23

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 661 - EQUIPMENT POOL FUND
Expenditures

19.63 171,985.62 32,566.74 42,014.38 214,000.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

630.46 14,609.26 (16,057.14)(12,609.26)2,000.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

19.63 171,985.62 32,566.74 42,014.38 214,000.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
13.61 186,594.88 16,509.60 29,405.12 216,000.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 661 - EQUIPMENT POOL FUND:

224.16 (112,549.01)210,445.90 203,200.01 90,651.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

9.80 5,115,646.17 261,077.30 555,777.83 5,671,424.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES - ALL FUNDS
13.17 5,003,097.16 471,523.20 758,977.84 5,762,075.00 TOTAL REVENUES - ALL FUNDS



 Evart Area Joint Fire Department 

Fire Board Meeting 

August 16, 2022 @ 4:30 PM 

  

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Meeting called to order by Chairman Hammer at 4:30 PM. 

ROLL CALL:  Sherri Bancroft – Osceola Township, Bev Mills – Sylvan 
Township, Dan Elliott – City of Evart, Gary Hammer – Evart Township, 
Diane Brackett – Orient Township-Absent. 

GUESTS: Randy Berger, Angie Cushman, Travis Douglas. 

CITIZENS COMMENTS: None 

MOTION BY CITY OF EVART, 2ND BY OSCEOLA TWP to approve the 
agenda with amendments as follows, the addition of new Business #3, 
ACH Withdrawal. MOTION PASSED. 

MOTION BY OSCEOLA TOWNSHIP, 2nd by SYLVAN TOWNSHIP to 
approve the consent agenda, with the approval of payment of bills, 
treasurers report, and July 19, 2022 regular meeting minutes. 
MOTION PASSED. 

General Checking, $86,014.72, High Yield Savings, $301,655.23, Savings 
Account $5.00 with a Grand Total $387,675.95. 

OLD BUSINESS:  



1. PAID STAFF MONTHLEY UPDATE: Randy explained the 
update that we still have the calendar active and are still 
covering shifts weekly and most weekends.  

2. AUDIT: Shane left a report for the audit and stated that it 
went very well, that when things were needed Jennie 
from the City of Evart did a great job of getting what the 
auditors needed. There will be some additional costs 
incurred as this year as Shelly had to go and add in all the 
revenues from the last year into the budget as it was 
showing we were $41,000 in the red. Once she found the 
error she was able to fix everything and things looked a 
lot better. She stated the final audit will be done in the 
end of September/October, in which the board will have 
to accept it. 

NEW BUSINESS: 

1. MONTHLY STATISTICS: Randy explained the reports given 
and asked the board if they had any questions. Discussion 
was held. 

2. BUDGET: Randy explained that Shane is putting together 
a budget for the board to look at in October and make 
any changes or adjustments. The final budget will be 
around December and then finalized and given to the 
entities for approval. Shane also included some 
suggestions for the budget in 2023-24. Discussion was 
held. 

3. ACH DIRECT DEPOSIT WITHDRAWAL: We have been 
trying to set up direct deposit for the payroll and Jennie 



from the City of Evart found that we needed a motion 
stating that we are able to do this. Discussion was held. 

MOTION BY OSCEOLA TOWNSHIP, 2ND BY CITY OF EVART to approve 
Members First Credit Union to move forward with ACH services. 
MOTION PASSED. 

CITIZENS COMMENTS: None 

Assistant Fire Chief Report: Randy stated that things are running 
smoothly, he stated that hose testing will take place on Sept 6th; Arial 
testing will take place in Sept/Oct waiting on their scheduling yet. Pump 
testing will occur in September.  Randy also stated that we would like 
to revisit cameras and door locks at the next meeting, and have some 
quotes for these services.  

Next Board Meeting:  September 20, 2022 @ 4:30pm  

MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL UNTIL APPROVED AT A FUTURE BOARD 
MEETING.  

MOTION BY SYLVAN, 2ND BY CITY OF EVART, to adjourn the meeting @ 
5:13pm.  MOTION PASSED. 

 

Angela Cushman 

Administrative Assistant 

Evart Area Joint Fire Department 

 

 



 

 


